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One Bank,
One UniCredit.

Our strategy is clear and long-term. We are transforming the Group to build
the bank of tomorrow for our extensive client franchise. Everything we do
is designed to make UniCredit a true pan-European winner.
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UniCredit S.p.A.

A joint stock company

Registered Office and Head Office: Piazza Gae Aulenti, 3 - Tower A - 20154 Milano

Share capital €20,940,398,466.81 fully paid in

Registered in the Register of Banking Groups and Parent Company of the UniCredit Banking Group, with cod. 02008.1
Cod. ABI 02008.1

Fiscal Code, VAT number and Registration number with the Company Register of Milan-Monza-Brianza-Lodi: 00348170101
Member of the National Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund and of the National Compensation Fund

Stamp duty paid virtually, if due - Auth. Agenzia delle Entrate, Ufficio di Roma 1, No.143106/07 of 12.21.2007
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Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and

External Auditors as at 31 December 2018

Fabrizio Saccomanni
Cesare Bisoni
Jean Pierre Mustier

Mohamed Hamad Al Mehairi
Lamberto Andreotti
Sergio Balbinot
Martha Boeckenfeld
Vincenzo Cariello
Isabelle de Wismes
Stefano Micossi
Maria Pierdicchi
Andrea Sironi()
Francesca Tondi
Alexander Wolfgring
Elena Zambon

Gianpaolo Alessandro

Pierpaolo Singer
Antonella Bientinesi
Angelo Rocco Bonissoni

Benedetta Navarra
Guido Paolucci

Stefano Porro

Deloitte & Touche S.p.A.

Board of Directors
Chairman

Deputy Vice Chairman
CEO

Directors

Company Secretary

Board of Statutory Auditors
Chairman

Standing Auditors

Manager in charge with preparing
the financial reports

External Auditors

Note:
(*) Prof. Andrea Sironi resigned from his position as Director starting from 6 February 2019 and, the same day, the Board of Directors coopted Prof.ssa Elena Carletti.
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Dear Shareholders,

| have greatly enjoyed my first year as chairman
of UniCredit. Over the course of 2018, there
have been many opportunities to admire the
group’s incredible potential, thanks to the
unique European positioning and high levels

of professional and personal excellence of
everyone in the group.

The financial community shares this positive
view. The solidity of our governance system,
which guarantees the quality and integrity

of our decision-making processes, is widely
recognised. UniCredit will continue to invest
in ensuring transparency and in maintaining
an open dialogue with all of our stakeholders.

The past year has also confirmed the increasing
challenges that our sector faces. Firstly, a more
complex macroeconomic context. Secondly, a
continuously evolving regulatory environment.
Last, but not least, growing competitive
pressures, mainly from digitalisation. These
trends are driving transformation in banking
business models.

The UniCredit board of directors, who |
represent, is very focused on these topics.
Renewed in April, they bring diverse
professional experiences, including vast
economic and financial knowledde at both
national and international levels. Their active
involvement, through new insights and ideas,
allow our excellent management team,
expertly led by our CEQ, Jean Pierre Mustier,
to keep making UniCredit a successful
pan-European bank.

Our results demonstrate that we have made
the right choices. Where necessary, the group
has taken decisive actions, especially related
to non-recurring events, without compromising
on stability. We are optimistic for the future.

Progress on our strategic plan is ahead of
schedule. We are protecting the bank's capital
position and have accelerated the de-risking
process, which will allow us to complete the
rundown of non-performing legacies in three
years. We have achieved important results

on efficiency, risk management, process
simplification and the digitisation of services
we provide to customers — all through
significant investments.

To continue our progress in the transformation
of the bank, we will leverage on the new
transformation & innovation advisory board,
which gives us access to thought leaders

in technology and innovation. This team

will regularly debrief the UniCredit board of
directors.

Looking to 2019, we will continue to support
the “real economy” in the countries in which
we operate. As a simple, successful pan-
European commercial bank, UniCredit is
dedicated to supporting customers, contributing
to Europe’s economic and social development.
For example, we will remain focused on
supporting the growth of SMEs, the backbone
of the European economy, and our social
banking initiatives.

UniCredit is characterised by solidity, credibility
and a clear outlook on our future, distinguishing
the group in a challenging competitive
landscape. Thanks to the support of both our
shareholders and stakeholders, | am confident
that UniCredit will meet its goals, ensuring
sustainable profitability and an ever increasing
high level of service.

Sincerely,
Fabrizio Saccomanni

Chairman
UniCredit S.p.A.

DN
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Dear Shareholders,

Thank you for your valuable, ongoing support.
We have closed a second, successful year of
our Transform 2019 strategic plan. UniCredit is
a solid bank with strong capital ratios and an
unstinting focus on value creation for all of its
stakeholders through innovative commercial
actions, digital transformation, enhanced risk
manadement, transparent corporate governance
and key social impact banking initiatives —
based on ethics and respect. For us this means
doing the right thing.

As the banking industry continues to evolve,
UniCredit will stay focused on "what matters"
— the changing needs of our customers — to
protect the value of our business and ensure
sustainability.

Our strategy is One Bank, One UniCredit: we

are and will remain a simple, successful, pan
European commercial bank, with a fully plugged
in CIB, delivering a unique Western, Central and
Eastern European network to our extensive and
growing client franchise.

The combined energy, commitment and hard
work of all UniCredit team members is what
allows us to deliver tangible results. We confirm
our Transform 2019 targets: net profit target of
4.7 billion Euro and a RoTE of above 9 per cent,
with our Group Core RoTE above 10 per cent.

We will maintain a strong capital position by
generating solid profits and ensure we have a
comfortable MDA buffer. Our CET1 capital ratio
is fully loaded and compliant with all requlatory
requirements. The UniCredit Group fared well

in the EBA stress test results, with one of the

highest CET1 ratios compared to Eurozone peers.

In terms of asset quality, we have decisively
continued to de-risk our balance sheet,
completing the final phase of Project FINO.

Our disciplined risk management strategy is
ensuring improved asset quality as well as high
quality origination across the Group. We are
fully on track for the accelerated rundown of
our Non Core portfolio, brought forward by four
years to 2021.

We are leveraging on digitalisation to transform
our operating model, with an improved cost
reduction. We will continue to enhance the
customer experience through simpler processes,
ensuring greater efficiency and effectiveness.

We continue to maximise commercial bank
value thanks to a renewed and dynamic focus
on our clients, pursuing a multichannel strategy
with best-in-class products and services. Our
CIB is fully plugged into the Group’s strong
commercial banking and focused on supporting
the real economy.

Finally, | extend a warm welcome to Fabrizio
Saccomanni, our new Chairman. Fabrizio's
significant experience in international monetary
and financial cooperation, particularly in terms
of supervisory and regulatory knowhow, brings
great value to our Group.

Together we have started to actively prepare for
the next strategic cycle. We will focus on the
development of our business activities and the
continued optimisation of our processes, while
providing all colleagues with a best in class
work environment and experience, to continue
to attract the right people. This begins with an
even more energised leadership team, and a
changed leadership structure, that will bring this
new strategy to fruition.

We will keep working hard to ensure that
UniCredit remains a true pan-European winner.

Sincerely,

Jean Pierre Mustier
Chief Executive Officer
UniCredit S.p.A.

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 9



Ethics and respect: Do the right thing!

UniCredit’s Board and Senior Management consider that the way in which results are achieved
is as important as the actual results. Therefore, the following Group Principlest should duide all
employees’ decisions and behaviors irrespective of seniority, responsibility and geographical area:
“Ethics and respect: Do the right thing!”

Group Principles are designed to help all UniCredit employees, to quide their decision-making and their
behaviours towards all stakeholders in their day to day activities.

In particular, such Principles require:

« compliance with the highest ethics standards - beyond banking regulation and beyond the law -
in relationships with clients, colleagues, environment, shareholders and any other stakeholders;

« fostering a respectful, harmonious and productive workplace;

to best protect the Bank, its reputation and to be an employer and a counterparty of choice.

Group Principles underpin a set of core guidelines that further clarify expectations about the way to work
as One Team, One UniCredit and support employees in the fulfillment of UniCredit Five Fundamentals.
The spirit of each of these principles is extremely important and it will be the subject of more detailed
policies that will be developed or updated in the coming months.

Group principles in day to day activities EEXIEEIIrriirrr T T P PP

« Ethics as a quiding principle of fairness and respect towards all stakeholders in order to achieve
sustainable results.
UniCredit colleagues, irrespective of seniority, responsibility and geographical area, are expected to
do the right thing in their daily activities and to be fair towards all stakeholders to gain and retain
their trust.

« “Ethics and respect” is a guiding principle which applies to all Group policies.

The “Ethics and respect” principle is based on a long term view of the Group business activities
and relationships with stakeholders as well as a comprehensive view of the internal and external
working environment. Business policies require care to ensure that responsible sales approach work
in harmony with balanced, fair and respectful customer interactions, enabling the achievement
of sustainable business success and long-term targets. Targets and other business results are not
considered achieved if they are not met in compliance with the Group Principles, related policies
and the requirements that flow from them.

« “Ethics and respect” is a guiding principle for interactions amongst all Group employees.
UniCredit colleagues are expected to contribute in their daily activities toward creating and
maintaining a work environment that is as respectful and harmonious as possible, eliminating
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive behaviors and words. UniCredit must
contribute to assuring the respect for the rights, value and dignity of people and the environment.
All forms of harassment, bullying and sexual misconduct are unacceptable.
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» “Ethics and respect” is a guiding principle for the promotion of diversity and work life balance
which are considered valuable assets.
UniCredit colleagues are expected to assure a workplace where all kinds of diversity (e.g. age, race,
nationality, political opinions, religion, gender, sexual orientation) are not only respected, but also
proactively promoted as well as to contribute to an environment in which respect for, and attention

to, colleagues’ needs, health, work-life balance and well being are deemed essential to achieving
sustainable results.

» “Ethics and respect” is a duiding principle underpinning the reinforcement of a “Speak-up
culture” and anti-retaliation protection.
UniCredit is firmly committed to promoting an environment in which colleagues and third parties
feel comfortable engaging in open and honest communication. UniCredit encourages colleagues
and third parties to speak up and raise promptly good-faith concerns without fear of retaliation

relating to any situation that may involve unethical or illegal conduct or inappropriate interactions
with others.

1. Which substitute the former group values.
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Highlights

UniCredit is a simple successful pan-European Commercial Bank, with a fully pludded in CIB,
delivering a unique Western, Central and Eastern European network to our extensive client
franchise: 26 million clients.

UniCredit offers both local and international expertise providing its clients with unparalleled access
to leading banks in its 14 core markets as well as in other 18 countries worldwide.

UniCredit European banking network includes Italy, Germany, Austria, Bosnia and Herzegovina,
Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania, Russia, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia and Turkey.

v Financial Highlightsl ........................................................................

Operating income Total assets
€19,/723m  €831469m

Net profit (loss)

€3’892 m ..........................................................................

...................................................................... Common Equity Tier l ratio*

Shareholders' equity
€55,841 m - 1207%

Revenuesl (%) ................................................................................

® Commercial Banking Italy ® Italy
CEE Division 10 Germany
= ® B ® et
BUS?FI]ESS Commercial Banking Germany b_V Austria
LI nes Commercial Banking Austria REQIOHS

® Asset Gathering

21
21

1. Data as at December 31, 2018.
* Fully loaded CET1 ratio.
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A pan-European winner

European banks must continue to focus on their clients, supporting European companies aiming for
international growth. Achieving both reach and scale is important, to provide customers with efficient
products at the best possible price.

UniCredit is a successful pan-European banking group. We deliver the best products and services to
our 26 million clients in 14 core markets, responding to their concrete needs. Our geographically
diversified reach provides all our shareholders, clients and colleagues with greater security. And our
"One Bank, One UniCredit" strategic approach combines central guidance with local implementation,
to keep making our Group a pan-European winner.

Ach|evements 2018 .......................................................

Top Employers Institute: Top employer Europe 2018
Awarded thanks to local certification achieved in Buldaria, Croatia, Germany,
Italy and Russia
Y,
« The Banker: Bank of the Year in'ltaly 2018
« The Banker: Bank of the Year inBosnia 2018
Y,
Euromoney: Trade Finance Survey 2019
i #1 across 28 categories
BEST SERVICE . X ] , : i ; "
TRACE FhCE * Global Best Service Provider for: "All Services", "Advisory", "Financing/payments”,
ool * "Overall Execution" and "Products"
J
D|g|tal Partnerships .......................................................
e e
Key transaction partnerships Digital innovation for customers
» Apple Pay o Alexa in Austria, to bank through Amazon’s
« Samsung Pay voice assistant
» Alipay « U-days in Italy, to promote knowledge
+ Google Pay of digital payments and payment apps:
Apple Pay, Samsung Pay, Alipay, Google Pay
J »
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Business Growth

Our positive overall financial performance proves our good progress in strengthening the Group
through strategic business initiatives and a focus on digitalisation and process simplification,
leverading on best practices across the Group. This is already driving significant growth. As the
banking industry continues to evolve, we will maintain our focus on changing customer needs,
ensuring the future sustainability of our business.

In UniCredit, building the bank of tomorrow means:

« Constant focus on customer satisfaction and consistent service quality

« Continued review of processes to improve the customer experience and optimise cost,

with a strong focus on risk management
« Further revenues growth

Key Performance |ndicat0rs ..................................................

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

S 569%  542%  52-53%

L 1033%  767%  75%

Revenues 19.9€0bn 19.7€bn 19.8€0bn

14 2018 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCredit



a pan-European winner.

Improve

—Asset Quality

e —

Adopt Lean but Steering

Corporate Center 13.04
Transform :
Operating Model v
Strengthen and :
Optimise Capital V
Maximise Commercial :
Bank Value V¥ " 31.12
Transform 2019

Our strategy is clear and long%t’éfl‘“n: W_efajré*bjne Bank, One UniCred
pan-European commercial bank with a fully plugged in CIB delivering a u
and Eastern European network to-our extensive client franchise. We are and we'w

PROJECT FINO
Completion of final phase of Project Fino X

eeccececcceecsscescsccesssssessssseessssssecsssssssssesscssennl

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

New Chairman appointed (Fabrizio Saccomanni)
based on the Board presenting its own list of
candidates

R T T T P

GROUP CHIEF TRANSFORMATION OFFICER

Group Chief Transformation Officer appointed
(Finja Carolin Kitz)

EBA STRESS TEST

EBA stress test results: third highest CET1
ratio among systemic banks in the Eurozone

R T

NEW CLIENTS ACQUISITION
Over 1.9 million gross new clients acquired
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Banking
that matters.

We are dedicated to creating tandible value for all our clients, employees
and stakeholders by providing real solutions to real needs. Everything we
do is grounded on ethics and respect.




Preliminary notes

Starting from 2018, UniCredit prepares a single document called “Annual report and accounts 2018 replacing the two documents relating to the
UniCredit group consolidated financial statements and the UniCredit S.p.A. company financial statements.

The integration of the contents of the two previous financial statements into a single document has led to the elimination of duplications of the
qualitative information previously presented in both files and, in order to facilitate the reading, the adoption of a system of cross-references between
the chapters dedicated to the consolidated financial statements and the company ones, pursuant to which the contents of the single paragraphs
referenced are entirely reproduced in the paragraphs containing the reference.

General aspects

The UniCredit group’s Consolidated financial statements and UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements as at 31 December 2018 were drafted in
accordance with the IAS/IFRS international accounting standards, in compliance with the instructions of Banca d'ltalia in circular 262 of 22
December 2005 (and subsequent amendments). These instructions are binding for the accounts tables and the methods of completion, as well as
for the minimal content of the Notes to the accounts.

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of Other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash flow statement, the Notes to the accounts, as well as a Report on operations, the economic
results achieved, the Group’s financial situation and Annexes.

The Consolidated financial statements include:

e a section on Corporate Governance;

o the Consolidated financial statements certification pursuant to Art.81-ter of Consob Regulation No.11971/99 as amended;

o the Independent Auditor's Report pursuant to Art.14 of Legislative Decree No0.39 of 27 January 2010 and Art.10 of the EU Regulation
No0.537/2014.

UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements comprise the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in Shareholder’s Equity, the Cash flow statement, the Notes to the accounts as well as a Report on operation, the economic
results achieved, the Bank’s financial situation and Annexes.

UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements includes:

o the Annual financial statements certification pursuant to Art.81-ter of Consob Regulation No.11971/99, as amended;

o the Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors pursuant to Art.153 of Legislative Decree No.58/1998;

o the Independent Auditor's Report pursuant to Art.14 of Legislative Decree No.39 of 27 January 2010 and Art.10 of the EU Regulation
No0.537/2014.

UniCredit's website also contains the press releases concerning the main events of the period, the market presentation of Group results and the
UniCredit group Disclosure (Pillar Ill), this latter is subject of joint publication with this document.

For the declaration of a non-financial nature, refer to the Integrated Report published on the company website.
Any discrepancy between data disclosed in this report are solely due to the effect of rounding.

The following is the list of the incorporations of qualitative information by reference made by the Consolidated financial statements to the
Company financial statements:

PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED DESCRIPTION OF THE PART OF THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WHERE IS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DETECTABLE THE QUALITATIVE INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

WHERE A REFERENCE IS

PRESENT

Part B - Information on consolidated | The paragraph “Information about the units of Atlante Fund and Italian Recovery Fund” is incorporated by
balance sheet - Assets - Section 2- | reference to Part B - Balance sheet - Assets - Section 2 - Financial assets at fair value through profit or

Financial assets at fair value through | loss - Item 20 of the Notes to the accounts
profit or loss - ltem 20
Part B - Information on consolidated | The paragraph “Information about the shareholding in Banca d'ltalia” is incorporated by reference to
balance sheet - Assets - Section 3- | Part B - Balance sheet - Assets - Section 3 - Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
Financial assets at fair value through | income - Item 30 of the Notes to the accounts

other comprehensive income - Item
30
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Preliminary notes

Part B - Information on consolidated

Tax assets and tax liabilities - ltem
110 (Assets) and Item 60 (Liabilities)

balance sheet - Assets - Section 11 -

The qualitative disclosure of deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Parent company is incorporated by
reference to Part B - Information on balance sheet - Assets - Section 10 - Tax assets and tax liabilities -
Item 100 (Assets) and Item 60 (Liabilities) of the Notes to the accounts

Part B - Information on consolidated
balance sheet - Liabilities - Section
13 - Group shareholders’ equity -
Items 120, 130, 140, 150, 160, 170
and 180

The paragraphs “12.1 Share capital and treasury shares", “12.2 Share capital - Number of shares”,
“12.3 Capital: other information” and “12.5 Equity instruments: breakdown and annual changes” are
incorporated by reference to Part B - Information on balance sheet - Liabilities - Section 12 -
Shareholders’ equity - Item 110, 130, 140, 150, 160, 170 and 180 of the Notes to the accounts

Part C - Information on consolidated
income statement - Section 21 - Tax
expenses (income) for the period
from continuing operations - ltem
300

The qualitative disclosure of tax expenses (income) for the period of the Parent company is incorporated
by reference to Part C - Income statement - Section 19 -Tax expenses (income) for the period from
continuing operations - ltem 270 of the Notes to the accounts

Part E - Information on risks and
hedging policies - Section 2 - Risks
of the prudential consolidated
perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk -
Qualitative information

The qualitative disclosure with reference to governance issues, commercial policies and credit strategies
relating to the UniCredit S.p.A. perimeter, is incorporated by reference to paragraph of Part E -
Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 1 - Credit Risk - Qualitative information - 1. General
Aspects of the Notes to the accounts

The qualitative disclosure with reference to the Italian perimeter of UniCredit S.p.A., reporting to the
“Group Lending Office”, is incorporated by reference to Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies
- Section 1 - Credit Risk - Qualitative information - 2. Credit risk management policies - 2.1 Organisational
aspects of the Notes to the accounts

Part E - Information on risks and
hedging policies - Section 2 - Risks
of the prudential consolidated
perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk -
Quantitative information - E.
Prudential perimeter - Credit risk
measurement model

The quantitative information of UniCredit S.p.A. on Credit risk measurement model is incorporated by
reference to the paragraph in Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 1 - Credit Risk -
Quantitative information - F. Credit risk measurement models of the Notes to the accounts

Part E - Information on risks and
hedging policies - Section 2 - Risks
of prudential consolidated perimeter
- Section 2.5 - Operational risks

The paragraph “E. Other claims by customers” and the sub-paragraph “Diamond offer” are incorporated
by reference to the similar paragraphs of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 5 -
Operational risks of the Notes to the accounts

The following is the list of the incorporations of qualitative information by reference made by the Company financial statements to the

Consolidated financial statements:

PART OF THE COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WHERE A REFERENCE IS
PRESENT

DESCRIPTION OF THE PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WHERE IS
DETECTABLE THE QUALITATIVE INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERRENCE

Report on operations -
Introduction and highlights

The paragraph “Share information” is presented by reference to the paragraph “Share information” - Group and
UniCredit share historical data series of the Consolidated report on operations

The paragraph “Macroeconomic situation, banking and financial markets” is presented by reference to the
paragraph “Macroeconomic situation, banking and financial markets” - Group results of the Consolidated report
on operations

References of UniCredit official website where can be found Report on corporate governance and ownership
structure, Report on remuneration and Non-financial information are reported in Other information of the
Consolidated report on operations

The paragraph “Research and development projects” is presented by reference to the paragraph “Research and
development projects” - Other information of the Consolidated report on operations

The paragraph “Organisational model” is presented by reference to the paragraph “Organisational model” - Other
information of the Consolidated report on operations
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Preliminary notes

Report on operations -
Results of the year - Capital
and value management

The qualitative disclosure of “Principles of value creation and disciplined capital allocation”, “Capital ratios” for
information relating to transitional capital requirements and buffers for UniCredit group and “Capital
strengthening" are incorporated by reference to the same paragraphs in “Capital and value management” -
Group results of the Consolidated report on operations

Report on operations - Other
information

The paragraph “Group activities development operations and other corporate transactions”, with specific
reference to events relating to the parent company UniCredit S.p.A., is incorporated by reference to the same
paragraph “Group activities development operations and other corporate transaction” - Other information of the
Consolidated report on operations

The paragraph “Certifications and other communications” is incorporated by reference to the same paragraph
“Certifications and other communications” - Other information of the Consolidated report on operations

Report on operations -
Subsequent events and
Outlook

The paragraph “Subsequent events”, with specific reference to events relating to the parent company UniCredit
S.p.A., is incorporated by reference to the paragraph “Subsequent events” - Other information of the
Consolidated report on operations

The paragraph “Outlook” is incorporated by reference to the paragraph “Outlook” of the Consolidated report on
operations

Part B - Balance sheet -
Assets - Section 2 - Financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss - ltem 20

The paragraph “Information about the investments in the “Schema Volontario (Voluntary Scheme)” is
incorporated by reference to Part B - Information on consolidated balance sheet - Assets - Section 2 - Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - Item 20 of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part B - Balance sheet -
Assets - Section 7 - Equity
investments - ltem 70

Information relating to value in use determination, is incorporated by reference to the paragraph of Part B -
Information on consolidated balance sheet - Assets - Section 10 - Intangible assets - 10.3 Intangible assets:
other information - paragraph “Estimating cash flows to determine the value in use of the CGUs” of the Notes to
consolidated accounts

Part C - Income statement
Section 10 - Other
administrative expenses -
Item 160

The paragraph “Contributions to Resolution and Guarantee Funds” is incorporated by reference to the paragraph
“Contributions to Resolution and Guarantee Funds Part C - Consolidated income statement - Section 12
Administrative expenses - Item 190 of the Notes to consolidated accounts

The paragraph “DTA guarantee fees”, with specific reference to the parent company UniCredit S.p.A., is
incorporated by reference to the paragraph “DTA guarantee fees” Part C - Consolidated income statement -
Section 12 Administrative expenses - Item 190 of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part E - Information on risks
and hedging policies -
Introduction

The paragraph “Introduction” is incorporated by reference to the paragraph “Introduction” of Part E - Information
on risks and hedging policies of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part E - Information on risks
and hedging policies -
Section 1 - Credit risk -
Qualitative information

Qualitative information relating to “1. General aspects”, “2. Credit risk management policies”, “3. Non-performing
credit exposure”, “4. Commercial renegotiation of financial assets and forborne exposures” is partially
incorporated by reference to the same paragraph of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2
- Risks of prudential perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk - Qualitative information of the Notes to consolidated accounts

The paragraph “E.4 Covered bond transaction” is incorporated by reference to the paragraph “D.4 Covered bond
transaction” - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk - Qualitative information -
Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies of the Notes to consolidated accounts
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Preliminary notes

Part E - Information on risks
and hedging policies -
Section 2 - Market risk

Qualitative information as introduction (“Risk management strategies and processes”, “Structure and
organisation”, “Risk measurement and reporting systems”, “Hedging policies and risk mitigation”, “Internal model
for price, interest rate and exchange rate risk of the Regulatory trading book”) is incorporated by reference to
qualitative information of paragraph of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the
prudential consolidated perimeter - 2.2 Market risk of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Qualitative information of “2.1 Interest rate risk and price risk - Regulatory trading book”, “2.2 Interest rate and
price risk - Banking book” and “2.3 Exchange rate risk” is incorporated by reference to qualitative information of
paragraph of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the prudential consolidated
perimeter - 2.2 Market risk of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Quantitative information of paragraph “3. Regulatory trading portfolio: internal models and other methods for
sensitivity analysis” of Interest rate risk and price risk - Regulatory trading book and of “2. Internal models and
other methodologies for sensitivity analysis” of Exchange rate risk is incorporated by reference to qualitative
information of paragraph of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the prudential
consolidated perimeter - 2.2 Market Risk of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part E - Information on risks
and hedging policies -
Section 4 - Liquidity risks

Qualitative information is incorporated by reference to qualitative information of paragraph of Part E Information
on risks and hedging policies Section 2 - Risk of the prudential consolidated perimeter - 2.4 Liquidity risk of the
Notes to consolidated accounts

Part E - Information on risks
and hedging policies -
Section 5 - Operational risk -
Qualitative information

The paragraph “A. General aspects, operational processes and methods for measuring operational risk” is
incorporated by reference paragraph “A. General aspects, operational processes and methods for measuring
operational risk” of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the prudential
consolidated perimeter - 2.5 Operational risks of the Notes to consolidated accounts

The paragraph “B. Risks arising from legal disputes” is incorporated by reference to paragraph “B. Risks arising
from legal disputes” of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the prudential
consolidated perimeter - 2.5 Operational risks of the Notes to consolidated accounts

The paragraph “C. Risks arising from employment law cases” is incorporated by reference to paragraph “Risks
arising from employment law cases” of Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the
prudential consolidated perimeter - 2.5 Operational risks of the Notes to consolidated accounts

The paragraph “D. Risks arising from tax disputes is incorporated by reference to paragraph “D. Risks arising
from tax disputes” Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the prudential
consolidated perimeter - 2.5 Operational risks of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part E - Information on risks
and hedging policies -
Section 6 - Other risk

Qualitative information of paragraphs “Other risks included in Economic Capital’, “Reputational risk” and “Top
and emerging risk” is incorporated by reference to qualitative information in different paragraph of Part E -
Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risk of the prudential consolidated perimeter - 2.6 Other
risks of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part F - Shareholders’ equity

The paragraph “A. Qualitative information” is incorporated by reference to paragraph “A. Qualitative information”
of Part F - Consolidated shareholders’ equity of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part H - Related-party
transactions

The paragraph “Introduction” and the qualitative information of paragraph “2. Related-party transactions” are
incorporated by reference paragraphs “Introduction” and “2. Related-party transactions” of Part H - Related-party
transactions of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Part | - Share-based
payments

The paragraph “A. Qualitative information” and paragraph “B. Quantitative information - 1. Annual changes” are
incorporated by reference to paragraphs “A. Qualitative information” and “1 B. Quantitative information -1. Annual
changes” of Part | - Shared base payments of the Notes to consolidated accounts

Annex 4 - Securitisations -
qualitative tables

Information is incorporated by reference to information in Annex 3 - Securitisations - qualitative tables of the
consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated report on operations

Introduction and Group highlights

Introduction to the Consolidated report on operations of UniCredit group

This Consolidated report on operations illustrates the performance of the UniCredit group and related amounts and results. It includes financial
information such as Group highlights, Reclassified consolidated accounts and their Quarterly figures, Summary results by business segment, Group
and UniCredit share historical data series as well as a comment on “Group results”.

The information in this report is supported, in order to provide further information about the performance achieved by the Group, by some alternative
performance indicators (“API") such as: Cost/Income ratio, EVA, ROTE, Net bad loans to customers/Loans to customers, Net non-performing loans
to customers/Loans to customers, Absorbed capital, ROAC, Cost of risk.

Although some of this information, including certain APIs, is neither extracted nor directly reconciled with Consolidated financial statements, the
Consolidated report on operations, the Annexes and the Glossary provide explanatory descriptions of the contents and, in case, the calculation
methods used, in accordance with European Securities and Markets Authority Guidelines (ESMA/2015/1415) of 5 October 2015.

In particular in Annex 1 is included the reconciliation between the reclassified accounts and the mandatory reporting schedule, as required by
Consob Notice No.6064293 of 28 July 2006.

For information relating to related-party relations and transactions refer to the Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part H of Consolidated financial
statements of UniCredit group.

For a complete description of risks and uncertainties that the Group has to face in the current market situation refer to the specific paragraph of this

Consolidated report on operations and to the Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part E of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit
group.

Group highlights, alternative performance indicators and other measures

Income statement (€ million)
YEAR
2018 2017 % CHANGE
Operating income 19,723 19,941 -1.1%
of which:

- net interest 10,856 10,633 +2.1%

- dividends and other income from equity investments 738 638 +15.6%

- net fees and commissions 6,756 6,695 +0.9%
Operating costs (10,698) (11,338) -5.6%
Operating profit (loss) 9,025 8,603 +4.9%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (2,619) (2,939) -10.9%
Net operating profit (loss) 6,406 5,664 +13.1%
Profit (Loss) before tax 3,619 4,148 -12.7%
Group net profit (loss) 3,892 5473 -28.9%

The figures in this table refer to the reclassified income statement. The amounts related to year 2017 differ from the ones published at that time.
For further details refer to “Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified income statement”. In Annex 1 is included the reconciliation between

the reclassified accounts and the mandatory reporting schedule.
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Balance sheet (€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 % CHANGE

Total assets 831,469 836,790 -0.6%

Financial assets held for trading 65,231 74,686 -12.7%

Loans and receivables with customers 471,839 438,895 +7.5%

of which: non-performing loans 14,903 21,112 -29.4%

Financial liabilities held for trading 43,111 55,784 -22.7%

Deposits from customers and debt securities issue 560,141 561,498 -0.2%
of which:

- deposits from customers 478,988 462,895 +3.5%

- debt securities issue 81,153 98,603 -17.7%

Group shareholders' equity 55,841 59,331 -5.9%

Figures in this table refer to the reclassified balance sheet. The amounts related to year 2017 differ from the ones published at that time.

For further details refer to “Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified balance sheet”. In Annex 1 is included the reconciliation between the
reclassified accounts and the mandatory reporting schedule.

For further details on "non-performing loans" see paragraph "Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments" in this
Consolidated report on operations.

Profitability ratios

YEAR
2018 2017 CHANGE
EPS() (€) 1.712 2.794 -1.082
Cost/Income ratio® 54.2% 56.9% -2.6%
EVA®) (€ million) (850) (757) -93
ROTE® 8.1% 11.8% -3.7%
ROA®) 0.49% 0.69% -0.2%

Notes:

(1) Eamings per share. For further details refer to Part C - Section 25.

(2) Ratio between operating expenses and operating income.

(3) Economic value added equal to the difference between Net operating profit after tax (NOPAT) and the Cost of the absorbed capital.

(4) Annualised ratio between the net profit and the average tangible equity.

(5) Return on assets calculated as the ratio between Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group and Total assets pursuant to Art.90 of CRD IV.

The amounts relating to 2017 differ from the ones published at that time. For further details refer to “Reconciliation principles followed for the
reclassified income statement”.

Risk ratios
AS AT % CHANGE ON % CHANGE ON
12.31.2018 01.01.2018 12.31.2017  12.31.2018/01.01.2018  01.01.2018/12.31.2017
Net bad loans to customers/Loans to customers 1.2% 1.6% 2.2% -0.4% -0.5%
Net non-performing loans to customers/Loans to customers 3.2% 4.3% 4.8% -1.1% -0.5%

For the amounts refer to table “Loans to customers - Asset quality” in paragraph “Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments” of this Consolidated report on operations.
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Staff and branches

AS AT

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 CHANGE

Employees(") 86,786 91,952 -5,166
Branches( 3,815 4,030 215

of which:

- ltaly 2,466 2,663 -197

- Other countries 1,349 1,367 -18

Notes:

(1) "Full time equivalent" data (FTE): number of employees counted for the rate of presence. Employees of sub-group Koc Finansal Hizmetler AS are not included.

(2) Retail branches only. The branches of of sub-group Koc Finansal Hizmetler AS are not included.

Figures as at 31 December 2017 were restated accordingly to increase comparability.

Transitional capital ratios

AS AT
12.31.2018(%) 12.31.2017() CHANGE
Total own funds (€ million) 58,476 64,454 -5,979
Total risk-weighted assets (€ million) 370,180 356,100 +14,080
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 12.13% 13.73% -1.6%
Total Capital Ratio 15.80% 18.10% -2.3%

Notes:

(*) Transitional own funds and capital ratios including all transitional adjustments according to the yearly applicable percentages.

(**) UniCredit group has decided to not apply the IFRS9 transitional approach as reported in article 473a of the Regulation 575/2013/EU (CRR). Therefore the values shown fully reflect the impact arising from the application

of the IFRS9 principle.

For more details see paragraph "Capital and value management - Capital ratios" of this Consolidated report on operations.

Ratings
SHORT-TERM MEDIUM AND STANDALONE
DEBT LONG-TERM OUTLOOK RATING
Fitch Ratings F2 BBB negative bbb
Moody's Investors Service P-2 Baa1 stable ba1
Standard & Poor's A-2 BBB negative bbb

Ratings updated as at 31 January 2019.
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Changes occurred in the scope of consolidation

During 2018, with reference to the consolidation perimeter, the following overall changes have been recorded:

o the number of fully consolidated companies, including those ones classified as non-current assets and asset disposal groups based on accounting
principle IFRS5, present a decrease of 85 (4 incoming and 89 exited) changing from 590 at the end of 2017 to 505 at December 2018;

o the number of companies consolidated using the equity method, including those ones classified as non-current assets and asset disposal groups,
present a decrease of 12 (12 exited) changing from 66 at the end of 2017 to 54 at December 2018.

For further details see Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part A - Accounting Policies; A.1 - General, Section 3 - Consolidation scope and
methods and Part B - Consolidated balance sheet - Assets - Section 7 - Equity investments (Item 70).

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
As at 31 December 2018, the main reclassified assets, based on the IFRS5 accounting principle, as non-current assets and asset disposal groups
refer to:
o regarding the individual asset and liabilities held for sale:
- the subsidiary General Logistic Solutions LLC, the companies of the Card Complete Service Bank AG group and the associated companies
Oesterreichische Hotel-und TourismusBank Gesellschaft M.B.H. and Swancap Partners GmbH;
- the non-performing loans related to sale initiatives of portfolios;
- the real estate properties held by certain companies in the Group, mainly in Germany;
o regarding the data relating to groups of assets held for sale and associated liabilities, the companies of the Immobilien Holding group (Austria).

For additional information, reference is made to Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part B - Consolidated balance sheet - Assets - Section 12 -
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale (Item 120 - Assets and Item 70 - Liabilities).

Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consolidated balance sheet

The main reclassifications, whose amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this report, involve:

o the inclusion in “Loans to banks” of “Financial assets at amortised cost: a) Loans and receivables with banks” net of debt securities reclassified in
“Other financial assets” and of loans reclassified from “Other financial assets - Item 20 c)”;

o the inclusion in “Loans to customers” of “Financial assets at amortised cost: b) Loans and receivables with customers” net of debt securities
reclassified in “Other financial assets” and of loans reclassified from “Other financial assets - Item 20 c)”;

o the aggregation as “Other financial assets” of “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: b) Financial assets designated at fair value
and c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” net of loans reclassified in “Loans to banks and to customers”, of “Financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income” and of “Equity investments” with inclusion of debt securities from Loans to banks and customers -
Item 40 a) and b);

o grouping under “Hedging instruments”, both assets and liabilities, of “Hedging derivatives” and “Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items”;

o the inclusion of “Provision for employee severance pay”, “Provisions for risks and charges” and “Technical reserves” under “Other liabilities”.

The format of this Reclassified balance sheet is different from the one used in the financial year 2017 following the reclassification/aggregation of
item “Provisions for risks and charges” from a separate item to “Other liabilities” and of item “Revaluation Reserves” from a separate item to item
“Capital and Reserves’. The item “Financial investments” has also been renamed in “Other financial assets”. The comparative periods were restated
accordingly.

2017 figures were also restated following the reclassification of the component relating to debt securities from “Loans to customers” to item “Other
financial assets”.
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Reclassified consolidated balance sheet (€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE
ASSETS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Cash and cash balances 30,991 64,493 - 33,502 -51.9%
Financial assets held for trading 65,231 74,686 - 9,454 -12.7%
Loans to banks 69,850 70,983 -1,133 -1.6%
Loans to customers 471,839 438,895 +32,945 +7.5%
Other financial assets 152,310 147,496 +4,814 +3.3%
Hedging instruments 7,120 5,676 +1,444 +25.4%
Property, plant and equipment 8,408 8,449 -4 -0.5%
Goodwill 1,484 1,484 - -
Other intangible assets 2,024 1,902 +122 +6.4%
Tax assets 13,078 12,658 +419 +3.3%
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 1,800 1,111 +689 +62.0%
Other assets 7,334 8,958 - 1,624 -18.1%
Total assets 831,469 836,790 - 5,321 - 0.6%
(€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Deposits from banks 125,895 123,244 +2,651 +2.2%
Deposits from customers 478,988 462,895 +16,092 +3.5%
Debt securities issued 81,153 98,603 - 17,449 -17.7%
Financial liabilities held for trading 43,111 55,784 - 12,672 -22.7%
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 9,318 3,011 +6,307 n.m.
Hedging instruments 9,262 6,610 +2,652 +40.1%
Tax liabilities 825 1,093 - 268 -24.5%
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 540 185 + 355 n.m.
Other liabilities 25,609 25,141 +468 +1.9%
Minorities 927 894 +33 +3.7%
Group shareholders' equity 55,841 59,331 - 3,490 -5.9%
of which:

- capital and reserves 51,948 53,858 - 1,909 -3.5%

- net profit (loss) 3,892 5473 - 1,581 -28.9%
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 831,469 836,790 -5,321 - 0.6%
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Reclassified consolidated balance sheet - Quarterly figures (€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
ASSETS 12.31.2018  09.30.2018  06.30.2018  03.31.2018 | 12.31.2017  09.30.2017  06.30.2017  03.31.2017
Cash and cash balances 30,991 26,356 21,238 49,944 64,493 48,982 48,428 32,261
Financial assets held for trading 65,231 81,258 83,262 80,324 74,686 81,493 79,529 86,191
Loans to banks 69,850 76,289 73,004 70,324 70,983 67,888 65,225 77,968
Loans to customers 471,839 462,235 458,787 441,783 438,895 441,351 440,821 443,002
Other financial assets 152,310 150,232 148,841 142,917 147,496 145,775 147,686 151,886
Hedging instruments 7,120 5,225 5,700 5,688 5,676 5,665 5,975 6,231
Property, plant and equipment 8,408 9,106 9,077 9,115 8,449 8,812 8,947 9,054
Goodwill 1,484 1,484 1,484 1,484 1,484 1,484 1,484 1,484
Other intangible assets 2,024 1,873 1,864 1,872 1,902 1,790 1,763 1,687
Tax assets 13,078 12,257 11,998 12,110 12,658 13,347 14,252 15,293
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale 1,800 491 915 955 1,111 1,671 4,052 46,603
Other assets 7,334 7,253 7,740 7,461 8,958 8,841 8,966 9,424
Total assets 831,469 834,057 823,908 823,978 836,790 827,099 827,128 881,085
(€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018  09.30.2018  06.30.2018  03.31.2018 | 12.31.2017  09.30.2017  06.30.2017  03.31.2017
Deposits from banks 125,895 136,664 129,747 125177 123,244 128,110 129,844 138,581
Deposits from customers 478,988 469,044 456,094 456,959 462,895 438,334 433,017 437,996
Debt securities issued 81,153 79,493 87,567 93,369 98,603 106,383 110,664 109,103
Financial liabilities held for trading 43,111 51,920 52,454 48,685 55,784 58,806 55,505 60,631
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 9,318 8,736 8,524 8,575 3,011 2,960 3,045 3,027
Hedging instruments 9,262 5,508 6,254 5,881 6,610 6,859 7,245 8,202
Tax liabilities 825 1,039 1,066 1,140 1,093 1,190 1,188 1,443
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as
held for sale 540 49 79 196 185 161 618 36,031
Other liabilities 25,609 26,426 25,825 26,104 25,141 25,720 30,019 29,035
Minorities 927 869 837 941 894 872 822 4,312
Group shareholders' equity 55,841 54,309 55,462 56,950 59,331 57,705 55,161 52,723
of which:
- capital and reserves 51,948 52,144 53,325 55,838 53,858 53,033 53,308 51,816
- net profit (loss) 3,892 2,165 2,136 1,112 5473 4,672 1,853 907
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 831,469 834,057 823,908 823,978 836,790 827,099 827,128 881,085
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Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consolidated income statement

The main reclassifications, whose amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this report, involve:

o the inclusion in “Dividends and other income from equity investments” of “Profit (Loss) of equity investments valued at equity” and the exclusion of
“Dividends from held for trading equity instruments” which are included in “Net trading income”;

o the inclusion among “Net trading income” of net gains (losses) on trading, on hedge accounting, of net gains/losses on the financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and of gains/losses on disposal or repurchase of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

o the inclusion in the “Net other operating expenses/income”, excluding “Recovery of expenses” which is classified under its own item, the exclusion
of the costs for “Write-downs on leasehold improvements” classified among “Other administrative expenses” and inclusion of result of industrial
companies;

o presentation of “Payroll costs”, “Other administrative expenses”, “Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets” and “Other charges and Provisions” net of any “Integration costs” relating to the reorganisation operations, classified as a separate item;

o the exclusion from the “Other administrative expenses” of the Contributions to the Resolution Funds (SRF), the Deposit Guarantee Schemes
(DGS), the Bank Levies and the Guarantee fees for DTA reclassified in item “Other charges and provision”;

o the exclusion from “Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible and tangible assets” of property owned for investment and
those related to operating lease assets, which are reclassified respectively among “Net income from investments” and “Net other
expenses/income”;

o the inclusion in “Net income from investments” of write-downs and write-backs on financial assets at amortised cost and at fair value through other
comprehensive income - debt securities, gains (losses) on disposal of investments, gains (losses) on tangible and intangible assets measured at
fair value as well as gains (losses) on equity investments and on disposal of investments;

« in “Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments”, the inclusion of net losses/recoveries on financial assets at
amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income net of debt securities and the inclusion of commitments and financial
guarantees given on “Net provisions for risks and charge”.

2017 figures were restated:
o starting from March 2018 following the reclassification of interests from item “Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments” to item “Net interest” considering:
- the component linked to the interests due to time value unwinding, determined in the valuation of non-performing financial assets;
- the identification of interests income on the non-performing financial assets calculated on their net balance sheet exposure based on the related
interest rates;
o starting from September 2018 following the reclassifications:
- of some expenses that, as a result of change in contracts, were addressed from item “Other administrative expenses” to item “Net fees and
commissions”;
- of irrevocable payment commitments versus Resolutions and Guarantee funds in item “Other charges and provisions - of which: systemic
charges”.
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Reclassified consolidated income statement (€ million)
YEAR CHANGE
% AT CONSTANT
2018 2017 P&L % FX() RATES
Net interest 10,856 10,633 +223 +2.1% +2.6%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 738 638 +100 +15.6% +32.5%
Net fees and commissions 6,756 6,695 +60 +0.9% +1.1%
Net trading income 1,245 1,818 -573 -31.5% -31.7%
Net other expenses/income 130 156 -26 - 16.9% -17.6%
OPERATING INCOME 19,723 19,941 =217 -1.1% -0.2%
Payroll costs (6,423) (6,905) +482 -7.0% -6.8%
Other administrative expenses (4,157) (4,385) +228 -5.2% -5.0%
Recovery of expenses 685 760 -75 -9.9% -9.9%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible
and tangible assets (804) (807) +4 -0.5% -0.0%
Operating costs (10,698) (11,338) +639 -5.6% -5.4%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 9,025 8,603 +422 +4.9% +6.7%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments (2,619) (2,939) +320 -10.9% -10.3%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 6,406 5,664 +742 +13.1% +15.5%
Other charges and provisions (2,293) (1,064) - 1,229 n.m. n.m.
of which: systemic charges (846) (610) - 236 + 38.8% +39.2%
Integration costs 9) (147) +137 -93.7% -93.6%
Net income from investments (485) (305) -179 +58.8% +59.5%
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 3,619 4,148 - 529 -12.7% -9.4%
Income tax for the period 479 (609) +1,088 n.m. n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 4,098 3,539 + 559 +15.8% +19.4%
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets held for sale after tax 14 2,251 - 2,237 -99.4% -99.4%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 4,112 5,790 -1,678 -29.0% - 26.4%
Minorities (216) (313) +96 -30.8% -30.0%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP
BEFORE PPA 3,896 5477 - 1,581 -28.9% -26.2%
Purchase Price Allocation effect (3) 4) +1 -19.2% -19.2%
Goodwill impairment - - - - -
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 3,892 5,473 -1,581 -28.9% -26.2%

Note:
(*) Foreign Exchange.
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Reclassified consolidated income statement - Quarterly figures (€ million)
2018 2017
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Net interest 2,776 2,765 2,678 2,636 2,646 2,579 2,748 2,660
Dividends and other income from equity
investments 219 149 180 189 120 165 183 170
Net fees and commissions 1,659 1,628 1,722 1,746 1,682 1,588 1,726 1,699
Net trading income 159 277 331 478 384 381 462 590
Net other expenses/income 42 (5) 33 60 73 7 49 28
OPERATING INCOME 4,856 4,814 4,944 5,110 4,905 4,721 5,168 5,147
Payroll costs (1,601) (1,575) (1,612) (1,634) (1,701) (1,704) (1,744) (1,755)
Other administrative expenses (1,078) (985) (1,029) (1,065) (1,123) (1,074) (1,078) (1,110)
Recovery of expenses 165 173 185 163 246 171 167 176
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses
on intangible and tangible assets (203) (204) (199) (197) (214) (201) (199) (193)
Operating costs (2,718) (2,592) (2,655) (2,734) (2,793) (2,809) (2,854) (2,882)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 2,138 2,222 2,289 2,376 2,112 1,912 2,315 2,264
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (923) (696) (504) (496) (835) (677) (661) (766)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 1,215 1,526 1,785 1,880 1,277 1,235 1,654 1,498
Other charges and provisions (3711) (741) (662) (519) (193) (273) (135) (463)

of which: systemic charges (60) (148 (173 (465) 14 (157) (33) (434)
Integration costs (15) (3) (2) 11 (103) (31) (8) (5)
Net income from investments (52) (655) 205 17 (151) (5) (173) 24
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 778 127 1,325 1,389 830 926 1,338 1,054
Income tax for the period 998 (40) (258) (221) (66) (181) (143) (219)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 1,776 87 1,067 1,169 764 745 1,195 835
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets held for sale
after tax 1 (1) 15 (1) 96 2,126 (133 162
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 1,777 86 1,082 1,168 860 2,87 1,062 997
Minorities (49) (56) (56) (55) (58) (50) (116) (89)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP BEFORE PPA 1,728 30 1,025 1,113 802 2,821 946 909
Purchase Price Allocation effect - (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)
Goodwill impairment - - - - - - - -
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP 1,727 29 1,024 1,112 801 2,820 945 907

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 37



Consolidated report on operations

Reclassified consolidated accounts

Reclassified consolidated income statement - Comparison of Q4 2018/Q4 2017 (€ million)
Q4 CHANGE
% AT CONSTANT
2018 2017 P&L % FX() RATES
Net interest 2,776 2,646 +130 +4.9% +5.5%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 219 120 +99 +83.0% n.m.
Net fees and commissions 1,659 1,682 -23 -1.4% -1.1%
Net trading income 159 384 -225 - 58.6% - 59.0%
Net other expenses/income 42 73 -3 -42.8% -43.4%
OPERATING INCOME 4,856 4,905 -49 -1.0% +0.2%
Payroll costs (1,601) (1,701) +100 -5.9% -5.7%
Other administrative expenses (1,078) (1,123) +45 -4.0% -3.8%
Recovery of expenses 165 246 -81 - 33.0% - 33.0%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible
and tangible assets (203) (214) +11 -5.1% -4.7%
Operating costs (2,718) (2,793) +75 -2.7% -2.4%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 2,138 2,112 +26 +1.2% +3.8%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments (923) (835) -87 +10.5% +10.6%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 1,215 1,277 - 62 -4.8% -0.7%
Other charges and provisions (371) (193) -178 +92.1% +92.5%
of which: systemic charges (60) 14 -74 n.m. n.m.
Integration costs (15) (103) +88 - 85.8% - 85.6%
Net income from investments (52) (151) +99 -65.4% -64.9%
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 778 830 -52 -6.3% -0.1%
Income tax for the period 998 (66) +1,064 n.m. n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 1,776 764 +1,012 n.m. n.m.
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets held for sale after tax 1 96 -95 -99.3% -99.3%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 1,777 860 +917 n.m. n.m.
Minorities (49) (58) +9 -15.7% -15.4%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP
BEFORE PPA 1,728 802 +926 n.m. n.m.
Purchase Price Allocation effect (0) (1) +0 -58.8% -58.8%
Goodwill impairment - - - - -
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 1,727 801 +927 n.m. n.m.

Note:
(*) Foreign Exchange.
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Key figures by business segment (€ million)
COMMERCIAL  COMMERCIAL  COMMERCIAL GROUP CONSOLIDATED

BANKING BANKING BANKING CEE CORPORATE NON GROUP

ITALY GERMANY AUSTRIA DIVISION CiB FINECO CENTRE( CORE TOTAL

Income statement
OPERATING INCOME

Year 2018 7,257 2470 1563 4,262 3813 624 (205) (60) 19,723
Year 2017 7,442 2,694 1,583 4,186 4,113 586 (732) 68 19,941
OPERATING COSTS

Year 2018 (4,125) (1,704) (1,022) (1,566) (1,563) (246) (364) (109) (10,698)
Year 2017 (4,438) (1,810) (1,085) (1,543) (1,626) (233) (482) (120) (11,338)
OPERATING PROFIT

Year 2018 3131 766 542 2,697 2,249 378 (569) (168) 9,025
Year 2017 3,004 883 498 2,643 2,487 353 (1,213) (51) 8,603
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Year 2018 1,882 369 448 2,034 1,370 353 (1,638) (1,199) 3,619
Year 2017 1,775 631 445 1,855 2,003 315 (1,743) (1,133) 4,148

Balance sheet

CUSTOMERS LOANS®

as at 31 December 2018 145,645 84,463 44,971 65,344 80,448 2,805 3,271 6,629 433,576
as at 31 December 2017 137,437 80,749 44,336 59,966 71,647 1,927 2,729 14,223 413,014
CUSTOMERS DEPOS®

as at 31 December 2018 146,260 91,694 47375 65,744 45,281 22,157 2,985 528 422,024
as at 31 December 2017 140,935 91,582 46,487 62,406 47,775 20,059 3,634 914 413,791
TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS®

as at 31 December 2018 94914 36,062 23,314 86,277 81,040 2,372 34073 12,129 370,180
as at 31 December 2017 85,592 33,999 20,963 85,996 75,639 2,332 29,985 21,595 356,100
EVA

Year 2018 9 (44) 173 493 @1) 66 (506) (1,022) (850)
Year 2017 90 153 203 332 497 65 (1,103) (1,084) (757)

Costlincome ratio

Year 2018 56.9% 69.0% 65.3% 36.7% 41.0% 39.4% n.m. n.m. 54.2%

Year 2017 59.6% 67.2% 68.5% 36.9% 39.5% 39.8% n.m. n.m. 56.9%

Employees

as at 31 December 2018 29,669 9,208 4,873 24218 3,289 1,125 14,059 345 86,786

as at 31 December 2017 32,334 10,105 5,092 24,089 3,298 1,082 15,488 464 91,952
Notes:

(1) COO Services, Corporate Centre Global Functions, inter-segment adjustments and consolidation adjustments not attributable to individual segments.
(2) Net of repos and intercompany transactions.

Figures were recasted, where necessary, on a like-to-like basis to consider changes in scope of business segment and methodological rules.
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Group figures 2008 - 2018()

IAS/IFRS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Income statement (€ million)
Operating income 19,723 19,619 18,801 22,405 22,513 23,973 25,049 25,200 26,347 27,572 26,866
Operating costs (10,698) | (11,350)  (12,453) (13,618)  (13,838)  (14,801)  (14,979) (15460) (15483) (15,324 (16,692)
Operating profit (loss) 9,025 8,268 6,348 8,787 8,675 9,172 10,070 9,740 10,864 12,248 10,174
Profit (loss) before income tax 3,619 4,148 (10,978) 2,671 4,091 (4,888) 317 2,060 2,517 3,300 5,458
Net profit (loss) for the period 4,112 5790  (11,061) 2,239 2,669 (3,920) 1,687 644 1,876 2,291 4,831
Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group 3,892 5473 (11,790) 1,694 2,008 (13,965) 865 (9,206) 1,323 1,702 4,012
Balance sheet (€ million)
Total assets 831,469 | 836,790 859,533 860,433 844217 845838 926,827 926,769 929,488 928,760 1,045,612
Loans and receivables with customers 471,839 | 447,727 444,607 473,999 470,569 503,142 547,144 559,553 555,653 564,986 612,480
of which: non-performing loans 5787 9,499 10,945 19,924 19,701 18,058 19,360 18,118 16,344 12,692 10,464
Deposits from customers and debt
securities in issue 560,141 | 561,498 567,855 584,268 560,688 571,024 579,965 561,370 583,239 596,396 591,290
Shareholders’ equity 55,841 59,331 39,336 50,087 49,390 46,841 62,784 51,479 64,224 59,689 54,999
Profitability ratios (%)
Operating profit (loss)/Total assets 1.09 0.99 0.74 1.02 1.03 1.08 1.09 1.05 117 1.32 0.97
Cost/Income ratio 54.2 57.9 66.2 60.8 61.5 61.7 59.8 614 58.8 55.6 62.1
Note:
(*) Figures shown refer to the information published in the reference year.
Total assets
(€ billion)
1,200 7 4 046
J 929 929 927 927
1,000 846 844 860 860 837 831
800 ~
600 -
400 -
200
0 T T T
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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Share information

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Share price (€)()
- maximum 18.212 18.350 25.733 32.824 34.427 28.213 22440 65.912 76.243 87.212 151.942
- minimum 9.596 12.160 8.785 24.605 25.583 16.227 11.456 21.157 49.212 19.283 40.138
- average 14.635 15.801 13.820 29.509 30.015 22.067 16.520 42.923 63.702 59.078 99.949
- end of period 9.894 15.580 13.701 25.733 26.735 26.961 18.572 21.190 51.093 73.819 46.507
Number of outstanding shares (million)
- at period end(") 2,230 2,226 6,180 5,970 5,866 5,792 5,789 1,930 19,297.6 16,779.3 13,368.1
- shares cum dividend 2,220 2,216 6,084 5,873 5,769 5,695 5,693 1,833 18,330.5 18,329.5 13,372.7

of which: savings shares - 0.25 2.52 2.48 245 242 242 242 24.2 24.2 21.7
- averagel!) 2,229 1,957 6,110 5927 5,837 5,791 5473 1,930 19,101.8 16,637.8 13,204.6
Dividend
- total dividends (€ million) 726 - 706 697 570 512 () 550 550 *)
- dividend per ordinary share 0.320 - 0.120 0.120 0.100 0.090 () 0.030 0.030 ()
- dividend per savings share - 0.120 1.065 0.100 0.090 (%) 0.045 0.045 (**)

Notes:

(1) The number of shares is the exact one, existing at the end of the financial year, net of Treasury shares and includes 9.676 million of shares held under a usufruct contract signed with Mediobanca S.p.A.

(*) Following extraordinary corporate operations, which involve the detachment of rights, stock splitting or grouping, demerger operations and distribution of extraordinary dividends, the price of the shares can fluctuate so
much that they are no longer comparable. Thus, the time series hereby published are adjusted accordingly to restore the continuity of historical price series.

(**) 2008 dividend was paid with cash to savings shareholders (€0.025 per share, for a total amount of €0.5 million), and with newly issued shares (so-called "scrip dividend").

(***) As per Banca d'ltalia’s paper dated 2 March 2012, in keeping with the decision of UniCredit S.p.A.’s Board of Directors and in line with the intention announced to the Shareholders’ Meeting in 2012, UniCredit S.p.A. did
not pay any dividends with respect to its 2011 financial results.

In 2011 the following operations were carried out:

o the €2.5 billion free capital increase, through the allocation to capital of an equivalent amount transferred from the “Issue-premium reserve”;

o the reverse stock split of ordinary and savings shares based on a ratio of 1 new ordinary or savings share for every 10 existing ordinary or savings
shares;

o the elimination of the per-share nominal value of UniCredit shares (ordinary and savings).

In the first quarter of 2012 the capital increase of €7.5 billion equal to a number of shares issued of 3,859.602.938 was fully subscribed for.
Figures relating to the 2013 dividend are shown according to the specific Board of Directors’ reports on the distribution to Shareholders.

The Shareholders’ Meeting of 13 May 2014 approved a scrip dividend scheme under which the holders of ordinary shares and the holders of
savings shares will be allocated one new share for every sixty shares held and one new share for every eighty-four shares held, respectively.

The new shares were allocated through a free share capital increase, without prejudice to the shareholders’ right to opt for a cash payout (€0.10 for
each ordinary and savings share) in lieu of the allocation of the new shares.

The Shareholders' Meeting of the 13 May 2015, approved the payment of dividends in the form of a "scrip dividend", with the assignment to
shareholders who hold ordinary shares of one new share per fifty shares held, and to holders of savings shares one new share per seventy-two
shares held. The assignment of the new shares occurred following a free share-capital increase, without affecting the shareholders' right to request
payment of the dividend in cash (€0.12 per ordinary and savings share), in place of assignment of shares.

The Shareholders' Meeting also approved the partial distribution of 2014 and previous year profits, with payment of €0.945 per savings share, as
preferred dividend.

The Shareholders' Meeting of the14 April 2016, approved the payment of dividends in the form of a "scrip dividend", with the assignment to
shareholders who hold ordinary shares of one new share per twenty-three shares held, and to holders of savings shares one new share per fifty-four
shares held. The assignment of the new shares occurred following a free share-capital increase, without affecting the shareholders' right to request
payment of the dividend in cash (€0.12 per ordinary and savings share), in place of assignment of shares.

In 2017 the following operations were carried out:

o the reverse stock split of ordinary and savings shares based on a ratio of 1 new ordinary or savings share for every 10 existing ordinary or savings
shares;

o the €13,000 million fully subscribed capital increase, of which €16 million as share capital and €12,984 as share premium, through the issuance of
No.1,606,876,817 new ordinary shares.
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Shareholders' Meeting held on 4 December 2017 resolved mandatory conversion of the existing No.252,489 savings shares into ordinary shares
with a conversion ratio of No.3.82 ordinary shares each 1 savings share subject to the conversion, assigning newly issued shares and/or treasury
shares and in any case without variation of the share capital value. The conversion became effective at the end of the period for exercising the
withdrawal rights on 12 March 2018.

The Shareholders’ Meeting of 12 April 2018 approved the payment of dividends to the holders of ordinary shares a dividend of €0.32 for each share
outstanding and entitled to dividend at payment date, for a maximum amount of €726 million, from allocation of 2017 net profit.

Earnings ratios

IAS/IFRS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Shareholders' equity (€ million) 55,841 59,331 39,336 50,087 49,390 46,841 62,784 51479 64,224 59,689 54,999
Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group
(€ million) 3,892 5473 (11,790) 1,694 2,008 (13,965) 865 (9,206) 1,323 1,702 4,012
Shareholders' equity per share (€) 25.04 26.65 6.36 8.39 8.42 8.09 10.85 26.67 3.33 3.56 4.11
Price/Book value 0.40 0.58 4.30 0.61 0.63 0.67 0.34 0.16 3.06 4.14 237
Earnings per share(!) (€) 1.712 2.7% (1.982) 0.27 0.34 (2.47) 0.15 (5.12) 0.06 0.10 0.30
Payout ratio (%) 13.3 - 417 34.7 -4.1 59.2 - 416 323 *)
Dividend yield on average price per ordinary
share (%) 2.03 - 2.04 2.00 221 273 - 1.55 1.58 (*)

Notes:

(1) For further details refer to Part C - Section 25 Eamings per share.
(*) 2008 dividend was paid with cash to savings shareholders (€0,025 per savings share, for a total amount of €0.5 million), and with newly issued shares by free capital increase (so-called “scrip dividend”).

The amounts in the table are published "historical figures" and they should be read with reference to each single period.

The 2008 Earnings per share (EPS) figure published in the consolidated report as at 31 December 2008 was €0.30 and has been amended to €0.26
due to the increase in the number of shares following the capital increase (IAS33 paragraph 28). From 2009 net profit for the period used to
calculate EPS has been reduced for the following amounts related to disbursements, charged to equity, made in connection with the usufruct
contract signed with Mediobanca S.p.A. on UniCredit shares supporting the issuance of convertible securities denominated “Cashes”: €131 million
for 2009, €156 million for 2010, €172 million for 2011, €46 million for 2012, €105 million for 2013, €35 million for 2014, €100 million for 2015, €128
million for 2016, €32 million for 2017 and €93 million for 2018.

Earnings per share
€
4.00 1 2794
1.712
2.00 -

0.30 0.10 0.06 0.15 0.34 027 l
0.00 . ; , ; , : , : ,

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

-2.00
-1.98
-4.00

-6.00 - 5.12
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Macroeconomic situation, banking and financial markets

International situation

In the second half of 2018, the global recovery lost further momentum, but world gross domestic product (GDP) kept expanding at a pace of about
3.5%. The main source of uncertainty was represented by a deceleration in global trade amid rising trade tensions between the United States (US)
and China and expectations of tighter monetary policies, particularly in the US. Political uncertainty remained a key concern for investors, with the
populist tide blowing across the world. The US economy kept expanding at a fast pace, driven particularly by investment. In Japan, instead, the
economy struggled to show signs of a rebound and forced the Bank of Japan to maintain a highly accommodative policy stance, whereas growth in
the United Kingdom remained unscathed by the increasing Brexit uncertainty. In China, economic activity remained robust despite rising
protectionist threats from the US and a less interventionist government.

2018 has been a strong year for the US economy. With real GDP growth on track to match the 2.9% seen in 2015, the US has easily outpaced most
other advanced economies this year. Private consumption remained a key support for economic growth. In particular, household disposable income
continued to be lifted by the combination of a strong labor market and the boost from massive fiscal stimulus, while positive wealth effects continued
to push the savings rate lower. Capex spending was another bright spot in 2018, with business investment which rose by 6.4% between third quarter
2017 and third quarter 2018. Given the buoyant macroeconomic performance, the Fed has raised its policy rates four times in 2018, with fed fund
rates closing the year at 2.50%.

In the euro area, economic growth moderated in the second half of 2018, on the back of a deceleration in global trade, sharper-than-expected
slowdown in Germany, social unrest in France and the tough negotiations over the budget in Italy. The latest economic indicators point to a mild
growth expansion, with annualised real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth standing at 0.8%, on average, in second half 2018, as opposed to
1.6% in the first half of the year. This means that GDP reached 1.8% annual growth in 2018 from 2.5% in 2017. The ongoing underperformance of
indicators of foreign trade suggests that external factors have been the main source of weakness. In contrast, domestic demand (notably private
consumption and fixed investment spending) continued to expand at a decent pace.

Eurozone headline inflation peaked at 2.2% yoy in October 2018 and it seems on track to progressively ease from this level (the exact intensity and
timing of this will mainly depend on swings in oil prices). In December, the European Central Bank (ECB)'s Governing Council confirmed the end of
net asset purchases under the Asset Purchase Programme (APP), as it had first announced in June 2018, and it also indicated that it intends to
continue reinvesting, in full, the principal payments from maturing assets purchased under the programme “for an extended period of time past the
date when we start raising the key ECB interest rates”; it suggests that full reinvestments might continue until at least the end of 2020.

Banking and financial markets

The credit recovery in the euro area consolidated over the course of 2018. The rate of growth in loans to the private sector accelerated throughout
the year, in line with easing credit supply conditions and good demand for loans. At the end of the year, the annual growth rate of loans to the private
sector stood at 3.4%, compared to just below 3% at the end of 2017. This was mainly supported by a visible recovery of loans to non-financial
corporations, which had accelerated to 4% on yearly basis by the end of 2018. The ongoing improvement in credit aggregates was particularly
strong in Germany and Austria, both with respect to loans to non-financial corporations and to households. The growth of the credit aggregates in
these two countries continued to reflect the recovery in private consumption and fixed investment. In ltaly, on the other hand, corporate loans
showed some signs of weakness in the last quarter of 2018. This weakness was probably a reflection of lower demand for loans from companies.
This lower demand was due to the context of moderating investment growth and increasing domestic uncertainty, amid tensions in the financial
markets due to the government decision concerning the budget in September. Annual growth in loans to households stabilised at around 3%, in line
with the eurozone average.

As for bank funding at a system level, over the course of 2018, bank deposits maintained a sustained growth trend in all the three reference
countries, both in terms of household deposits and deposits of non-financial corporations. The persistently low interest rates continued to support the
increase in sight deposits, to the detriment of medium and long-term funding. Further, this trend of low interest rates still does not seem to be
reversing. This is consistent with the decision of the European Central Bank (ECB) to conclude its financial assets purchasing program in December
2018 without introducing changes to its forward-looking guidance for interest rates.
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As a consequence, bank interest rates broadly stabilised in all the three reference countries for the Group (ltaly, Germany and Austria) by the end of
2018, and interest rates on sight deposits in particular remained at levels close to zero. The bank interest rate spread (i.e. the difference between
the average interest rate on loans and the average interest rate on deposits) stabilised or gradually declined throughout the entire year.

In 2018, financial markets in the euro area saw a return to rising volatility on the back of greater uncertainty regarding growth prospects in the area
and the budget discussion in Italy. This uncertainty fueled an ongoing deterioration in the performance of the equity market, which became
particularly significant for Italy starting in May 2018 as domestic political uncertainty increased. In particular, the Italian stock exchange, after having
grown by roughly 10% between the beginning of the year and mid-May, ended the full year down by 16% compared to December 2017. The
performance of both the German stock exchange and the Austrian stock market was not entirely dissimilar, with declines of around 18% and 20%,
respectively, compared to December 2017.

CEE countries

Economic growth remained solid in most CEE countries in 2018 and is expected to have hit its cyclical peak. In 2019 growth is likely to slow due to
weakening global trade growth, a cyclical slowdown in the eurozone, capital outflows from emerging markets and weaker fiscal and credit impulses
in most countries. However, domestic demand will remain robust and ensure that growth stays above potential in all countries but Turkey.

In 2018, growth remained well above potential in EU-CEE, driven by consumption and investment. The former benefited from fast income growth
amid tightening labor market conditions and from loose monetary conditions underpinning strong credit growth. Labor shortages reached the highest
levels on record, especially in the Czech Republic, where vacancies exceeded unemployment, and in Hungary. These shortages are unlikely to be
solved if countries do not foster economic immigration in a similar fashion to Poland, which expanded the scope and the duration of work contracts
for non-EU citizens from the former Soviet Union and South-East Asia. As a result of tighter labor market conditions, wage growth continues to
outpace productivity in most EU-CEE countries. In addition, governments increased wages in the public sector before several rounds of elections,
especially in Romania and Hungary.

Investment rebounded as well, with EU fund inflows picking up, especially in Hungary and Poland. As the end of the current budget approaches,
absorption is likely to pick up in other countries as well. In 2018, private investment was dominated by real estate projects, with demand moving from
home buyers to investors, especially in capital cities and other economic centers. Productive investment recovered in most countries, with large
foreign investment projects announced in Slovenia and underway in car-producing countries like Hungary and Slovakia. At the same time, some
companies postponed a stronger capex expansion due to labor shortages and external risks. In Romania, tighter monetary conditions and an
uncertain tax outlook may have affected corporate borrowing.

Last year, economic growth reached 1.7% in Russia. Russia’s economic performance in 2018 was characterised by close to potential growth and
more volatility in sentiment, financial and monetary indicators. Higher oil prices for most of the year increased the current account surplus despite
larger imports. However, real export growth was outpaced by import growth, mitigating the positive impact on growth. In second half 2018, growth
fell closer to potential (which we estimate at around 1-1,5%) and the soft patch may continue in first half 2019 amid higher inflation and tighter
financial conditions leading to temporarily weaker consumption and investment. Economic policies are calibrated to ensure macroeconomic and
financial stability, rather than to boost potential growth. This means that potential growth is unlikely to rise from very low levels in the 2018-24
presidential mandate.

In Turkey, the economy started to contract in the third quarter of 2018, due to an overdue debt adjustment triggered by US sanctions imposed in
August. While political diplomatic tensions have eased, and financial markets stabilised in the last months of 2018, the downturn likely intensified in
the final quarter of 2018 as the private sector continued to delever at a rapid pace. As part of the adjustment, the currency depreciated, asset prices
fell and inflation accelerated above 25% in October, although it decelerated to 20% at the end of 2018 on the back of tax cuts, lower energy prices
and partial recovery of the currency. The government has been pushing for measures to boost lending and shore up economic activity in the run-up
to local elections expected at the end of first quarter 2019. Such steps would likely have limited impact on economic growth, but could weaken
investor trust

1 Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Romania, Slovakia and Slovenia.
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again, leading to renewed capital outflows. Growth will likely remain in the negative territory for most of 2019 and a rebound would be supported by
a financial backstop from international financial institutions.

The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey (CBRT) hiked the average cost of funding by more than 11pp in 2018. The bulk of this hike came in
September 2018, following the plunge of the currency in August. As inflation will likely resume the upward trend in the coming months, the CBRT is
expected to remain on hold for most of first half 2019. With disinflation expected to resume in mid-2019, rate cuts could follow amid large base
effects from 2018’s currency depreciation and weak pressure on prices from domestic demand.

Other central banks tightened monetary policy in 2018. The Central Bank of Russia (CBR) reversed first quarter 2018 cuts in September and
December 2018, reacting to the potential flare-up in inflation expectations from several supply shocks (RUB depreciation, higher food and fuel prices
and a 2pp VAT hike on 1 January 2019). The Czech National Bank (CNB) increased the benchmark repo rate from 0.50% to 1.75% as the CZK
failed to appreciate significantly against the EUR. The National Bank of Romania (NBR) hiked as well, from 1.75% to 2.50% and tightened liquidity
through FX interventions, pushing ROBOR rates above 3%, the highest levels in more than four years. The National Banks of Hungary (NBH) and
Poland (NBP) remained on hold at the expense of weaker currencies. The National Bank of Serbia (NBS) cut twice to 3%, bringing its policy rate to
the level of the inflation target.
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Main results and performance for the period?

Introduction

In 2018 the Group initiatives have continued to be oriented to the accomplishment of the plan’s founding goals of the strategic plan 2016-2019
“Transform 2019”, achieving the following tangible results:
 Strengthen and optimise capital
After having successfully completed the capital increase, the sale of subsidiaries (Pekao and Pioneer) and considering the net profit and balance
sheets dynamics of the year, the Group shows a strong capital position with the CET12 ratio (fully loaded) at 12.07% at 31 December 2018.
o Improve the asset quality

During the year the proactive risk reduction measures have continued, leading the Non-Performing Exposure (NPE) ratio to 7.67% at the end of

December, in comparison to the 9.80% of 1 January 2018 (following the new IFRS9 principle adoption), with a coverage ratio increased to 60.98%,

compared to 59.25% of the beginning of 2018.

o Transform the operating model

Also in 2018 the strict cost control carried out by the Group produced results well in advance compared to the plan’s timing.

The commercial network rationalisation has continued, with the branch closures that have reached 881 units (of which 62 in the last quarter of

2018) starting from 2015, corresponding to 93% of the 944 closures forecasted by 2019 in the strategic plan.

In the year the staff has been reduced by 5,166 FTEs, bringing the overall reduction to about 14,000 FTEs starting from the end of 2015 thus

achieving a year in advance the exits expected by 2019.

o Maximise commercial bank value

In the whole Group, commercial initiatives are ongoing, bringing tangible results. In particular during the first half of 2018 the following initiatives

have been mainly carried out:

- strengthening of the offer of mobile payments through the new partnership with Google Pay activated in the last quarter of the year in Italy and
Germany. The new app Google Pay has been added to Samsung Pay, Apple Pay and Alipay already previously activated;

- the distribution of the new product “My Care Family” started in November;

- UniCredit was one of the founding partners of we.trade consortium, the first blockchain trade platform able to offer cross-border instant
payments;

- strengthening of the Group digital offer through the new partnership with Meniga, firstly implemented in Italy and Serbia;

- extension of the end-to-end processes optimisation in Italy, that after the redesign of 11 products (among which current accounts, mortgages,
receivable financing, credit and debit card, asset under management) have been enlarged to two additional products (checks and asset under
custody);

- starting of the end-to-end products redesign program also in Germany, with a new in-branch account opening process for private banking
customers already activated and the redesign of residential mortgages process under development;

- release in ltaly of the new product “Easy Export”, supporting the ltalian companies internationalisation, leveraging on the new partnership with
Alibaba;

- increase of the remote sales (ATM, on line, mobile, call centre), that in Italy reached 28.8% of total sales of the bank’s products that have a direct
selling process;

- increase of the mobile user penetration in the CEE division, that reached 40.5% of the total clients.

o Adopt a lean but strong steering Group Corporate Centre
Referring to the Group Corporate Centre rationalisation, in 2018 its weight on total costs was equal to the 3.4%, decreasing by 85 basis points in
comparison to the previous year. The target set for the 2019 is 3.8% (recasted as at September 2018, previously 3.6%).

Also thanks to these initiatives, the Group in 2018 reached a net profit of €3,892 million, in comparison to a rectified net result of 2017 for €3,578
million.

It is worth reminding that the net profit of 2017 (equal to €5,473 million) has benefitted from the capital gains related to the sale of Pioneer for about
€2.1 billion and the Polish subsidiaries for €102 million, partially balanced by the reclassification through profit and loss of Bank Pekao negative
exchange effects as a result of dismissal occurred in the first half 2017 for -€310 million, by a non-recurring cost related to the FINO transaction for
-€80 million and by transfer price adjustments of Pioneer and Pekao for -€9 million. Furthermore has to be considered that the 2017 Group net result
was also including 130 million related to the economic results of Pioneer and Pekao achieved during the year, before the companies dismissal. Net
of these elements the Group net profit would have been €3,578 million.

2 The amounts related to 2017 differ from the ones published at that time. For further details refer to the paragraphs “Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified accounts”.
3 Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (CET1), calculated without taking into account the transitional adjustments applicable according to the regulation in force as at 31 December 2018.
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The 2018 Group net profit (€3,892 million) was instead affected in the third quarter of the year by the Koc Finansal Hizmetler Istanbul share

impairment for -€846 million (€851 million as at 31 December 2018) and by the extraordinary positive impact accounted in the fourth quarter of the

year for a total amount of €887million related to:

o the recognition through P&L of the temporary differences tax effect (€871 million) deriving from the change, due to new Italian Budgetary Law, of
the fiscal treatment related to the IFRS9 First Time Adoption on Loan Loss Provisions;

o the effect on IRAP current tax (€16 million) following the adoption of the abovementioned approach.

Excluding these extraordinary elements, during 2018 a net profit of €3,852 million would have been recorded, increasing by 7.7% in comparison to
the 2017 rectified net result (€3,578 million).

In case the positive tax effects related to IFRS9 First Time Adoption would have been recognised through equity, the 2018 Group net profit (€3,892
million) would have been equal to €3,006 million; 20% of this last amount is subject to proposal of dividend distribution to UniCredit Shareholders’
Meeting.

It should also be noted that according to the IFRS5 accounting principle, Pioneer and Bank Pekao, subject to disposal to third parties, have been
classified already since 2016 until the sale in 2017, as dismissal legal entities and their economic results have been accounted to item “Profit (Loss)
from non-current assets held for sale, after tax”, while their assets and liabilities have been respectively recognised under item “Non-current assets
and disposal groups classified as held for sale” and item “Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale”.

Always according to the IFRS5 accounting principle the positions involved by the “FINO Project” have been classified in 2016 and until the sale took
place in July 2017 as “Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale”.

Operating income
In 2018 Group’s revenues were €19,723 million, decreasing by 1.1% compared to 2017 (down by 0.2% at constant exchange rates).
The decrease was mainly due to the lower net trading income that more than balanced the improvements recorded by the net interest and fees.

In particular, net interest was equal to €10,856 million, increasing by 2.1% compared to 2017 (up by 2.6% at constant exchange rates).

It is worth remembering that the 2017 benefitted from a release of interests on fiscal related accruals in Germany with regards to the years
2005-2008, that proved to be in excess, for an amount of €90 million, while in 2018 an extraordinary amount of €20 million for fiscal accruals release
has been recorded. Net of this extraordinary components net interest would has registered an yearly growth of 2.8%. During the 2018 net interest
was characterised by the reduction of interests income on lending to customers, as well as by the time value component decline and by the increase
of the passive interests on deposits following the collection's volumes growth. These effects have been mainly balanced by the decrease of the
average cost of the bonds issues, as well as by the good result of treasury and investment & trading activities.

Credit spreads have continued to shrink also in 2018, notwithstanding the stabilisation of the market rates, remained anyway in a negative territory
(average 3 months Euribor in 2018 was equal to -0.32% increasing only by 1 basis point in comparison to 2017).

Net interests improvement has been generated by an upturning loans volumes’ dynamic (€471.8 billion as at 31 December 2018, up by €32.9 billion
or up by 7.5% over the last year), that more than offset the €7.6 billion reduction of the Non Core component, subject of the initiatives aimed to
reduce the Non-Performing Exposure (NPE).

The customer loans highlighted a positive trend also excluding the repos component, recording a 5.0% growth compared to the last year, or up by
7.1% net of the Non Core component.

All the different geographic areas in which the Group is operating have extensively contributed to the customers loans net of repos growth, with Italy
that shows an increase of 6.7%, net of Non Core Division contribution, compared to 2017, Germany up by 7.3% and Austria up 5.8%. The loans
improvement has characterised also the CEE Division’s countries (up by 12.2% at constant exchange rates), mainly driven by Russia (up by 29.0%
at constant exchange rates), Hungary (up by 17.8% at constant exchange rates), Serbia (up by 10.2% at constant exchange rates), Bosnia (up by
9.0%), Czech Republic (up by 6.6% at constant exchange rates) and Bulgaria (up by 6.2%).

Non Core Division recorded a further reduction of customers loans net of repos from €14.2 billion at the end of December 2017 to €6.6 billion at the
end of December 2018 (down by 53.4%), continuing to pursue the goal of the Division’s portfolio rundown by the 2021.

Deposits from customers, equal to €479.0 billion, have been growing by 3.5% (up by 4.0% at constant exchange rates) compared to 2017. The
increase has been confirmed also by the deposits from customers net of repos: up by 2.0% (up by 2.6% at constant exchange rates).

More specifically, the deposits from customers net of repos grew in Italy up by 3.0% (net of Non Core Division) and Austria up by 1.3%, while
Germany recorded a decrease of 0.7%. The CEE Division grew by 5.3% (up by 9.1% at constant exchange rates) compared to 2017, mainly driven
by Russia (up by 22.8% at constant exchange rates), Serbia (up by 18.8% at constant exchange rates), Hungary (up by 15.5% at constant
exchange rates), Bosnia (up by 10.3% at constant exchange rates) and Romania (up by 8.9% at constant exchange rates).
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Dividends and other income from equity investments (which include the profits of the companies accounted at equity method) in 2018 amounted to
€738 million, increasing by 100 million, or up by 15.6% (up by 32.5% at constant exchange rates) compared with 2017. Main incomes stemmed out
from dividends from Bank Pekao S.A. shares (€30 million) that have been however substantially balanced in the net trading income for the mark to
market valuation of Bank Pekao S.A. shares and for realised and unrealised effects of the linked “Secured mandatorily exchangeable equity-linked
certificate”), from an extraordinary gain of Camfin, consolidated with the equity method (€29 million) and from the disappearance of the charge
generated by the sale of Yapi Moscow recorded in 2017 (-€26 million).

The net fees and commissions in 2018 amounted to €6,756 million, growing by 0.9% (up by 1.1% at constant exchange rates) compared to the
previous year.

The growth has been determined by the transactional services fees (up by 10.4% in comparison to 2017; up by 10.7% at constant exchange rates),
thanks to the good performance of the current account fees and credit and debit cards fees.

The investment services fees were down, recording a 4.9% decrease in comparison to the 2017 (down by 4.8% at constant exchange rates), mainly
generated by the investment funds diminished sales in the field of the assets under management.

Financing services were decreasing too, resulting down by 1.9% compared to 2017 (down by 1.5% at constant exchange rates), mainly as an effect
of the lower commissions for “Money supply” and guarantees.

The net trading income in 2018 was firmly decreasing, moving from €1,818 million of 2017 to €1,245 million of the current year (down by 31.5% or
down by 31.7% at constant exchange rate), also due to the unfavourable market environment, affected by the temporary spread widening, that
caused a drop of the gains by the client activity and securities portfolio.

Given these changes in market conditions, in particular with reference to the volatility affecting the Italian Government bonds, a further allocation of
newly acquired government bonds was also carried out in the portfolio of financial assets valued at amortised cost, with an underlying model of
business aimed at the collection of contractual cash flows ("Held to collect"), which goes hand in hand with the traditional operations with an
underlying business model aimed at both the collection of contractual cash flows and the sale of the instruments ("Held to collect and sell ") and
determines the classification of the related securities in the portfolio "financial assets valued at fair value through other comprehensive income".

Finally, in 2018 the net other expensesf/income amounted to €130 million, down by €26 million over the 2017 (down by16.9% and down by 17.6% at
constant exchange rates).

Operating income (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE

2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018

Net interest 10,856 10,633 +2.1% 2,776 +0.4%
Dividends and other income from

equity investments 738 638 +15.6% 219 +46.7%

Net fees and commissions 6,756 6,695 +0.9% 1,659 +1.9%

Net trading income 1,245 1,818 -31.5% 159 -42.5%

Net other expenses/income 130 156 -16.9% 42 n.m.

Operating income 19,723 19,941 -1.1% 4,856 +0.9%

Operating costs

Group'’s operating costs in 2018 were equal to €10,698 million, decreasing by 5.6% compared to 2017 (down by 5.4% at constant exchange rates),
thanks to the continuation of the staff resizing initiatives and the administrative expenses control actions.

In detail, the staff expenses of 2018 were €6,423 million, decreasing by 7.0% over the 2017 (down by 6.8% at constant exchange rates).

This result was achieved mainly thanks to the resolute dynamic of employees reduction, characterised by a drop of 5,166 FTEs compared to the
2017, equal to a decrease of 5.6%.

The other administrative expenses, in 2018 amounted to €4,157 million, decreasing by 5.2% in comparison to 2017 (down by 5.0% at constant
exchange rates). Lower costs have been recorded mainly among the real estate expenses, mostly relating to the branch network rationalisation, the
communication and marketing expenses and the consulting expenses.

The expenses recovery in 2018 amounted to €685 million, decreasing in comparison to €760 million of the last year (-9.9%), in particular the drop
was mainly related to the lower credit inquiries of the Non Core Division that, consequently, have entailed the diminution of the correspondent
expense recoveries and to the lower expense recoveries from external data centers following the direct taking charge of some IT expenses by these
|atter.

Finally, the write-downs on tangible and intangible assets in 2018 amounted to €804 million, substantially stable in comparison to €807 million of
2017 (down by 0.5% or 0% at constant exchange rates).
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Operating costs (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE

2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018

Payroll costs (6,423) (6,905) -7.0% (1,601) +1.7%

Other administrative expenses (4,157) (4,385) -5.2% (1,078) +9.4%

Recovery of expenses 685 760 -9.9% 165 -4.8%
Write downs of tangible and

intangible assets (804) (807) -0.5% (203) -0.5%

Operating costs (10,698) (11,338) -5.6% (2,718) +4.9%

The good result achieved in terms of cost reduction deeply balanced the revenues decline, generating a Group gross operating profit of €9,025, up
by 4.9% compared to 2017 (up by 6.7% at constant exchange rates).
The cost income ratio of 2018 amounted to 54.2%, improving by 2.6 percentage points over the previous year.

Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments

Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments of the Group in 2018 were €2,619 million, compared to €2,939 million of
2017 (down by 10.9% or down by 10.3% at constant exchange rates).

The cost of risk was equal to 58 basis points, in comparison to 67 basis points of 2017.

In particular, Italy recording a cost of risk of 103 basis points, stable in comparison to 2017. Germany recorded 3 basis points, improving by 15 basis
points over last year, Austria accounted -11 basis points, improving by 12 basis points over last year, having both benefited from some write-backs.
CEE Division highlighted a cost of risk of 73 basis points, improving by 24 basis points in comparison to 2017.

The Group gross impaired loans at 31 December 2018 were decreasing by €7.5 billion compared to 1 January 2018 (post IFRS9 accounting
principle adoption), thanks to the continuous proactive risk reduction measures carried out.

Thanks to this decrease, the gross non-performing loans on total loans ratio improved, moving from 9.80% of the beginning of January 2018 (post
IFRS9 accounting principle adoption) to 7.67% of December 2018. Gross bad exposures stock was at €21.2 billion, decreasing by €4.2 billion over
the beginning of January 2018 (€25.4 billion).

The Group coverage ratio of the gross non-performing loans as at 31 December 2018 was furtherly improved by 173 basis points, reaching 60.98%
in comparison to 59.25% as at the beginning of January 2018 (post IFRS9 accounting principle adoption).

Loans to customers - Asset quality (€ million)
NON- TOTAL®)
BAD UNLIKELY PERFORMING NON- TOTAL
EXPOSURES TO PAY PAST-DUE PERFORMING PERFORMING LOANS
As at 12.31.2018
Gross exposure 21,154 16,196 840 38,190 459,473 497,663
as a percentage of total loans 4.25% 3.25% 0.17% 7.67% 92.33%
Writedowns 15,367 7,657 263 23,287 2,537 25,824
as a percentage of gross value 72.64% 47.28% 31.35% 60.98% 0.55%
Carrying value 5,787 8,539 577 14,903 456,936 471,839
as a percentage of total loans 1.23% 1.81% 0.12% 3.16% 96.84%
As at 01.01.2018™
Gross exposure 25,360 19,338 1,014 45,711 420,810 466,521
as a percentage of total loans 5.44% 4.15% 0.22% 9.80% 90.20%
Writedowns 18,289 8,436 359 27,085 2,732 29,817
as a percentage of gross value 72.12% 43.62% 35.44% 59.25% 0.65%
Carrying value 7,070 10,902 654 18,626 418,078 436,704
as a percentage of total loans 1.62% 2.50% 0.15% 4.27% 95.73%
As at 12.31.2017¢")
Gross exposure 27,775 19,470 1,105 48,349 419,797 468,146
as a percentage of total loans 5.93% 4.16% 0.24% 10.33% 89.67%
Writedowns 18,306 8,491 441 27,237 2,015 29,252
as a percentage of gross value 65.91% 43.61% 39.89% 56.33% 0.48%
Carrying value 9,469 10,979 664 21,112 417,782 438,895
as a percentage of total loans 2.16% 2.50% 0.15% 4.81% 95.19%

Notes:

(¥) The perimeter of non-performing loans is equivalent to the perimeter of EBA NPE exposures.

(**) The figures as at 1 January 2018 differ from the ones as at 31 December 2017 as a result of IFRS9 accounting principle adoption and of the exclusion of “Interessi di mora” components. The latter are excluded from
Gross exposures and Writedowns in accordance with the 5th update of Banca d'ltalia Circular 262 issued on 22 December 2017.

(***) The figures as at 31 December 2017 differ from the ones published at the reference date due to the exclusion of the debt securities.
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From net operating profit to profit before tax

The jointly improvements of the gross operating profit (€9,025 million in 2018) and net write-downs on loans (-€2,619 million in 2018), allowed to
reach in 2018 a Group's net operating profit amounting to €6,406 million, improving by €742 million compared to 2017 (up by 13.1% or up by 15.5%
at constant exchange rates).

Group's provisions for risk and charges were -€2,293 million, compared to -€1,064 million of 2017.

This item includes legal cases and estimated liabilities of various nature totalling -€1,447 million (included provisions for the alleged US sanctions
violations, refer to Notes to consolidated accounts Part E - 2.5 Operational risks - B. Legal risks paragraph “Financial sanctions matter” for further
details), in addition to the systemic charges, amounting to -€846 million. The latter include the contributions to the Single Resolution Fund (SRF), the
harmonised guarantee schemes charges (Deposits Guarantee Scheme - DGS) and the non-harmonised ones, as well as the Bank Levies.

Integration costs in 2018 were -€9 million, mainly thanks to releases on write-downs and works on properties undergoing disposal, accounted in the
first quarter in Austria, in comparison to -€147 million recorded in 2017.

Finally, net income from investments in 2018 was -€485 million, mainly due to the Yapi Kredi share impairment of the third quarter of the year for an
amount of -€846 million, that more than offset some companies and real estate dismissals, as well as the evaluations of this last, carried out in
Germany and Austria in the first half of the year. In 2017 the item had recorded -€305 million, referred to Atlante stake carrying value impairment for
-€137 million and some value adjustments on real estates and other impairments of shareholdings.

As an effect of the items mentioned above, in 2018 the Group registered a profit before tax of €3,619 million, compared to €4,148 million of 2017
(down by 12.7% or down by 9.4% at constant exchange rates). Adjusting the figures of both the years from the extraordinary items, the profit before
tax would amount to €4,466 million in 2018, increasing by 5.6% in comparison to €4.228 million of 2017. For extraordinary items refer to paragraph
“Introduction” of this section.

Profit before tax by business segment (€ million)
NET WRITE-
b]
o o NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX
OPERATING  OPERATING AND  OPERATING YEAR
INCOME COSTS PROVISIONS PROFIT 2018 2017
Commercial Banking Italy 7,257 (4,125) (1,046) 2,085 1,882 1,775
Commercial Banking Germany 2,470 (1,704) (145) 620 369 631
Commercial Banking Austria 1,563 (1,022) 25 567 448 445
Central Eastern Europe 4,262 (1,566) (457) 2,240 2,034 1,855
Corporate & Investment Banking 3,813 (1,563) (76) 2,174 1,370 2,003
Fineco 624 (2486) 4) 374 353 315
Group Corporate Centre (205) (364) 6 (563) (1,638) (1,743)
Non Core (60) (109) (921) (1,090) (1,199) (1,133)
Group Total 19,723 (10,698) (2,619) 6,406 3,619 4,148
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Profit (Loss) attributable to the Group

In 2018 Group’s income taxes line was positive for €479 million, in comparison to -€609 million of 2017.

It is worth remembering that the 2017 tax line benefitted from a release of fiscal provisions relating to the years 2005-2008 in Germany, for a net
amount of €80 million. The amount related to 2018 includes the extraordinary effects arising from the recognition through P&L of the positive tax
effects related to IFRS9 First Time Adoption on loan loss provisions for €887 million, of which €871 million related to deferred tax assets, further
additional positive impacts arising from fiscal provision releases in Germany for €127 million and other write-ups on Deferred Tax Assets in Italy for
€149 million and in Germany for €95 million.

Profit from discontinued operations net of taxes in 2018 was €14 million in comparison to €2,251 million of the last year, that mainly included the
capital gain related to the Pioneer disposal.

The profit for the period of 2018 was €4,112 million, in comparison to €5,790 million recorded last year.
Minorities, conventionally exposed with negative sign, were -€216 million, against -€313 million of 2017.
Purchase price allocation was -€3 million, compared to -€4 million of 2017.

Consequently, in 2018 the net profit attributable to the Group amounted to €3,892 million, compared to €5,473 million of 2017. Excluding the
extraordinary element from both the years, the 2018 would have recorded a net profit of €3,852 million, increasing by 7.7% in comparison to the
2017 rectified net result, equal to €3,578 million. For extraordinary items refer to paragraph “Introduction” of this section.

Profit (Loss) attributable to the Group (€ million)
YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 19,723 19,941 -1.1% 4,856 +0.9%
Operating costs (10,698) (11,338) -5.6% (2,718) +4.9%
Operating profit (loss) 9,025 8,603 +4.9% 2,138 -3.8%
Net write-downs on loans and
provisions for guarantees and
commitments (2,619) (2,939) -10.9% (923) +32.5%
Net operating profit (loss) 6,406 5,664 +13.1% 1,215 -20.4%
Other charges and provisions (2,293) (1,064) n.m. (371) -49.9%
Integration costs 9) (147) -93.7% (15) n.m.
Net income from investment (485) (305) +58.8% (52) -92.0%
Profit (Loss) before tax 3,619 4,148 -12.7% 778 n.m.
Income tax for the period 479 (609) n.m. 998 n.m.
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets
held for sale, after tax 14 2,251 - 99.4% 1 n.m.
Profit (Loss) for the period 4112 5,790 -29.0% 1,777 n.m.
Minorities (216) (313) - 30.8% (49) -12.3%
Net profit (loss) attributable
to the Group before PPA 3,896 5,477 - 28.9% 1,728 n.m.
Purchase Price Allocation effects (3) 4) -19.2% - - 65.5%
Goodwill impairment - - n.m. - n.m.
Net profit (loss) attributable
to the Group 3,892 5,473 - 28.9% 1,727 n.m.
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Capital and value management

Principles of value creation and capital allocation

In order to create value for the shareholders, the Group’s strategic guidelines are aimed at optimising the composition of the business portfolio.
This goal is pursued through a process of capital allocation to each business line in relation to its specific risk profile and ability to generate
sustainable earnings measured as EVA (Economic Value Added), which is the main performance indicator related to TSR (Total Shareholder
Return). Capital allocated to business segments is quantified applying internal capitalisation targets to regulatory capital requirements (Regulatory
Capital), with the exception of the capital allocated to Fineco which is determined as the highest between the Regulatory Capital and Internal
Capital, i.e. the capital needed to cover, with an high level of confidence, the risks faced by the Group measured according to internal models.

The development of Group operations with a view to value creation requires a process for allocating and managing capital governed by different
phases in the process of planning and control, articulated as:

 formulation of the proposed propensity for risk and capitalisation targets;

o analysis of the risks associated with the value drivers and resulting allocation of capital to the business lines and to the Business Units;

o assignment of performance targets in line with risk;

o analysis of the impact on the Group’s value and of the creation of value for shareholders;

o drafting and proposal of the financial plan, capital plan and dividend policy.

The Group dynamically manages its capital base by monitoring regulatory capital ratios, anticipating the appropriate changes necessary to achieve
its defined targets, and optimising the composition of its assets and equity. Planning and monitoring refer, on the one hand, to the total own funds
(Common Equity Tier 1, Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital) and, on the other hand, to the Risk-Weighted Assets (RWAs). The Risk-Weighted
Assets, for portfolios managed using the internal advanced models, do not only depend on the nominal value of the assets but also on the relevant
credit parameters. Besides volume dynamics, it is also crucial to monitor and forecast the change in the loan quality of the portfolio in view of the
macroeconomic scenario (the so-called pro-cyclical effect).

The economic and financial crisis, which began in 2007, has raised an intense debate on the need to promote a stronger financial system, more
resilient to external shocks. Therefore, over the last years, global regulators introduced a series of new regulatory requirements that have
contributed greatly to re-shape the financial markets landscape. In particular, in December 2010, the Basel Committee for Banking Supervision
(BCBS) published an additional series of significant changes relating to the global standard requirements for banking institutions on capital and
liquidity, also known as “Basel 3". The regulatory changes introduced by the Basel 3 framework define more stringent rules for capital requirements
levels and introduce for the first time liquidity and leverage limits. According to the Basel 3 framework, the new rules are introduced gradually in
order to allow the banking system to comply with the new requirements and contain the impact on the real economy. In Europe, the Basel 3
framework has been translated into law by means of two separate legislative instruments applied from 1 January 2014: Directive 213/36/EU (CRD)
and Regulation 575/2013/EU (CRR).

In addition, in December 2013 Banca d'ltalia published Circular 285, which updated and adjusted to the new international regulation framework the
rules applicable to Italian banks and banking groups. In addition, Council Regulation 1024/2013/EU of 15 October 2013 (Regulation “SSM” - Single
Supervisory Mechanism) conferred specific tasks on the European Central Bank concerning policies relating to the prudential supervision of credit
institutions. Over the years, several regulations delegated by the Commission and regulations of the European Central Bank were published with the
aim of disciplining specific regulatory issues.
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Capital ratios

Transitional own funds and capital ratios (€ million)
AS AT

12.31.20180) ") 12.31.20170)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 44,903 48,880
Tier 1 Capital 50,488 54,703
Total own funds 58,476 64,454
Total RWA 370,180 356,100
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 12.13% 13.73%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 13.64% 15.36%
Total Capital Ratio 15.80% 18.10%

Notes:

(*) Transitional own funds and capital ratios including all transitional adjustments according to the yearly applicable percentages.
(**) UniCredit group has decided to not apply the IFRS9 transitional approach as reported in article 473a of the Regulation 575/2013/EU (CRR). Therefore the values shown fully reflect the impact arising from the application
of the IFRS9 principle.

The negative change with respect to 31 December 2017 (equal to about €4 billion on Common Equity Tier 1 Capital and about €6 billion on Total
own funds), in addition to the effects related to the first application of new IFRS9 accounting principle and the profit of the period recognised in
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital net of 2018 dividends proposal, mainly reflects: (i) negative change related to the reserve on capital instruments and
debt securities measured at fair value (equal to €1.6 billion) that mainly reflect: the trend related to the valuation of Italian Government bonds, (ii)
negative change related to the exchanges reserve (for €1.1 billion) mainly referred to the depreciation of Ruble and Turkish Lira, (iii) with reference
to the Total Own Funds, also the effect related to the maturity/redemption of subordinated instruments classified in Additional Tier 1 Capital and Tier
2 Capital’.

The capital requirements applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2018 in coherence with CRR article 92 are the following (Pillar 1):

o Common Equity Tier 1 Capital: 4.50%
o Tier 1 Capital: 6.00%
o Total Capital: 8.00%

In addition to such requirements, the Group shall also meet, through Common Equity Tier 1 Capital, the following additional requirements:

® 2.00%, as Pillar 2 Requirements for 2018 in coherence with Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP) resullts;

* 1.875%, as Capital Conservation buffer* according to CRDIV article129;

¢ 0.75%, as Global Systemically Important Institutions buffer®;

« 0.06%, as Countercyclical Capital buffer® according to the CRDIV Article 160 (paragraphs from 1 to 4), to be calculated on a quarterly basis’.

Therefore, as at 31 December 2018, the Group shall meet the following overall capital requirements:

e Common Equity Tier 1 Capital: 9.19%
o Tier 1 Capital: 10.69%
o Total Capital: 12.69%

4 On October 2016, Banca d'ltalia published the update of the Circular No.285 which provides for a different application of the transitional rules relating to the capital conservation buffer: such buffer is 1.875% for 2018; and
from 1 January 2019 will be 2.50%.

5 To be increased by 0.25% per year ill the target of 1.00% in 2019. Note that UniCredit group was identified by the Banca d'ltalia as an O-SII authorised to operate in Italy, and it has to maintain a CET1 capital buffer equal
to 0.25% for 2018; such level will be increased starting by 0.25% on a yearly basis reaching the target of 1.00% in 2021. Nevertheless, it is worth mentioning that according to the CRDIV article 131.14, the higher of the G-SlI
and the O-SlI buffer will apply: hence, UniCredit group is subject to the application of 0.75% G-SII buffer for 2018.

6 Amount rounded to two decimal numbers. With reference to 31 December 2018: (1) countercyclical capital rates have generally been set at 0%, except for the following countries: United Kingdom (1,00%); Czech Republic
(1.00%); Hong Kong (1.875%); lceland (1.25%); Norway (2.00%); Sweden (2.00%); Slovakia (1.25%); Lithuania (0.5%); (II) with reference to the exposures towards Italian counterparties, Banca d'ltalia has set the rate equal
to 0%.

7 In coherence with the transitional regime granted by Banca d'ltalia, for 2018 institution-specific countercyclical capital buffer consists of CET1 capped to 1.875% of the total RWA of the institution.
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Below a scheme of UniCredit group transitional capital requirements and buffers which also provide evidences of TSCR (Total SREP Capital
Requirement) and OCR (Overall Capital Requirement) related to the outcome of the SREP process held in 2017 and applicable for 2018:

2018 Transitional capital requirements and buffers for UniCredit group

REQUIREMENT CET1 T TOTAL CAPITAL
A) Pillar 1 Requirements 4.50% 6.00% 8.00%
B) Pillar 2 Requirements 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
C) TSCR (A+B) 6.50% 8.00% 10.00%
D) Combined capital buffer requirement, of which: 2.69% 2.69% 2.69%
1. Capital Conservation buffer (CCB) 1.875% 1.875% 1.875%
2. Global Systemically Important Institution buffer (G-SlI) 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%
3. Institution-specific Countercyclical Capital buffer (CCyB) 0.06% 0.06% 0.06%
E) OCR (C+D) 9.19% 10.69% 12.69%

The above mentioned requirements are the ones which are relevant for MDA purposes for UniCredit group as at 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2018, UniCredit group’s ratios are compliant with all the above requirements.

The profit eligible as at 31 December 2018, equal to €3,892 million is recognised in the Own Funds for 3,287 million, resulting after i) the destination,
approved by the Board of Director, to dividends for €601 million, correspondent to the 20% of the rectified Group net profit (equal to €3,006 million),
excluding the positive extraordinary impact linked to the tax effects deriving from the change of the fiscal treatment related to First Time Adoption of
IFRS9 (€887 million) and ii) the social and charity initiatives for €4 million. The net profit 2018 as at 31 December 2018 is included in Common
Equity Tier 1 Capital following the authorisation by the competent Authority according to CRR Article 26(2).

Capital strengthening

With the €13 billion fully subscribed capital increase approved and finalised in the first few months of 2017 which involved the issue of
No.1,606,876,817 new ordinary shares, one of the fundamental pillars of the 2016-2019 Strategic Plan was successfully completed with a significant
strengthening of the Group's capital ratios.

On 7 February 2018 UniCredit's Board of Directors, pursuant to the powers conferred by the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of 11 May 2013,
the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of 13 May 2014, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of 13 May 2015 and the Extraordinary
Shareholders' Meeting of 14 April 2016, resolved to increase the share capital by €59,848,665.00 by issuing No.3,519,352 ordinary shares to be
granted to the employees of UniCredit and of Group banks and companies; the resolution to increase the share capital has been registered with the
Company Register on 9 April 2018 and the fully subscribed and paid-up share capital of UniCredit S.p.A. currently amounts to €20,940,398,466.81
and is divided into No.2,230,176,665 ordinary shares with no nominal value.

On 12 March 2018, the mandatory conversion of savings shares into ordinary shares, approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting and by
the Special Meeting of Savings Shareholders on 4 December 2017, became effective under the plan to strengthen corporate governance and
simplify the share capital structure of the Bank's share capital. The conversion of all savings shares issued and outstanding (No0.252,489), based on
the conversion ratio approved by the Shareholders' Meeting, involved: i) the issue of N0.964,507 new ordinary shares with regular economic rights
according to the conversion ratio of 3.82 ordinary shares for each savings share converted and i) the payment in cash of the premium to the holders
of savings shares in the amount of €27.25 for each share converted.

As regards the equity instruments (Additional Tier 1) that contribute to strengthening the Tier 1 Ratio of UniCredit S.p.A. during the year 2018 no
new issues were made.
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Shareholders’ equity attributable to the Group

The Shareholders’ equity of the Group, including the net profit of the period equal to €3,892 million, amounted to €55,841 million as at 31 December
2018, compared to €59,331 million as at 31 December 2017.

The statement of changes in shareholders’ equity is included in the consolidated accounts.

The following table shows the main changes occurred in 2018.

Shareholders' equity attributable to the Group (€ million)
Shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2017 59,331
Change in opening balance(! (3,327)
Change in the valuation reserve relating to the financial assets and liabilities at fair value® (1,181)
Dividends distributed and other allocations (715)
Change in the valuation reserve of the companies accounted for using the equity method® (838)
Exchange differences reserve (388)
Change in the valuation reserve relating to the actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit plans (302)
Changes in reserve for the unsustainable amount of Tax Losses Carried Forward deferred tax assets (TLCF)®) (275)
Change in the valuation reserve related coupon on AT1 instruments (242)
Change in the valuation reserve relating to cash flow hedges (130)
Other changes 16
Net profit (loss) for the period 3,892
Shareholders' equity as at 31 December 2018 55,841
Notes:

(1) This impact includes the re-measurement effects resulting from the first time adoption of the accounting principle IFRS9.

(2) Mainly referring to government bonds.

(3) The negative change in the valuation reserve of the companies accounted for using the equity method is mainly due to the depreciation of the items in Turkish Lira.
(4) This effect is mainly due to the negative impact of the Ruble for €352 million.

(5) This impact includes the write down of Deferred Tax Assets for Tax Losses Carried Forward due to the update of sustainability test.

For further information, refer to section “Consolidated accounts - Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity”.

Reconciliation parent company UniCredit S.p.A. - Consolidated accounts

The following table reconciles the Parent Company’s shareholders’ equity and Net profit to the corresponding consolidated figures.

Reconciliation parent company UniCredit S.p.A - Consolidated accounts (€ million)
SHAREHOLDERS' of which:

EQUITY NET PROFIT

Balance as at 31 December 2018 of parent company UniCredit S.p.A. 50,836 2,458
Consolidated contribution: 4,684 4,871
- fully consolidated subsidiaries 1,451 3,811

- investments valued at equity method 3,233 1,060
Reverse of ordinary dividends received in the period: - (3,072)
- fully consolidated subsidiaries - (2,894)

- investments valued at equity method - (178)
Other consolidation adjustments 1,248 (149)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 (minorities included) 56,768 4,109
of which Group 55,841 3,892
of which minorities 927 216
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Commercial Banking Italy
Commercial Banking Italy is composed by UniCredit S.p.A. commercial network related to Core clients (excluding Large Corporate and Multinational
clients, supported by Corporate and Investment Banking Division), Leasing (excluding Non Core clients), Factoring and local Corporate Center with

supporting functions for the Italian business. In relation to individual clients (Households and clients of specialised network Private Banking),
Commercial Banking Italy’ s goal is to offer a full range of products and services to fulfill transactional, investments and credit needs, relying on
branches and multichannel services provided thanks to new technologies.In relation to corporate customers, Commercial Banking Italy operates
trying to guarantee both the support to the economic and entrepreneurial system and the profitability and quality of its portfolio.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
COMMERCIAL BANKING ITALY 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 7,257 7,442 -2.5% 1,747 -0.6%
Operating costs (4,125) (4,438) -7.1% (1,022) +0.7%
Net write-downs on loans (1,046) (975) +74% (298) -5.9%
Net operating profit 2,085 2,029 +2.7% 427 +0.2%
Profit before tax 1,882 1,775 +6.0% 345 -25.5%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 145,645 137,437 +6.0% 145,645 +1.5%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 146,260 140,935 +3.8% 146,260 +0.6%
Total RWA Eop 94,914 85,592 +10.9% 94,914 +7.2%
EVA (€ million) 9 90 - 89.8% (105) n.m.
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 10,988 10,348 +6.2% 11,475 +4.0%
ROAC +12.1% +11.9% +0.2 p.p. +7.3% -6.0 p.p.
Cost/Income +56.9% +59.6% -2.8p.p. +58.5% +0.8 p.p.
Cost of Risk 74 bps 72 bps 3 bps 83 bps - 6 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 29,669 32,334 -8.2% 29,669 -2.1%

Commercial Banking Germany

Commercial Banking Germany provides all German customers (excluding Large Corporate and Multinational clients, supported by Corporate and

Investment Banking Division) with a complete range of banking products and services through its branch network.

Commercial Banking Germany holds large market shares and a strategic market position in retail banking, in private banking and especially in
business with local corporate customers (including factoring and leasing).

The segment also includes the local Corporate Center, which performs tasks as sub-holding towards other sub-group legal entities.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
COMMERCIAL BANKING GERMANY 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 2,470 2,694 -8.3% 621 +3.0%
Operating costs (1,704) (1,810 -5.9% (429) +3.9%
Net write-downs on loans (145) (125) +15.9% (106) n.m.
Net operating profit 620 758 -18.2% 85 -59.7%
Profit before tax 369 631 -41.5% 47 +2.0%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 84,463 80,749 +4.6% 84,463 -1.5%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 91,694 91,582 +0.1% 91,694 +4.6%
Total RWA Eop 36,062 33,999 +6.1% 36,062 -0.6%
EVA (€ million) (44) 153 n.m. 77 n.m.
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 4433 4,383 +1.1% 4,616 +4.0%
ROAC +8.1% +13.4% -5.3p.p. +14.3% +9.7 p.p.
Cost/Income +69.0% +67.2% +1.8 p.p. +69.2% +0.6 p.p.
Cost of Risk 17 bps 15 bps 2 bps 50 bps 60 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 9,208 10,105 -8.9% 9,208 -1.3%
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Commercial Banking Austria

Commercial Banking Austria provides its Austrian customers (excluding Large Corporate and Multinational clients, supported by Corporate and
Investment Banking Division) with a complete range of banking products and services. It is composed of: Retail, Corporate (excluding CIB clients,
but including the product factories Factoring and Leasing), Private Banking (with its two well-known brands Bank Austria Private Banking and
Schoellerbank AG) and the local Corporate Center. Retail covers business with private individuals, ranging from mass-market to affluent customers
and business customers. Corporate covers the entire range of SMEs, medium-sized and large companies which do not access capital markets
(including real estate and public sector).

A broad coverage of the Retail and Corporate business lines is ensured through its nation-wide branch network.

Commercial Banking Austria holds significant market shares and a strategic market position in retail banking, private banking and especially in
business with local corporate customers and is one of the leading providers of banking services in Austria.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
COMMERCIAL BANKING AUSTRIA 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 1,563 1,583 -1.3% 376 -6.7%
Operating costs (1,022) (1,085) -5.9% (260) +8.3%
Net write-downs on loans 25 17 +49.0% )] -71.8%
Net operating profit 567 515 +10.1% 110 -21.5%
Profit before tax 448 445 +0.7% 99 -23.1%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 44,971 44,336 +1.4% 44,971 +1.1%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 47,375 46,487 +1.9% 47,375 +1.6%
Total RWA Eop 23,314 20,963 +11.2% 23,314 +7.6%
EVA (€ million) 173 293 -40.9% 39 -24.0%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 2,648 2,754 -3.9% 2,701 +3.3%
ROAC +16.0% +20.1% -4.1p.p. +14.5% -4.3p.p.
Cost/Income +65.3% +68.5% -3.2p.p. +69.0% +9.6 p.p.
Cost of Risk -5bps -4 bps -2bps 6 bps -15bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 4,873 5,092 -4.3% 4,873 -0.4%

CEE Division

The Group operates, through the CEE business segment, in 12 Central and Eastern Europe countries: Azerbaijan, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Bulgaria,
Croatia, the Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania, Russia, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia and Turkey, having in addition Leasing activities in the 3 Baltic
countries. The CEE business segment through its branches offers a wide range of products and services to retail, corporate and institutional clients
in these countries.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
CEE DIVISION 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 4,262 4,186 +1.8% 1,112 +11.8%
Operating costs (1,566) (1,543) +1.5% (412) +6.3%
Net write-downs on loans (457) (584) -21.7% (160) +751%
Net operating profit 2,240 2,059 +8.8% 540 +4.7%
Profit before tax 2,034 1,855 +9.7% 475 -7.5%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 65,344 59,966 +9.0% 65,344 +1.8%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 65,744 62,406 +5.3% 65,744 +5.1%
Total RWA Eop 86,277 85,996 +0.3% 86,277 +0.4%
EVA (€ million) 493 332 +48.4% 111 -9.1%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 10,628 10,876 -2.3% 10,530 -0.6%
ROAC +15.7% +13.9% +1.9p.p. +15.2% -0.6 p.p.
Cost/Income +36.7% +36.9% -0.1p.p. +37.1% -1.9p.p.
Cost of Risk 73 bps 97 bps - 24 bps 98 bps 40 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 24,218 24,089 +0.5% 24,218 -0.2%
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CiB

The CIB Division targets mainly Large Corporate and Multinational clients with highly sophisticated financial profile and needs for investment
banking services, as well as institutional clients of UniCredit group. Moreover CIB acts as products and solutions provider for the commercial
network, provides structured financing, hedging and treasury solutions for corporate and investment products for private and retail, according to the
“CIB fully plugged-in concept’. The organisational structure of CIB is based on a matrix that integrates market coverage (carried out through an
extensive network in Western, Central and Eastern Europe and an international network of branches and representative offices) and product offering
(divided into three Product Lines - Financing and Advisory, Markets, Global Transaction Banking - that consolidate the breadth of the Group’s CIB
know-how).

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 3,813 4,113 -7.3% 937 +2.3%
Operating costs (1,563) (1,626) -3.9% (412) +11.3%
Net write-downs on loans (76) (275) -72.4% (157) +94.6%
Net operating profit 2,174 2,212 -1.7% 368 -20.8%
Profit before tax 1,370 2,003 -31.6% 293 n.m.
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 80,448 71,647 +12.3% 80,448 +1.3%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 45,281 47,775 -5.2% 45,281 -14.2%
Total RWA Eop 81,040 75,639 +7.1% 81,040 -0.8%
EVA (€ million) (21) 497 n.m. 14 n.m.
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 10,007 9,317 +7.4% 10,230 -0.3%
ROAC +9.0% +15.4% -64p.p. +9.4% +5.7 p.p.
Cost/Income +41.0% +39.5% +1.5p.p. +44.0% +3.5p.p.
Cost of Risk 7 bps 27 bps - 20 bps 54 bps 25 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 3,289 3,298 -0.3% 3,289 -0.7%

Fineco

FinecoBank, the multichannel bank of the UniCredit group, is one of the most important FinTech banks in Europe. It offers from a single account
banking, credit, trading and investment services though transactional and advisory platform developed with proprietary technologies, and combined
with one of the largest financial advisory network in Italy. Fineco is a bank leader in brokerage in Europe, and one of the most important player in
Private Banking in Italy, offering tailor-made advisory services.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)

YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
FINECO 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income 624 586 +6.5% 160 +4.9%
Operating costs (246) (233) +5.4% (61) +2.7%
Net write-downs on loans 4 5 -18.1% (2) n.m.
Net operating profit 374 347 +7.6% 96 +4.8%
Profit before tax 353 315 +12.1% 91 +21.4%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 2,805 1,927 +45.6% 2,805 +9.6%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 22,157 20,059 +10.5% 22,157 +2.3%
Total RWA Eop 2,372 2,332 +1.7% 2,372 -0.1%
TFAs Outstanding Stock (eop) 69,337 67,185 +3.2% 69,337 -2.2%
TFAs Net Sales 6,226 5,958 +4.5% 1,444 +21.8%
EVA (€ million) 66 65 +2.3% 17 +26.8%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 185 118 +56.2% 224 +12.1%
ROAC +45.3% +62.7% -174p.p. +39.5% +3.1 p.p.
Cost/Income +39.4% +39.8% -04pp. +38.3% -0.8p.p.
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 1,125 1,082 +3.9% 1,125 +2.8%

58 2018 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCredit



Consolidated report on operations

Group results

Non Core

Non-core segment reports separately assets that the Group considers not strategic and with a poor fit to the Group’s risk-adjusted returns
framework. These businesses are managed with the final goal of reducing the overall exposure in the course of time and to improve the risk profile.
Specifically, the segment includes selected assets of Commercial Banking Italy (identified on a single deal/client basis) to be managed with a risk
mitigation approach and some special vehicles for securitisation transactions.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators (€ million)
YEAR % 2018 % CHANGE
NON CORE 2018 2017 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2018
Operating income (60) 68 n.m. (52) n.m.
Operating costs (109) (120 -9.4% (28) -4.5%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees
and commitments (921) (962) -4.2% (189) - 13.4%
Net operating profit (1,090) (1,013) +7.6% (270) +8.8%
Profit before tax (1,199) (1,133) +5.8% (355) +42.0%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 6,629 14,223 -53.4% 6,629 -25.3%
Customers depos (net Repos and IC) 528 914 -42.3% 528 -31.6%
Net Impaired Loans (percentage of total net loans Non-
Core) 99.93% 78.36% n.m. 99.93% 1725.0 bps
Total RWA Eop 12,129 21,595 -43.8% 12,129 -13.8%
EVA (€ million) (1,022) (1,084) -5.8% (255) +12.8%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 1,986 2,899 -31.5% 1,642 -11.0%
ROAC -40.5% -26.5% -14.0p.p. -51.1% -13.0 p.p.
Cost/Income n.m. n.m. n.m. n.m. n.m.
Cost of Risk 910 bps 585 bps 325 bps 975 bps 55 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 345 464 - 25.6% 345 - 12.6%
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Report on corporate governance and ownership structure

Within the meaning of Art.123-bis par.3 of the Legislative Decree No.58 dated 24 February 1998, the “Report on corporate governance and
ownership structure” is available in the “Governance” section of the UniCredit website (http://www.unicreditgroup.eu).
An explanatory chapter on the corporate governance structure is likewise included below in this document (“Corporate Governance”).

Report on remuneration

Pursuant to Art.123-ter of the Legislative Decree dated 24 February 1998 No.58 and of Art.84-quater, of the Consob Issuers’ Regulations, the
“Report on remuneration” is available on UniCredit's website (http://www.unicreditgroup.eu).

Non-financial information

Pursuant to articles 3 and 4 of Legislative Decree 254/2016, the Integrated Report, published on UniCredit website (http://www.unicreditgroup.eu)
constitutes the Non-financial Declaration.

Research and development projects

In 2018, UniCredit S.p.A.’s Research & Development Department primarily focused on:

o the production of a low latency e-Trading FX platform, commissioned by the CIB Division;

o the production of a tool for Operations Division that extract and categorise meaningful data from garnishments documents;

o the production of a tool for HR Rewards & Benefits that support the Share Ownership, Netting and Cashing process of Group Senior Management;
o the production of a new platform for GTB Division that connects all UniCredit customers with reciprocal payments and collections;

o researching FPGA-based hybrid architectures and how those can be employed to accelerate computations in the financial domain.

Group activities development operations and other corporate transactions
Transactions and initiatives involving shareholdings

Constitution of UniCredit myAgents S.r.l.

In February 2018 UniCredit myAgents S.r.l., a company wholly owned by UniCredit S.p.A., was set up to carry out the activity of an agency in
financial activities, mainly acting as an accelerator for the recruiting and training of collaborators for the expansion of its distribution network agency,
in order to contribute to the development of the Italian commercial bank business. The company, after having completed the fulfillment of the
administrative requirements and the inclusion in the list of Agents in financial activities, has started its operations since April 2018.

Yapi Kredi rights issue

In April 2018, Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. (“Yapi Kredi”) announced its capital strengthening plan and, in particular, the increase of the bank’s capital
via a rights issue of about 4.1 billion Turkish Lira.

The holding UniCredit S.p.A. has participated in such rights issue via Kog Financial Services, joint venture between UniCredit S.p.A. and Kog Group,
which is the controlling shareholder of Yapi Kredi. Kog Financial Services has actually subscribed the rights issue of Yapi Kredi, slightly increasing
its shareholding to 81.9% from previous 81.8%. UniCredit S.p.A. has supported Kog Financial Services in such transaction, subscribing
proportionally Kog Financial Services’s rights issue together with the other shareholder (50% each).

Sale of the investment in i-Faber S.p.A.

On 30 April 2018, the holding UniCredit S.p.A. concluded the disposal of its 100% shareholding in i-Faber S.p.A. to Accenture Managed Services
Sp.A.

The investment was classified among assets held for sale (IFRS5) as at 31 December 2017 while in April 2018 UniCredit reached 100%
shareholding in the company, acquiring the remaining shares from previous minorities shareholders.
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Start of operations of Asset Management Company

In May 2018 Fineco Asset Management (FAM), an investment company under the Irish law (Asset Management Company) dedicated to the
management of UCITS (Collective Investment Savings Bodies) entirely controlled by FinecoBank, received from the Central Bank of Ireland the
authorisation to perform the asset management business.

FAM, whose mission is to manage Funds of Funds using strategic partnerships with the best international managers, was appointed the manager of
some Luxembourg and Irish “umbrella funds” UCITS.

Disposal of Italian pawncredit business

On 1 July 2018, the holding UniCredit S.p.A. completed the disposal of its Italian pawncredit business to Dorotheum. The transaction envisaged a
consideration of €141 million, paid by Dorotheum at closing, and a potential earn-out in favor of UniCredit S.p.A. up to €9 million, to be paid after
three years. In third quarter 2018 the transaction generated a positive impact for UniCredit S.p.A. of about €100 million in the Consolidated accounts
and of almost 4 bps on the consolidated CET1 ratio.

UniCredit group increases to 10.3% its strategic stake in Kepler Cheuvreux
In second half 2018 UniCredit group completed the increase of its strategic stake in Kepler Cheuvreux to 10.3%, following the signing of a binding
agreement in first half 2018.

Sale initiatives of non-performing portfolios

The portfolios’ sale is part of the overall UniCredit group's on-going strategy to reduce non-performing exposure ("NPE") and to sell Non Core assets
aimed at strengthening its risk profile as part of UniCredit group's Transform 2019 plan.

Zagrebacka Banka sells non performing credit portfolio to B2 KAPITAL

On 15 June 2018 Zagrebacka Banka reached an agreement with B2 Kapital d.o.o., part of group B2 Holding ASA, Norway, in relation to the disposal
on a non-recourse basis (pro-soluto) of a portfolio composed of non-performing exposures towards corporate and private individual customers.

The portfolio consists entirely of Croatian loans with gross book value of about €233 million. The disposal was completed during July 2018.

UniCredit announces the sale of an Italian Consumer unsecured non-performing credit portfolio

On 20 June 2018 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. reached an agreement with MBCredit Solutions ("MBCS") in relation to the disposal on a
non-recourse basis (pro-soluto) of a non-performing unsecured consumer credit portfolio, in Italy. The portfolio consists entirely of Italian unsecured
consumer credits with a gross book value of approximately €124 million.

UniCredit and MBCS also reached an agreement for the sale of additional non-performing loans of the same type that were generated starting from
the second quarter of 2018. In the second half of 2018, therefore, loans were sold for a total of €101 million gross of value adjustments.

UniCredit announces the sale of an Italian non-performing legacy portfolio

On 18 July 2018 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. reached an agreement with IFIS NPL (Banca IFIS group) in relation to the disposal on a non-
recourse basis (pro-soluto) of a legacy non-performing unsecured and secured portfolio towards SME and Private Individuals ("the Portfolio").

The Portfolio is composed by non-performing exposures owned partially by UniCredit S.p.A. and partially by Arena NPL One S.r.l. (a securitisation
vehicle transferee of the securitised loans originated by UniCredit, of which the latter holds all the issued Asset Backed Securities).

The Portfolio consists entirely of Italian credits with an aggregate claim value of approximately €537 million (of which gross book value of
approximately €348 million) as at 31 December 2017.

UniCredit announces the sale of non-performing loans portfolio composed by loans to small &

medium sizes enterprises

On 21 September the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. announced that has reached an agreement with IFIS NPL (Banca IFIS Group) in regards to
the disposal, on a non-recourse basis (pro-soluto), of a non-performing loan portfolio composed by loans to small and medium sized enterprises
"SMEs" ("the Portfolio") with an aggregate claim value of approximately €1.09 billion (of which gross book value of approximately €870 million) as at
31 December 2017. The Portfolio includes unsecured claims as well as claims secured by personal guarantees and/or by second/junior ranking
mortgages.
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UniCredit Bulbank sells Bulgarian non-performing credit portfolio to DCA, part of the B2Holding

group

On 28 September 2018 UniCredit UniCredit Bulbank (Bulgaria), reached an agreement with DCA, part of the B2Holding group, to on a non-recourse
basis (pro-soluto) sell a portfolio composed of secured and unsecured non-performing loans granted by UniCredit Bulbank to private individuals,
SME's and Corporate customers.

The portfolio consists entirely of Bulgarian loans with a legal claim value of approximately €249 million.

AO UniCredit Bank sells Russian non-performing credit portfolio to 000 EOS, part of the EOS
group

On 24 October 2018 AO UniCredit Bank (Russia), reached an agreement with EOS on a non-recourse basis (pro-soluto) to sell a portfolio
composed of consumer/car non-performing loans granted by AO UniCredit Bank to private individuals customers.
The portfolio consists entirely of Russian loans with a Legal Claim value of approximately €101 million.

UniCredit announces the sale of an Italian Small Medium Enterprise unsecured non-performing

loans portfolio

On 29 November 2018 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. announces an agreement with a securitisation vehicle managed by J-Invest S.p.A.
("J-Invest") and with a securitisation vehicle managed by Banca Interprovinciale S.p.A. ("lllimity") in relation to the disposal of a portfolio of Italian
Small and Medium Enterprise non performing unsecured loans, on a non-recourse basis (pro-soluto).

The portfolio consists entirely of large tickets Italian exposures with a total gross claim value ("Claim") of approximately €590 million. J-Invest has
bought a portion of the portfolio with a Claim Value of approximately €384 million and lllimity has bought the portion with a Claim Value of
approximately €206 million.

UniCredit announces the sale of an Italian Small Medium Enterprise secured non performing credit
portfolio

On 30 November 2018 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. signed an agreement with an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC ("Fortress") in
relation to the disposal of a portfolio of Italian Small and Medium Enterprise secured non-performing loans, on a non-recourse basis (pro-soluto).
The portfolio consists entirely of Italian exposures with a gross claim value of approximately €675 million as at 31 March 2018.

UniCredit Leasing S.p.A. announces the sale of an Italian leasing unsecured non-performing credit
portfolio

On 19 December 2018 UniCredit Leasing S.p.A. announced an agreement with Guber banca S.p.A. in relation to the disposal of a portfolio of Italian
leasing unsecured non-performing loans, on a non-recourse basis (pro-soluto).
The portfolio consists entirely of Italian exposures with a gross claim value of approximately €170 million as at 31 July 2018.

Other information on Group activities

Agreement with the Italian trade unions - "Youth Plan”

On 1 February 2018 UniCredit group, mainly the parent company UniCredit S.p.A., signed a "Youth Plan" with Italian trade unions to employ roughly
550 young people with permanent contracts or apprenticeships. The "Youth Plan" foresees 1:1 re-hiring for any exit. These positions will be part of a
generational turnover to meet operational and development needs, primarily in the Bank's commercial network.

Erg S.p.A.

In April 2018, through an accelerated book-building, UniCredit S.p.A. completed the sale of a 4% stake held in Erg S.p.A for a total consideration of
€111.84 million, with a gain at consolidated level of €17.5 million. With this transaction, UniCredit S.p.A. completed the path launched with the
investment in ERG Renew S.p.A. in 2014.
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FINO Project

During 2018 Phase 2 of the FINO Project was completed, aimed to the progressive sale to third party investors of the ABS securities linked to the
respective securitisation transactions of the receivables, in order to bring the total value of securities subscribed to by the parent company UniCredit
S.p.A. below the 20% threshold. This Phase, already initiated in the last months of 2017, was completed at the end of January 2018 with the
settlement and transfer to the purchasing investors of the ABS securities. The sales transactions resulted in a negative financial out-turn of around
€5 million, attributable entirely to the transaction costs incurred, and documented in the UniCredit S.p.A.’s 2018 income statement. As at 31
December 2018, following the redemptions made, the Notes relating to the FINO Project owned by UniCredit S.p.A. amounted totally about €290
million (about €230 million recorded under item "30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income" pertaining to the Senior
securities and in part to the Mezzanine securities, and €60 million recorded under item "20. c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value" in
connection with the remaining Mezzanine securities and all the Junior Notes).

The receivables related to the Deferred Subscription Price (DSP/Deferred Purchase Price-DPP), owed to UniCredit S.p.A. by third-party entities
belonging to the relevant third-party Investor's groups, with suitable credit rating and a capital structure that can guarantee that the repayment of the
DSP/DPP does not depend, either in full or mainly, on the payment of ABSs issued by the SPVs Fino 1 Securitisation S.r.I., Fino 2 Securitisation
S.r.l. and Onif Finance S.r.I., and deriving from the securitisation transactions completed during 2017, have been classified under item "40. Financial
assets at amortised cost" according to IFRS9, and measured on the basis of the estimated future cash flows. As at 31 December 2018 they amount
to approximately €511 million, and include, for around €15 million, the positive effect (recognised in item "10. Interest income and similar revenues”
of the 2018 income statement) connected with the reversal of the time value in respect to 31 December 2017.

Strategic Bancassurance partnerships

In June 2018 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. has announced that it has signed two exclusive strategic partnership agreements with Allianz and
Generali respectively for the distribution of insurance products for individuals and small-businesses in Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia,
Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia and Slovenia.

The long-term partnerships was implemented in the majority of the countries in scope, in compliance with the all local regulations, in the second half
of 2018, predominantly focused on the Life and Non-Life products with Allianz and on the CPI (Credit Protection Insurance) products with Generali.
The implementation of the partnership agreements for CPI in Bosnia and Herzegovina and Life and Non-Life in Serbia is planned in 2019.

Contract renegotiation with ES Shared Service Center S.p.A.

ES Shared Service Center S.p.A. ("ES SSC") is a joint venture established in 2012 by UniCredit Services S.C.p.A. (formerly UniCredit Business
Integrated Solutions S.c.p.A.), with a 49% stake, and Hewlett Packard Enterprise with the remaining 51% stake. The company is responsible for
providing services in the Human Resources area for the companies of the UniCredit group in Italy and Austria through a 15-year outsourcing
contract. In line with the new HR Transformation programme led by UniCredit HR Transformation & Operations Office, a considerable review of the
relationship with the company was negotiated, also with the aim to grant to UniCredit Services a "termination for convenience” in relation to the
existing agreements in Italy and Austria.

In line with the said agreements, UniCredit Services has exercised its termination right of the agreement related to Italy which is effective from 1 July
2018. The termination of the said agreement envisages also a post termination assistance in order to ensure the continuity of the services and to
support the migration of the systems and the activities to UniCredit S.p.A. In this context and in execution of the reached agreement, UniCredit
Services has exercised its "put option"; therefore starting from 19 December 2018 UniCredit Services ceased to be a shareholder of ES SSC.

EBA confirms UniCredit Cashes treatment

On 20 July 2018 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. communicated to welcome the decision of EBA not to open an investigation based on the
request made by Caius Capital and to confirm its 2012 position on the Cashes treatment. This validates UniCredit's previous statement that the
treatment of the Cashes has been reviewed and affirmed by all the relevant authorities and that UniCredit ordinary shares are qualified as Common
Equity Tier 1 Capital - CET1.

UniCredit notified the competent market authorities of Caius Capital's actions in light of possible market abuse. Afterwards UniCredit has filed a
complaint against Caius Capital and the Caius funds in the Court of Milan seeking compensation of damages in the amount of approximately €90
million stemming from Caius Capital's and the funds' actions against the Bank over the course of the last months with respect to the Cashes.
During December 2018 UniCredit and Caius Capital announced that they have fully and finally settled their dispute in relation to the Cashes, and
accordingly that UniCredit's complaint against Caius and the funds it manages has been withdrawn.
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Mediobanca S.p.A. - new consultation agreement

As at 31 December 2018, UniCredit S.p.A. is the largest shareholder in Mediobanca Banca di Credito Finanziario S.p.A. (“Mediobanca”), holding
No.74.5 million shares, corresponding to 8.4% of its share capital. Following the termination of the former Mediobanca shareholders’ agreement on
31 December 2018, the Parties, including UniCredit S.p.A., representing 20.7% of Mediobanca share capital signed a new “consultation agreement
between Mediobanca shareholders on 20 December 2018”; the new agreement is in force on 1 January 2019.

The stake in Mediobanca is accounted as associate under significant influence, in continuity with the previous financial statements.

Also following the subscription of the new consultation agreement, indeed UniCredit continues to hold significant influence on Mediobanca, as the
new agreement does not introduce changes in the governance framework of Mediobanca so substantial to require an update in UniCredit
classification and valuation criteria of such stake; UniCredit preserves its representation in the Board of Directors of Mediobanca and the
participation in determining its financial and operating policies.Further information about the carrying amount, book value and market value of
Mediobanca S.p.A. are contained in the Consolidated financial statements - Notes to consolidated accounts - Part B Consolidated balance sheet -
Assets - Section 7 Equity investments

Organisational model

Significant organisational changes in 2018

On 9 May 2018, the Board of Directors approved the set-up of the Group Transformation Office structure, led by the Group Chief Transformation
Officer (GCTO), reporting to the Chief Executive Officer and functionally, for business related initiatives, to the General Manager. The GCTO
manages the transformation and ensuring meaningful change to reach the higher and measurable customer satisfaction and service quality, while
improving cost efficiency.

Organisational structure

UniCredit group organisation reflects an organisational and business model that maintains a divisional structure for the governance of the Corporate
Investment Banking business/products and the business in the CEE Countries, as well as overall control over the COO functions, by ensuring the
autonomy of the Countries/Banks for specific activities, in order to guarantee increased proximity to the client and faster decision-making processes.
Specifically:

o the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) maintains a direct supervision on the definition of Group Strategy, Risks, Compliance, Human Resources, on
the optimisation of structure costs and on the main operating activities;

o the General Manager (GM) is responsible for all the business activities (Retail, Corporate, Global CIB, Fineco and relevant Countries where the
Group is present) focusing on the ongoing development of clients services aiming to maximise the cross selling and leading the Group digital
strategies, as well as defining the new service model of the Bank;

o the Chief Operating Officer (COO), position covered by two co-Heads (co-Chief Operating Officers) who lead the oversight of the operational
machine with a specific focus on Costs and on IT & Operations; in particular the two co-Heads are respectively responsible for Finance & Cost
Management and for IT & Operations, Security and Internal Controls;

« the CIB Division, position covered by two co-Heads directly reporting to General Manager, has a coverage role for the multinational customers
("Multinational"), for selected "Large corporate” clients with a strong potential demand for investment banking products, for the Financial and
Institutional Groups (FIG) customers, “Global Family Office” and for the Global Lines "Global Transaction Banking (GTB)", "Global Financing &
Advisory (F&A)", "Markets" and for internationalisation activities;

o the CEE Division coordinates the Group’s activities in the countries of Central and Eastern Europe, aligning them to a single comprehensive
business vision in the area;

» Group Institutional Affairs and Sustainability is responsible for developing the relations with institutional counterparts of interest for Group;

» Group Regulatory Affairs is responsible for managing the relationship with European Banking Supervisory Authorities (e.g. EBA, ECB) and
Banca d'ltalia;

o as far as the ltalian perimeter is concerned, the co-Heads Italy, directly reporting to the General Manager, are responsible for the definition of the
business strategies of the “commercial banking” and the assignment of such strategies to the territories and to the client segments (Family, First,
Business First, Corporate and Private Banking);

o the functions called Competence Lines (Internal Audit, Planning, Finance & Administration, Risk Management, Legal, Compliance, Lending,
Identity & Communications, Human Capital) oversee the guidance, coordination and control of UniCredit's activities and manage the related risks.
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Conversion of DTAs into tax credits

In respect of financial year 2017, the conditions for a new conversion of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) into tax credits (pursuant to Art.2, paragraph 55,
of Law Decree No.225 of 29 December 2010), were not verified, since the Group legal entities having a stock of Convertible DTAs registered a net
profit in their separate financial statements.

In order to preserve for the future the regime of conversion of DTAs into tax credits, and in order to overcome the issues raised by the European
Commission in connection to the application of State Aid rules, Art.11 of Law Decree of 3 May 2016 No.59 (so-called "Banks Decree", converted into
Law 30 June 2016 No.119), introduced the possibility, starting from 2016 till 2030, to elect for the payment of an annual fee equal to 1.5% of an
aggregate amount deriving from the difference between:
o the increase in convertible DTAs recognised at the end of the fiscal year and the convertible DTAs existing as at the end of 2007, for IRES tax,
and as at the end of 2012 for IRAP tax, taking into account the amounts already converted into tax credits;
o taxes:
- IRES paid by tax group starting from 1 January 2008;
- IRAP paid registered starting from 1 January 2013 by Legal Entities included in Tax Group with convertible DTAs;
- substitute taxes that generated convertible DTAs.

The fee due for financial year 2018 has been paid on 27 June 2018 for an overall amount of €115.8 million relating to the whole Italian Tax Group,
out of which €111 million for UniCredit S.p.A., €4.5 million for UniCredit Leasing S.p.A. and €0.3 million for UniCredit Factoring S.p.A.

Certifications and other communications

With reference to the “Rules of Markets organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.” dated 3 October 2011 (Title 2.6 “Obligations of issuers”,
Section 2.6.2. “Disclosure requirements”, paragraph 10) the satisfaction of conditions provided by Section 36 of Consob Regulation No.16191/2007,
letters a), b) and ¢) is hereby certified.

With reference to paragraph 8 of Art.5 - “Public information on transactions with related parties" of Consob Regulation containing provisions relating
to transactions with related parties (adopted by Consob with Resolution No.17221 of 12 March 2010, as subsequently amended by Resolution
No.17389 of 23 June 2010), it should be noted that:

a) according to the Global Policy “Transactions with related parties, associated persons and Corporate Officers ex art.136 CBA” adopted by the
Board of Directors of UniCredit S.p.A. on 6 February 2019, and published on the website www.unicreditgroup.eu, during 2018 the Bank’s Presidio
Unico received no reports of transactions of greater importance ended in the period;

b) during 2018, no transactions with related parties as defined by article 2427, paragraph 22-bis of the Civil Code were conducted, under different
conditions from normal market conditions and materially affecting the Group’s financial and economic situation;

c) during 2018, there were no changes or developments in the individual transactions with related parties already described in the latest annual
report that had a material effect on the Group’s financial position or results during the reference period.

For more information on related-party transactions refer to Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part H.

Information on risks

For a complete description of the risks and uncertainties that the Group must face under the current market conditions, refer to the appropriate
section in the Notes to the consolidated accounts Part E.

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 65



Consolidated report on operations

Subsequent events and outlook

Subsequent events?®

On 9 January 2019 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. successfully issued USD 2.5 billion Fixed Rate Notes and USD 0.5 billion Floating Rate
Notes, both due on 14 January 2022 (collectively, the "Notes") for a total combined amount of USD 3 billion.

This transaction is the third on the Senior Non-Preferred market by UniCredit S.p.A. following its inaugural EUR 1.5 billion 5-year issue in January
2018 and the USD 3 billion 5-year issue executed in November 2018.

The bonds will be eligible for the forthcoming of Total Loss Absorbing Capacity (TLAC) requirement improving the subordination ratio by
approximately 72bps. The transaction is part of UniCredit's TLAC funding plan for which the company had announced planned issuances of EUR 3
to 5 billion by the end of first quarter 2019 during its third quarter 2018 results presentation.

On 16 January 2018 UniCredit group issued a Statement with reference to recent media reporting on the non-binding recommendation of the ECB to

all banks directly supervised by the Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM) regarding the coverage of the secured and unsecured NPL stock:

o since third quarter 2016, UniCredit has reduced its NPE portfolio by more than €36 billion (as at third quarter 2018). As a consequence, its Core
bank NPE ratio was 4.3% in third 2018, in line with its EBA sample peers and it has committed to fully run off its Non Core portfolio by 2021.
In addition, UniCredit has a 62% NPE coverage ratio that is evidenced as highest in the sample of Eurozone banks in the recent EBA stress tests
under adverse conditions. Consequently, UniCredit considers its NPE coverage fully adequate;

o thanks to such decisive actions and taking into account the NPE portfolio dynamics, UniCredit estimates that the regulatory dialogue with the ECB
could lead to a low annual single digit basis point impact on its CET1 ratio for any additional coverage of its NPE stock, for each year up to 2024,
date mentioned by the ECB in its communication.

On 18 January 2019 UniCredit Services S.C.p.A., the service company of the UniCredit group, informed having been admitted to the Italian
cooperative compliance regime, with the Revenue Agency, pursuant to Legislative Decree No.128/2015, with effect from 2017.

This follows the admittance of UniCredit S.p.A. and FinecoBank S.p.A. by the Agency in 2017, with effect from 2016, as the first banks to be
admitted. It further strengthens the Group’s standing, with three companies now admitted, among the significant taxpayers operating as part of the
regime.

This is a fundamental milestone showing the strength of UniCredit group’s accountability process, an important element of our fair and efficient fiscal
strategy, also considering that UniCredit group is already joining the tax cooperative compliance schemes in other countries where it is present.

On 6 February 2019 UniCredit group announced a reorganisation project of its senior management team as it begins the development of its 2020-23
strategic plan, which will be presented to the markets in London on 3 December 2019. For further details, refer to the information provided in the
following section “Corporate Governance” about the reorganisation of the senior management team.

8 Up to the date of approval by the Board of Directors’ Meeting of 6 February 2019 which, on the same date, authorised the publication also in accordance with IAS10.
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QOutlook

Global growth momentum has eased from the cyclical high reached in 2017 and we forecast that global GDP growth will ease to 3.4% in 2019
(down from 3.6% in 2018), followed by a more-pronounced slowdown to 2.7% in 2020. One of the most likely sources of weakness in 2020 will be
the United States, due to the fact that it is at a very late stage in its business cycle. Still, risks are now tilted towards more front-loaded deterioration
in global demand, in comparison to the initial expectations. China plays, and will continue to play, a critical role. The growth trajectory of this Country
will remain on a structurally slowing trend, but it is plausible that the slowdown may exceed the current pace of deceleration. Economic growth in
emerging markets is forecasted to slow as a result of the cyclical downturn in advanced economies and a tightening of financial conditions, but a
generalised crisis in emerging markets remains unlikely in the near future.

The Eurozone’s growth outlook weakened further at the turn of 2018, primarily in the wake of external factors, especially a steep loss of momentum
in global trade. This seems to mainly reflect heightened uncertainty about protectionist policies and the outcome of Brexit negotiations, that has
weighed on sentiment and investment decisions globally. Domestic fundamentals have generally developed positively, especially with regard to the
labor market, but economic activity in the Euro Area hardly will not suffer the expected slowdown in global growth. After GDP growth averaged 1.8%
in 2018, we forecast that it will decelerate to 1.4% in 2019, with risks tilted to the downside.

Among eurozone countries, weakness has been more pronounced in Italy, which slipped into a technical recession in the second half of 2018.
Growth deterioration has been driven by external and domestic factors. In particular, a decline from annual growth of 1.6% in 2017 to slightly less
than 1.0% in 2018 was due to an abrupt adjustment in Italian exports and the slowdown of the world trade in the first half of the year. While domestic
demand turned out to be particularly weak starting from the third quarter of 2018, probably due to increasing domestic uncertainty. We expect Italy’s
GDP to expand by 0.5% in 2019, with our forecast underpinning a return to modest, positive quarterly growth, supported by a recovery in business
sentiment and a pickup in both external and domestic demand. Therefore the main short-term risk Italy now faces is a stronger-than-initially-
expected deterioration in global trade. In contrast, following the positive resolution of the budget discussion between the government and the
European Commission in December, internal demand may get some relief from lower domestic uncertainty and from the still-limited transmission of
the 10Y BTP-Bund spread widening into higher lending rates for the private sector. Still, investments in equipment are expected to be particularly
affected by the slowdown in global demand. Expectations of a continuation of a modest recovery in domestic demand will continue to support
ongoing credit growth in Italy, however, further acceleration in lending growth to the private sector is expected to be constrained.

Headline inflation has fluctuated around 2% for most of second half of 2018 but has entered 2019 on a downward trend, mainly reflecting a fall in oil
prices. Core inflation has been much less volatile and has remained stuck around 1% over the last couple of years. Muted underlying price pressure,
inherent in a weakening growth outlook, is likely to force the European Central Bank (ECB) to delay its plan to start normalizing interest-rate policy
this year, namely the beginning of a phase of rising rates. There is also an increasing likelihood that further ECB liquidity support will be provided to
the banking sector to offset the impact from the diminishing residual maturity of outstanding TLTRO money.

During 2019 the Group will operate in a challenging macro-economic environment, characterised by uncertainty factors (including the protectionist
tensions, the economic cycle evolution and the financial markets volatility, also in relation to the spread dynamic of Italian Government bonds) and
by a still low level of interest rates. During 2019, UniCredit will keep on implementing measures in order to maintain a solid capital position and will
continue to focus on the execution of the Transform plan by completing the transformation of the operating model and pursuing the achievement of
the plan targets, as pan-European winner. The Group's results will also benefit from ongoing commercial and cost reduction initiatives, in addition to
the constant attention to the asset quality.

Milan, 6 February 2019

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN CEO
FABRIZIO SACCOMANNI JEAN PIERRE MUSTIER
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Improve
asset quality.

We are continuing to improve our asset quality by de-risking our balance
sheet, fully on track for the accelerated rundown of our Non Core portfolio

by 2021. A disciplined risk management approach duarantees high quality
origination across the Group.




Corporate Governance

Governance organisational structure

Introduction

UniCredit's overall corporate governance framework, i.e. the system of rules and procedures that its corporate bodies refer to steer the principles of
their behaviour and fulfil their various responsibilities towards the Group’s stakeholders, has been defined in compliance with current national and
European provisions as well as the recommendations contained in the Italian Corporate Governance Code for listed companies (hereinafter, also
the “Code”). The Code, according to the major international markets’ experience, identifies the corporate governance standards and best practices
for Italian listed companies recommended by the Corporate Governance Committee, to be applied according to the “comply or explain” principle that
requires the explanation in the corporate governance report of the reasons of failure to comply with one or more recommendations contained in its
principles or criteria.

Moreover, UniCredit is subject to the provisions contained in the Supervisory Regulations issued by Banca d’ltalia and, in detail, with regards to
corporate governance issues, to the Supervisory Regulations on banks’ corporate governance (Circular No.285/2013, Part |, Title IV, Chapter 1).

In compliance with the aforementioned Supervisory Regulations UniCredit, as significant bank subject to the direct prudential supervision of the
ECB, as well as a listed bank, is qualifiable as bank of a major size or operational complexity and consequently complies with the provisions
applicable to such kind of bank.

Since 2001, UniCredit has adopted the Code which is available to the public on the Corporate Governance Committee website
(http://www.borsaitaliana.it/comitato-corporate-governance/codice/codiceeng2018.en.pdf).

UniCredit yearly draws up a corporate governance report meant for its shareholders, institutional and non-institutional investors and the market. The
report supplies suitable information on the UniCredit own corporate governance system.

Consistently with the relevant legal and regulatory obligations, as well as in line with the provisions of the Code, in its latest edition approved in July
2018, the 2018 Report on corporate governance and ownership structure has been drafted, in accordance with Section 123/bis of the Legislative
Decree No.58 dated 24 February 1998 (hereinafter, also the “TUF”).

The Report on corporate governance and ownership structure is approved by the Board of Directors and published at the same time as the Report
on Operations on the Issuer's website (https://www.unicreditgroup.eu/en/governance/governance-system-and-policies.html). For further information
on the UniCredit corporate governance system see the first of the above documents.

UniCredit, as issuer of shares also listed on the Frankfurt and Warsaw regulated markets, also fulfils the legal and regulatory obligations relating to
listings on said markets as well as the provisions on corporate governance contained in the Polish Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Warsaw Stock Exchange.

The information provided, unless otherwise specified, refers to the financial year 1 January-31 December 2018.
Since its establishment, UniCredit has adopted the so-called traditional management and control system.

The distinctive feature of this model is that the strategic supervision and the management of the company, the overseeing of its management and
the legal accounting supervision are separated. In particular, the Board of Directors is solely responsible for the strategic supervision and the
management of the Company, while the Board of Statutory Auditors is entrusted with supervising its management. Legal accounting supervision on
the Company is assigned to an external audit firm by the Shareholders' Meeting on the basis of a proposal from the Board of Statutory Auditors, in
compliance with relevant current laws.

The reasons behind the choice of such governance model are that it has proven capable of managing the business efficiently, while ensuring
effective controls. That is, it creates the conditions for UniCredit S.p.A. to be able to guarantee the sound and prudent management of a complex
and global banking group, such as the UniCredit group.

Moreover, the traditional management ascribes certain aspects to the sole responsibility of the Shareholders' Meeting, creating in this way an
opportunity for dialogue and debate between shareholders and management about the fundamental elements of governance. These include the
appointment and dismissal of directors, the appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors members, the granting of a mandate for the external
auditing to an audit firm, the setting of the related remuneration, as well as the approval of the financial statements, the profit allocations, the
resolutions on the remuneration and incentive policies and practices provided for by current provisions and the criteria to determine the
compensation to be granted in the event of early termination of employment or early retirement from office.
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Shareholders' Meeting

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of UniCredit is convened at least once a year within 180 days of the end of the financial year, in order to
resolve upon the issues that current laws and the Articles of Association make it responsible for. An Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting is
convened, instead, whenever it is necessary to resolve upon any of the matters that are exclusively attributed to it by current laws.

The Agenda of the Shareholders’ Meeting is established pursuant to legal requirements and to the UniCredit Articles of Association by whoever
exercises the power to call a Meeting.

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting has adopted Regulations governing Ordinary and Extraordinary Meetings in a functional and regular way.
The Regulations are available on the Governance/Shareholders Meeting Section of the UniCredit website.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of UniCredit may be comprised of between a minimum of 9 up to a maximum of 24 members. As at the approval date of this
document, UniCredit has 15 Directors.

Their term in office is 3 financial years, unless a shorter term is established at the time they are appointed, and ends on the date of the
Shareholders’ Meeting called upon to approve the financial statements relating to the latest year in which they were in office.

The term in office of the current Board of Directors, which was appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 12 April 2018, will expire on the date of the
Shareholders’ Meeting called upon to approve the 2020 financial statements.

UniCredit Directors shall be appointed, according to the current legal and regulatory provisions, on the basis of a proportional representation
mechanism (“voto di lista”) abiding by the membership criteria concerning, inter alia, minority and independent Directors, apart from abiding by the
rules on the balance between genders envisaged by Law No.120/2011, pursuant to the procedures specified in Clause 20 of the UniCredit Articles
of Association. The legitimate parties who are entitled to submit lists are the Board of Directors and the shareholders, who individually or collectively
with others represent at least 0.5% of share capital in the form of ordinary shares with voting rights at ordinary Shareholders’ Meetings.

The UniCredit Articles of Association envisage that, regardless of the total number of the Board members, two Directors shall be appointed from the
second list receiving the highest votes, without any connection with the shareholders who, even jointly, filed, or voted for, the slate first by number of
votes, to ensure to the minority shareholders a greater presence on the Board of Directors.

The Board establishes its qualitative and quantitative composition deemed to be optimal for the effective completion of the duties and responsibilities
entrusted to the Board of Directors by law, by the Supervisory Provisions and by the UniCredit Articles of Association, according to the current
national and European provisions applicable on such topics, also concerning the time commitment and the limits upon the maximum number of
offices that UniCredit Directors may hold.

Moreover, Directors must take into account the provisions of Section 36 of Law Decree N0.201/2011 (“ban on interlocking directorships”), approved
as statute by Law No.214/2011, which establishes that holders of a seat in managerial, supervisory and controlling bodies, as well as top
management officers in companies or group of companies active in banking, insurance and financial markets are forbidden to hold, or to exercise,
similar duties, in competing companies or groups of companies.

The function and competencies of the Board of Directors are set forth in the UniCredit Corporate Bodies and Committees Regulation, available on
the Governance/Governance system & policies Section of the UniCredit website.
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Independence of Directors

In compliance with the criteria established by Section 3 of the Code (which coincide with those envisaged by the UniCredit Articles of Association)
and the provisions set out by Section 148 of the TUF, the Directors’ independence shall be assessed by the Board of Directors every time the Board
is renewed, as well as on an annual basis and whenever a person is appointed as Director, on the basis of the information provided by the Director
him/herself or, however, available to the Company. The outcome of the assessments of the Board shall be notified after the appointment, through a
press release disclosed to the market and, subsequently, within the Corporate Governance Report.

With reference to the Board of Directors’ members, the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee and the Board of
Directors, the latter at the verification carried out at the time of the Board renewal on 9 May 2018, carried out the assessment of the Directors’
independence requirements based on the statements made by the parties concerned and on the information available to the Company.

With specific reference to the independence requirements laid down by the Code and the Articles of Association, information relating to the
existence of direct or indirect relationships (credit relationships, business/professional relationships and employee relationships, as well as
significant offices held) that the Directors and their other connected subjects may have with UniCredit and Group companies was taken into account.

In order to assess the potential significance of the abovementioned relationships, the Board of Directors has decided not to proceed with merely
identifying predefined economic targets, which if simply exceeded could automatically indicate that independence has been compromised, as such
check requires an overall assessment of both objective and subjective aspects. Therefore, for this purpose, the following criteria should be taken into
account: (i) the nature and characteristics of the relationship; (i) the amount in absolute and relative terms of the transactions; and (iii) the subjective
profile of the relationship.

More specifically, when assessing the significance of the relationship, the following information, where available, is considered by the Board:

o as far as credit relations are concerned, the amount in absolute value of the credit granted, its weighting in relation to the system and, where
appropriate, the economic and financial situation of the borrower;

o as far as professional/commercial relations are concerned, the characteristics of the transaction/relationship, the amount of the consideration and,
where appropriate, the economic and financial situation of the counterparty;

e as far as offices held in Group companies are concerned, the total amount of any additional remunerations.

In all the above cases, all the parties involved (Director or family member; UniCredit or Group company) and, for relationships with
companies/entities, the related kind of “connection” (post held/control participation) with the Director or the family member were taken into account.

As a result of such assessments, the number of independent Directors according to the provisions of the Code is equal to 12.

According to the Code, the Board of Statutory Auditors, in its 22 May 2018 meeting, ascertained, with a positive outcome, the proper application of
the criteria and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors to assess the independence of its own members.
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Status and activities of the Directors

In the following chart the information regarding the members of the Board of Directors in office at the approval date of this document is reported.
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Chairman Saccomanni Fabrizio 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X 100 -
Deputy Vice Chairman Bisoni Cesare 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 -
CEQ ¢ Mustier Jean Pierre 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X 100 -
Director Al Mehairi Mohamed Hamad 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 7
Director Andreotti Lamberto 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 1
Director Balbinot Sergio 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X 100 7
Director Béchenfeld Martha Dagmar 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 94.12 6
Director Cariello Vincenzo 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements ~ m X X X 90.91 --
Director Carletti Elena(® 02.07.2019 04.11.2019 - X X X -
Director de Wismes Isabelle 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 -
Director Micossi Stefano 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 -
Director Pierdicchi Maria 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 3
Director Tondi Francesca 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements m X X X 100 1
Director Wolfgring Alexander 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 100 3
Director Zambon Elena 04.12.2018 Approval of 2020 financial statements M X X X 8824 12
Directors that left off during and after the end of the period
Chairman Vita Giuseppe 05.13.2015 04.12.2018 m X X 100 1
Deputy Vice Chairman Calandra Buonaura Vincenzo 05.13.2015 04.12.2018 m X X 100 -
Director Bochniarz Henryka 05.13.2015 04122018  m X X X 100 2
Director Caltagirone Alessandro 05.13.2015 04122018 m X X X 8333 5
Director Cordero di Montezemolo Luca® 05.13.2015 04122018  m X X X 83.33 4
Director Reichlin Lucrezia 05.13.2015 04122018 M X X X 100 4
Director Sironi Andrea® 04.12.2018 02.06.2019 M X X X 72.73 3
Director Streit Clara C. 05.13.2015 04122018 m X X X 83.33 4
Director Vezzani Paola 05.13.2015 04122018 m X X X 100 -
Director Wyand Anthony 05.13.2015 04122018  m X X 8333 2
Quorum required for the submission of the slates for the latest appointment: 0.5%
Number of meetings held during the financial year: 17

Notes:

(*) M = Member elected from the slate that obtained the majority of the Shareholders’ votes; m = Member elected from the slate voted by the minority;

(**) Number of meeting attended/number of meetings held during the concemed party’s term of office with regard to the Period;

(***) Number of positions as Director or Auditor held in other companies listed on regulated markets (both in Italy and abroad), including financial services companies, banks, insurance companies or other large companies.
There is a list of such companies for each Director attached to the Report on corporate governance and ownership structure.

O Director in charge of the internal controls and risks management system.

(1) Co-opted by the Board of Directors held on 6 February 2019, effective from 7 February 2019, in place of Mr. Andrea Sironi. As at the approval date of this document, information about the Director’s independence
requirements is based on her statement. The meeting of such requirements shall be checked by the UniCredit Board of Directors in compliance with the applicable provisions.

(2) Mr. Cordero di Montezemolo stepped down from his role as Vice Chairman on 20 April 2017.

(3) Resigned effective as from 7 February 2019.
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Committees of the Board of Directors

In order to foster an efficient information and advisory system to enable the Board of Directors better to assess the topics for which it is responsible,
also in accordance with the provisions of the Code, the Board has established four Committees, vested with research, advisory and proposal-making
powers diversified by sector of competence: the Internal Controls & Risks Committee, the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Related-Parties Committee. Their duties are undertaken based on terms of reference and
procedures set forth by the Board.

The Committees consist, as a rule, of a number of members from 3 up to 5. More specifically, the Internal Controls & Risks Committee,

the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee and the Remuneration Committee, set up in compliance with the provisions of
the Banca d'ltalia Supervisory Regulations on banks’ corporate governance, envisaging 3 specialist committees, one on appointments, one on risks
and one on remuneration, are composed of non-executives Directors, mostly independent pursuant to the Articles of Association. Such Committees
must be differentiated from each other by at least one member and, if a Director elected by the minorities is present, that Director is a member of at
least one Committee. The Chairman of each Committee shall be chosen from among the independent members. The Related-Parties Committee,
set up for overseeing issues concerning transactions with related and associated parties, in compliance with the CONSOB regulatory provisions and
the Banca d'ltalia Supervisory Regulations, consists only of independent Directors pursuant to Code.

The Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee also supervises the sustainability issues linked to the activity exercised by
UniCredit and to the dynamics of the interactions of the latter with all the stakeholders.

None of the functions of one or more specialist Committees on appointments, risks and remuneration envisaged by the Code has been reserved to
the Board of Directors. Moreover, none of the abovementioned Committees, per se, performs the multiple functions of two or more committees as
envisaged by the Code. The Committee functions have not been allocated amongst the various Committees in a different manner vis-a-vis the
provisions of the Code.

The Committee’s tasks are coordinated by the Chairman, who exercises all necessary powers for its proper functioning. Each Committee draws up
an annual plan of activities to ensure the fulfillment of its tasks. Except as specifically provided for the Related-Parties Committee, Committee
meetings are convened by the Chairman with frequency adequate to the fulfillment of its tasks and plan of activities or when needed or requested in
writing, with proper motivation, by at least two members of the Committee.

Committee members have the necessary knowledge, skills and experience to perform the duties assigned to them and ensure that any other
corporate positions they hold in other companies or entities (including non-ltalian ones) are compatible with their availability and commitment to
serve as a Committee member.

At the invitation of each Committee Chairman, the CEQ, other Directors, the General Manager, the Manager in charge of drafting the company
financial reports, as well as personnel belonging to the Company and the Group, may attend Committee meetings on specific Agenda items. Without
prejudice to the possibility for the Statutory Auditors to attend the meetings, at the invitation of each Committee Chairman, the Chairman of the
Board of Statutory Auditors, or other Auditors designated by the latter, may be called upon to attend Committee meetings. Always at the invitation of
each Committee Chairman, personnel or externals appointed in the corporate bodies of the Group’s subsidiaries may be called upon to attend
Committee meetings.

To perform their duties, Committees have access to the financial resources necessary to guarantee their operational independence and, within the
limitations of the budget approved by the Board of Directors, may consult independent external experts and invite them to attend meetings; in the
event of specific requirements, the relevant budget may be supplemented.

The Chairman of each Committee reports at the first available meeting of the Board of Directors on the work undertaken at the Committee meetings.

The Board Committees’ composition, functions and competencies are set forth in the Corporate Bodies and Committees Regulation, available on the
Governance/Governance system & policies Section of the UniCredit website.
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Internal Controls & Risks Committee

The Internal Controls & Risks Committee consists of 5 non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Committee is the following: Mr. Alexander Wolfgring (Chairman), Ms. Martha Dagmar Bockenfeld, Ms. Isabelle de Wismes,
Ms. Maria Pierdicchi and Mr. Andrea Sironi. Further to the resignation handed in by the Director Mr. Andrea Sironi, the Board of Directors, in its
meeting held on 6 February 2019, has appointed Ms. Elena Carletti as member of the Internal Controls & Risks Committee effective from 7 February
2019.

All members of the Committee meet the independence requirements prescribed by the Code, which coincide with those envisaged by the UniCredit
Articles of Association, and are independent pursuant to Section 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF.

Committee meetings are attended by the Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Head of Internal Audit, the Chief Compliance Officer and
the Group Chief Risk Officer. At the invitation of the Committee Chairman, The Chief Executive Officer, other Directors, the Manager in charge of
drafting the Company financial reports, as well as personnel belonging to the Company and the Group, may attend Committee meetings. Staff from
the external audit firm may also be invited.

The Committee is responsible for setting up the necessary functional links with the Board of Statutory Auditors, so as to undertake activities deemed
common to the two bodies, and to exchange information of mutual interest, within the purview of their respective competencies.

The Committee must be able to access relevant corporate information, consult external experts and, where necessary, communicate directly with
the Heads of Internal Audit, Group Risk Management and Group Compliance.

In 2018, the Committee held 13 meetings.

Duties
The Committee supports the Board of Directors on risk management and control-related issues.

Among other things, the Committee:

a) with the support of the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee, identifies and proposes to the Board who should be
appointed as Head of the corporate control functions or assesses the evaluation of their dismissal; for the Head of Internal Audit function, issues its
opinion on setting the remuneration and the performance goals associated with its variable portion in line with the company policies;

b) pre-examines activity programmes (including audit plans) and annual reports from corporate control functions to be sent to the Board, as well as
periodical reports prepared by these functions above and beyond legal or regulatory requirements;

c) evaluates and issues opinions to the Board on the compliance of the internal control system and corporate organisation with the applicable rules
and regulations, and on the requirements that must be complied with by the corporate control functions, drawing the Board’s attention to any
weaknesses and consequent corrective actions to be implemented; for this purpose, it assesses proposals put forward by the CEO;

d) through evaluations and opinions, contributes to defining company policy on the outsourcing of corporate control functions;

e) verifies that the corporate control functions correctly comply with the Board's recommendations and guidelines, assisting the Board in drafting the
coordination documents envisaged under Banca d'ltalia Circular No.285;

f) examines and assesses the correct use of accounting principles and their uniformity with regard to drafting the main accounting documents (such
as, by way of example, operating and consolidated financial statements, interim operating reports, etc.), for this purpose coordinating with the
Manager in charge of drafting the company financial reports and with the Board of Statutory Auditors;

g) examines the work carried out by the Group’s external auditors and the results stated in their reports or any letters and suggestions;

h) assesses any findings reported by Internal Audit and Group Compliance, or that may arise from enquiries and/or investigations carried out by
third parties;

i) may seek specific audit interventions, at such time informing the Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors;

j) analyses Group guidelines for the Group Compliance function that fall within its remit, monitoring that they have been adopted and implemented;

k) requests that the Head of Internal Audit draft any proposals for the qualitative and quantitative improvement of the function itself;

) is involved, within its specific remit, in the process of identifying material risk takers on an on-going basis.
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With a special focus on risk management and control-related issues, the Committee supports the Board of Directors in:

o defining and approving strategic guidelines and risk management policies with specific reference to risk appetite and risk tolerance. For this
purpose, it also examines the annual budget drafting guidelines;

o verifying that risk strategies, management policies and the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) have been correctly implemented;

o defining policies and processes for evaluating corporate activities, including verification that the price and conditions of client transactions comply
with the risk-related business model and strategies.

Without prejudice to the competencies of the Remuneration Committee, the Committee checks that the incentives underlying the remuneration and
incentive system comply with the RAF, particularly taking into account risks, capital and liquidity.

Moreover, the Committee reports to the Board of Directors on the status of the Group’s internal control system.

Furthermore, as regards investments in non-financial equities, the Committee assesses, supports and puts forward proposals with regard to
organizing and enacting internal controls on the making and managing of equity investments in non-financial companies, in addition to verifying
compliance within the framework of such equity investments in terms of strategic and operational guidelines.

Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee
The Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee consists of 5 non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee is the following: Mr. Stefano Micossi (Chairman),
Mr. Cesare Bisoni, Ms. Francesca Tondi, Mr. Alexander Wolfgring and Ms. Elena Zambon.

Al members of the Committee, in its composition at such date, meet the independence requirements prescribed by the Code, which coincide with
those envisaged by the UniCredit Articles of Association, and are independent pursuant to Section 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF.

In 2018, the Committee held 15 meetings.

Duties

Among other things, the Committee:

a) provides opinions and support to the Board regarding the definition of the UniCredit corporate governance system, corporate structure and Group
governance models and guidelines;

b) drafts proposals to be submitted to the Board regarding the optimal qualitative and quantitative composition of the Board, and the maximum
number of posts held by Directors in other companies considered compatible with effectively fulfilling these roles at UniCredit;

c) provides opinions and support regarding the Board self-assessment process, as directed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors;

d) sets targets for the least well represented gender in corporate bodies as well as for management and staff belonging to the Group, and prepares
a plan to bring this proportion up to set targets;

e) drafts proposals to be submitted to the Chairman of the Board of Directors regarding the selection of staff appointed to conduct the Board's self-
assessment process.

The Committee provides opinions and support to the Board also regarding:

a) the verification that UniCredit Directors comply with the requirements provided by applicable laws and the Articles of Association (including the
ban on interlocking directorships laid down by applicable laws), and that they collectively and individually ensure abidance with the qualitative and
quantitative composition of the Board deemed to be optimal;

b) the selection of candidates for the post of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director of UniCredit, in the event of co-optation, and, should the
Board present its own list of candidates for the position of independent Director for approval by the UniCredit Shareholders’ Meeting, taking into
due account any recommendations from shareholders, as per the process for selecting candidates to the post of Board of Directors members
(including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) approved by the Board itself;

c) the appointment of the CEO, General Manager, Deputy General Managers and other executives with strategic responsibilities, as well as Senior
Executive Vice Presidents;

d) the verification that the General Manager and the Manager in charge of drafting the company financial reports comply with the requirements
provided by applicable laws and the Articles of Association, if applicable;

e) the definition of appointment and succession plan policies for the CEO, General Manager, Deputy General Managers and other executives with
strategic responsibilities, Senior Executive Vice Presidents, the Group Management Team (Executive Vice Presidents) and Leadership Team
(Senior Vice Presidents);
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f) the definition of the policy for the appointment of corporate officers (members of the Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and
Supervisory Board) at Group companies;

g) the designation of corporate officers (members of the Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and Supervisory Board) at the main
companies.

Moreover, the Committee:

o provides support, coordinating with the Internal Controls & Risks Committee, in proposing candidates or assessing dismissal for the roles of Heads
of corporate control functions to the Board of Directors;

o undertakes research to help the Board of Directors draft a succession plan for executive directors.

Furthermore, the Committee oversees sustainability issues linked to the activities carried out by UniCredit and the dynamics underpinning
interactions between UniCredit and all of its stakeholders.

Within this framework, in particular, the Committee:

o pre-examines the yearly Integrated Report, which constitutes a non-financial declaration pursuant to the provisions of Sections 3 and 4 of
Legislative Decree No.254/2016, to be submitted for approval to the Board of Directors;

o drafts proposals with regard to the Group environmental and social strategy, annual objectives and targets, monitoring over time that they are
implemented;

e oversees sustainability-related developments also in light of international guidelines and principles, monitoring the Group’s performance.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee is the following: Mr. Lamberto Andreotti (Chairman), Mr. Andrea Sironi and Ms. Elena Zambon.
Further to the resignation handed in by the Director Mr. Andrea Sironi, the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 6 February 2019, has appointed
Ms. Elena Carletti as member of the Remuneration Committee effective from 7 February 2019

All members of the Committee, in its composition at such date, meet the independence requirements prescribed by the Code, which coincide with
those envisaged by the UniCredit Articles of Association, and are independent pursuant to Section 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF.

At least one member of the Committee has adequate knowledge and experience in finance or remuneration policies, which the Board of Directors
assesses at such time as they are appointed to the Committee.

In order for the incentives included in the compensation and incentive schemes to be consistent with the Bank’s risk, capital and liquidity
management, as well as to get updates on the market trends, compensation levels and regulatory developments, an external advisor also attends
Committee meetings.

The Group Chief Risk Officer is invited, upon need, to attend Committee meetings to ensure that incentive schemes are appropriately updated to
take into account all of the risks that the Bank has taken on, pursuant to methodologies in compliance with those adopted by the Bank in managing
risk for regulatory and internal purposes.

In 2018, the Committee held 8 meetings.

Duties

Among other things, the Committee:

e puts proposals to the Board regarding the remuneration and the performance goals associated with its variable portion, for the members of the
Board of Directors, the General Manager, Deputy General Managers, Heads of the corporate control functions and personnel whose remuneration
and incentive systems are decided upon by the Board;

o exercises oversight on the criteria for remunerating the most significant employees, as identified pursuant to the relevant Banca d'ltalia provisions,
as well as on the outcomes of the application of such criteria.

Furthermore, the Committee issues opinions to the Board on:

a) the remuneration policy for Senior Executive Vice Presidents, the Group Management Team (Executive Vice Presidents) and the Leadership
Team (Senior Vice Presidents);

b) Group incentive schemes based on financial instruments;

c) the remuneration policy for corporate officers (members of the Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and Supervisory Board) at Group
companies.

Committee members regarding whom the Committee is called upon to express its opinion on their remuneration as a result of their specific
assignments shall not attend meetings at which the proposal for such remuneration is calculated.

Furthermore, the Committee:

o coordinates the process for identifying material risk takers on an on-going basis;

o directly oversees the correct application of rules regarding the remuneration of the Heads of corporate control functions, working closely with the
Board of Statutory Auditors;

o works with the other committees, particularly the Internal Controls & Risks Committee, to verify that the incentives included in compensation and
incentive schemes are consistent with the RAF, ensuring the involvement of the corporate functions responsible for drafting and monitoring
remuneration and incentive policies and practices;

o provides appropriate feedback on its operations to the Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and the Shareholders’ Meeting;

o where necessary drawing on information received from the relevant corporate functions, expresses its opinion on the achievement of the
performance targets associated with incentive schemes, and on the other conditions laid down for bonus payments.
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Related-Parties Committee

The Related-Parties Committee consist of 3 independent Directors.
The composition of the Related-Parties Committee is the following: Mr. Cesare Bisoni (Chairman), Mr. Vincenzo Cariello and Mr. Stefano Micossi.

In reference to the Related-Parties Committee’s meetings, only for reasons of urgency, in specific cases dealing with transactions falling into the
decision-making powers of the Board of Directors, a meeting may be convened at least twelve hours in advance.

In 2018 the Committee held 15 meetings.

Duties

The Committee operates on a consultative and proposition-making basis. The Committee oversees issues concerning transactions with related
parties pursuant to CONSOB Regulation No.17221/2010 and transactions with associated parties pursuant to Banca d'ltalia Circular No.263/2006
(Title V, Chapter 5), carrying out the specific role attributed to independent directors by the aforementioned provisions. Furthermore, it carries out
any other duties assigned to it within the Global Policy for the management of transactions with persons in conflict of interest.

The Company’s competent offices ensure a constant monitoring of transactions envisaged by the procedures for the identification and management
of transactions with related and/or associated parties, also in view of enabling the Committee to propose corrective actions.

a) Temporary replacement in cases of conflict of interest
For each individual transaction, Committee members must be different from the counterparty, its associated parties and/or any entities related to it.

If a Committee member is a counterparty to the transaction under examination (or is related/associated with the counterparty), he/she must promptly
inform the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Committee Chairman (provided he/she is not in a conflict of interest situation), and abstain
from attending further Committee proceedings with regard to the transaction in which the relationship exists. Having consulted with the Committee
Chairman (provided he/she is not in a conflict of interest situation), the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall immediately take steps to replace
the member who has this conflict of interest with another member from the Board of Directors who qualifies as independent pursuant to the Italian
Corporate Governance Code for listed companies, after contacting them beforehand, in order to restore the Committee to three non-related and
non-associated independent Directors.

b) Temporary replacement of unavailable members in the event of an urgent transaction

For transactions that need to be finalised urgently and require the intervention of the Related-Parties Committee during negotiations and due
diligence and/or during the issue of opinions, having acknowledged the urgency and noted that the majority or all members are unable to meet or
carry out the required activities in time to conclude the transaction, the Committee Chairman shall promptly inform the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of this situation.

In any event, these circumstances must be communicated no later than the day after the Committee Chairman was informed that the majority or all
Committee members were not available.

Having consulted with the CEO and determined that the transaction cannot be delayed, the Chairman of the Board of Directors immediately takes
steps to find three Directors to sit on the Committee and follow the process for temporary substitutions in the event of conflicts of interest.

As regards sections a) and b) above, it should be noted that:

o replacements must be provided with all available information in good time before the meeting at which the Committee is called upon to express its
opinion regarding the transaction;

o replacements undertake the duties allocated to them until the conclusion of the decision-making process regarding the specific transaction in
question, and remain involved in the decisions taken by the Committee.
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Board Committees

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE,
INTERNAL NOMINATION AND
CONTROLS & SUSTAINABILITY REMUNERATION RELATED-PARTIES
RISKS COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
INDEP. AS PER
ARTICLES OF
NON ASSOCIATION
MEMBERS EXEC. EXEC. AND CODE 0 *) 0 ) ) ) ) (]
Saccomanni Fabrizio X M) 100% M®) 100%
Bisoni Cesare X X MM 100% M@ 100% C 100%
Mustier Jean Pierre X
Al Mehairi Mohamed Hamad X X
Andreotti Lamberto X X C@ 100%
Balbinot Sergio X
Bdchenfeld Martha Dagmar X X M@ 100%
Cariello Vincenzo X X M@ 100%
Carletti Elena X X M@ - M@
de Wismes Isabelle X X Me@) 100%
Micossi Stefano X X Cc@ 100% M@ 100%
Pierdicchi Maria X X M@ 100%
Tondi Francesca X X M@ 90.91%
Wolfgring Alexander X X C 100% M@ 100% M 100%
Zambon Elena X X M 80% M@ 100%
Members that left off during and after the end of the Period
Vita Giuseppe X M) 100% M) 100% M 100%
Calandra Buonaura Vincenzo X MM 100% M 100%
Bochniarz Henryka X X M 66.67%
Caltagirone Alessandro X X M 50% c 100%
Cordero di Montezemolo Luca X X c 100%
Reichlin Lucrezia X X M) 100% M) 75%
Sironi Andrea X X M) 88.89% M* 80%
Streit Clara C. X X MM 100% M 75%
Vezzani Paola X X M) 100% M® 100%
Wyand Anthony X M 100% M 100%
No. of meetings held during the financial year IC&RC: 13 CGN&S: 15 RC: 8 RPC: 15
Notes:

(*) A“C” (Chairman) or an “M” (Member) in this column shows that the member of the Board of Directors belongs to the Committee and also indicates his/her position.
(**) Meetings’ attendance percentage (number of meetings attended/number of meetings held during the concerned party’s term of office with regard to the Period).

(1) Office held until 12 April 2018.

(2) Office held since 13 April 2018.

(3) Further to the resignation handed in by the Director Mr. Andrea Sironi, the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 6 February 2019, has appointed Ms. Elena Carletti as member of the Internal Controls & Risks
Committee and Remuneration Committee effective from 7 February 2019.

(4) Office held from 13 April 2018 up to 6 February 2019.
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Board of Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the UniCredit Articles of Association, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting appoints 5 permanent Statutory Auditors, among whom the
Chairman, and 4 substitute Statutory Auditors. Both the permanent and substitute Statutory Auditors may be re-elected.

Permanent and substitute members of the Board of Statutory Auditors are appointed on the basis of a proportional representation mechanism (“voto
di lista”) in abidance by the composition criteria regarding, inter alia, the appointment of the Chairman of the Board by the minority shareholders and
according to the rules on the balance of genders envisaged by Law No.120/2011, as established by the UniCredit Articles of Association, and in
compliance with current legal provisions. In detail, the candidate who has obtained the highest share of votes among the candidates belonging to the
slate that obtained the highest number of votes among the minority slates, as defined by current provisions (also regulatory) in force, shall be
selected by the Shareholders’ Meeting as Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors.

Their term in office is 3 financial years and ends on the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting called upon to approve the financial statements for the
third year of office.

Members of the Board of Statutory Auditors shall meet the professional experience, integrity and independence requirements laid down by law and
they can hold administrative and control appointments with other companies within the limits set by current laws and regulations.

The Shareholders’ Meeting of 14 April 2016, appointed the permanent and substitute Statutory Auditors for the 2016-2018 financial years, with term
of office until the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting called upon to approve the 2018 financial statements.

In the following chart the information regarding the members of the Board of Statutory Auditors in office as at the approval date of this document.

Statutory Auditors
NUMBER OF
SLATE OTHERS

IN OFFICE (M/m) INDEPENDENT % POSITIONS
POSITION MEMBERS SINCE UNTIL 4l AS PER CODE ) )
Chairman Singer Pierpaolo 04.14.2016 04.11.2019 m X 100%
Permanent Statutory Auditor Bonissoni Angelo Rocco 04.14.2016 04.11.2019 M X 97.37%
Permanent Statutory Auditor Navarra Benedetta 04.14.2016 04.11.2019 M X 97.37% 3
Permanent Statutory Auditor Paolucci Guido(" 12.04.2017 04.11.2019 M X 100%
Permanent Statutory Auditor Bientinesi Antonella® 12.04.2017 04.11.2019 m X 97.37% 1
Substitute Statutory Auditor Manes Paola 04.14.2016 04.11.2019 M X -
Substitute Statutory Auditor Talamonti Maria Francesca 04.14.2016 04.11.2019 m X 2
Substitute Statutory Auditor Pagani Raffaella® 12.04.2017 04.11.2019 - X 3
Substitute Statutory Auditor Amato Myriam® 12.04.2017 04.11.2019 - X 1

Statutory Auditors that left off during the Period

Quorum required for the submission of the slates for the latest appointment: 0.5%
Number of meetings held during the financial year: 38

Notes:

(*) M= Member elected from the slate obtaining the majority of the Shareholders' votes; m = Member elected from the slate voted by a minority.

(**) Meetings’ attendance percentage (number of meetings attended/number of meetings held during the concerned party’s term of office with regard to the Period).

(***) Number of positions as Director or Auditor held by the concerned party pursuant to Section 148/bis of the TUF. A complete list of such positions is published by the CONSOB on its website pursuant to Section
144-quinquiesdecies of the CONSOB Issuers Rules.

(1) He took office under Article 2401 of the Italian Civil Code in replacement of Mr. Enrico Laghi who resigned on 2 May 2017 and was appointed as Statutory Auditor by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 4 December 2017.
(2) She took office under Article 2401 of the Italian Civil Code in replacement of Ms. Maria Enrica Spinardi who resigned on 26 October 2017 and was appointed as Statutory Auditor by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 4
December 2017.

(3) Appointed by the Shareholders” Meeting held on 4 December 2017.
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Share capital

As at 31 December 2018, the fully subscribed and paid up UniCredit share capital amounted to Euro 20,940,398,466.81, divided into 2,230,176,665
ordinary shares with no nominal value. The ordinary shares are issued in a dematerialised form and are indivisible as well as freely transferable.

No other types of shares, equity instruments or convertible or exchangeable bonds have been issued.

Major Shareholders

On the basis of the results from the Shareholders Register, completed with the communications received according to Section 120 of the TUF and
other information known to the Company, the relevant equity holdings, direct and indirect, as at 31 December 2018 were as follows.

According to the communications received pursuant to current provisions, the shareholder listed below hold significant shareholdings (more than
3%), not falling within the disclosure exemptions (Section 119/bis of the Consob Rules No.11971/99).

% OF ORDINARY % OF VOTING
DECLARANT DIRECT SHAREHOLDER CAPITAL CAPITAL
Mubadala Investment Company PJSC Aabar Luxembourg S.a.r.l. 5.028% 5.028%

Participation Rights

Eligible to attend Shareholders' Meetings are those who hold voting rights and in respect of whom the Company has received, from the broker
holding the relevant securities account, the notification within the deadline set forth by applicable law (record date, i.e. seven market trading days
before the Shareholders’ Meeting date).

Those who hold voting rights may arrange to be represented in the Shareholders’ Meeting, in compliance with the provisions of the prevailing law.
UniCredit has always encouraged its shareholders to exercise their participation and voting rights and; for that reason, some time ago it adopted the

Regulations governing Shareholders’ Meetings to ensure their regular conduct. Said Regulations are available on UniCredit website on the
Governance/Shareholders’ Meeting Section.
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Senior management team
reorganisation

UniCredit announced the reordanisation of its senior management team, to support the development of
its 2020-23 strategic plan.
The reorganisation project, approved by the UniCredit board of directors on 6 February 2019, aims to
continue the streamlining process initiated with Transform 2019, and will ensure that the management
team who will deliver the next 2020-23 plan will have full ownership of the new strategy from the very
outset of the planning process.

Jean Pierre Mustier, Group CEO:

As we reach the final stretch of our Transform

2019 marathon, nearing the achievernent of our

key financial and operational targets, it is now time
to actively prepare for the next strategic cycle. Our
overarching objective is to create sustained value

for all our stakeholders, primarily through proactive
self help actions focused on the development of

our activities and continued optimisation of our
processes, to ensure UniCredit remains a pan-
European winner. This begins with an even more
energised leadership team, and a changed leadership
structure that will bring this new strategy to fruition.
We will build the next phase of the Group's long
term transformational journey capitalising on our
Transform 2019 achievements with an even stronger
focus on commercial banking supported by the
Group's successfully plugged in CIB. We shall also
continue the comprehensive review and digitalisation
of our processes and roll-out an even more proactive
and enhanced Group-wide customer service.

By further streamlining the management structure with fewer direct reports, the CEO will be able to
fully focus on the new strategy, drive the transformation process as well as actively contribute to the
development of the next generation of UniCredit managers.

The new organisational project will be effective before the end of March.
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1. Ad interim covered by Group CEOQ.
2. Mrs. Kuetz, will become deputy COO.
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Senior Management Team

JEAN PIERRE
MUSTIER

Chief Executive Officer

GIANPAOLO CARLO MAURIZIO MIRKO
ALESSANDRO APPETITI BERETTA BIANCHI

Head of Group Legal Group Compliance Head of Group Institutional Group Chief Financial
Secretary of the BoD Officer Affairs & Sustainability Officer

GIANFRANCO MARCO 7 RICHARD ANDREA
BISAGNI BIZZOZERO BURTON CASINI

Designated Co-CEO CEO Group Wealth Designated CEO Co-CEO Commercial
Commercial Banking CEE Management CIB Division Banking Italy

i “ A
PAOLO SERENELLA* RANIERI MICHAEL
CORNETTA DE CANDIA DE MARCHIS DIEDERICH

Head of Group Human Head of Internal Audit Co-Chief Operating CEO Commercial

Capital Officer Banking Germany
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FRANCESCO
GIORDANO

Designated Co-CEO
Commercial Banking WEu

OLIVIER
KHAYAT

Designated Co-CEO

Commercial Banking WEu

Designated Deputy COO )
Chief Transformation Officer Officer

AURELIO | ANDREA FRANCESCO
MACCARIO MAFFEZZONI

Head of Group Head of Strategy
Regulatory Affairs and M&A

MAXIMILIAN
HOHENBERG

Headof Group Identity
& Communication

FINJA CAROLIN STEFANO
KUTZ LIM PORRO

Group Chief Risk Designated Head of Group

Administrative& Analytics Office

GIOVANNI
RONCA

Co-CEO Commercial
Banking Italy

: 4
ANDREA UMBERTO CARLO NICCOLO
VARESE VIVALDI UBERTALLI

Designated Co-CEO
Commercial Banking CEE

Designated Co-Chief
Operating Officer

Chief Lending Officer

* Not EMC Member
** EMC Permanent Guest

ROBERT ALESSANDRO
ZADRAZIL FOTI**

CEO Commercial

Banking Austria
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List of other members of Group Management Team*

EXECUTIVE
VICE PRESIDENT

CENTRAL EASTERN EUROPE
Mikhail Alekseev
Chief Executive Officer - Russia

Graziano Cameli
General Manager - Russia

Claudio Cesario
General Manager - Croatia

Marco Cravario
General Manager - Romania

Andrea Diamanti
Head of CEE CIB & PB

Levon Hampartzoumian
Chief Executive Officer - Bulgaria

Marco lannaccone
General Manager - Hungary

Paolo lannone
Deputy Chief Executive Officer - Czech
Republic & Slovakia

Jiri Kunert
Chief Executive Officer - Czech
Republic & Slovakia

Enrico Maria Minniti
General Manager - Bulgaria

Mihaly Patai
Chief Executive Officer - Hungary

Rasvan Radu
Chief Executive Officer - Romania

Luca Rubaga
Head of CEE GBS & CEE CIO

Arcangelo Michele Vassallo
Head of CEE Bank Assurance

Ivan Vlaho
Head of CEE Retail

Miljenko Zivaljic
Chief Executive Officer - Croatia

Feza Tan **
Chief Executive Officer - Serbia

Gordan Pehar **
Chief Executive Officer - Banja Luka

Dalibor Cubela **
Chief Executive Officer - Mostar

Stefan Vavti **
Chief Executive Officer - Slovenia

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING
Giuseppe Aquaro

Head of CIB Business and Process
Transformation

Luca Corsini
Global Head of Global Transaction Banking

Alfredo Maria De Falco
Head of CIB Italy

Jéréme Frizé
Head of Financial Instititutions Groups

Guy Laffineur
Head of Markets

Patrick Soulard
Country Head France

COUNTRY AUSTRIA - UNICREDIT BANK
AUSTRIAAG

Romeo Collina

Chief Operating Officer

Dieter Hengl
Head of CIB Network Austria

Juergen Kullnigg
Chief Risk Officer

Mauro Maschio
Privatkundenbank (Retail,Small Business,Private)

Doris Tomanek
Head of HR Austria

Susanne Wendler
Unternehmerbank (Corporate Banking)

COUNTRY GERMANY - UNICREDIT BANKAG
Sandra Betocchi
Chief Operating Officer

Markus Beumer
Head of Commercial Banking

Diego Biondo
Head of SRM

Emanuele Butta'
Head of Commercial Banking
(Privatkunden Bank)

Ljiljana Cortan
Chief Risk Officer

Joachim Dobrikat
Head Of Accounting, Shareholdings &
Reg. Reporting

Andreas Frueh
Head of Legal, Corporate Affairs
& Documentation

Jan Kupfer
Head of Corporate & Investment Banking

Angelika Plauk
Head of Audit Management

Georg Rohleder
Head of Human Capital &
Corporate Activities

Guglielmo Zadra
Chief Financial Officer

FINECOBANK

Mauro Albanese

Head of Commercial PFA Network
and Private Banking

Paolo Di Grazia
Deputy General Manager and
Head of Global Business

Fabio Milanesi
Deputy General Manager and
Head of Global Banking Services

Lorena Pelliciari
Chief Financial Officer

ITALY
Andrea Burchi
Regional Manager Centro Nord

Giovanni Forestiero
Regional Manager Centro

Elena Goitini
Regional Manager Sud

Lucio lzzi
Head of Corporate Sales & Marketing
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Salvatore Malandrino
Regional Manager Sicilia

Salvatore Pisconti
Head of Private Banking Sales & Advisory

Giovanni Solaroli
Regional Manager Lombardia

Remo Taricani
Head of Retail Sales & Marketing

GROUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT
Gaspare Amico

Head of GWM Strategy, Business
Management & Development

Paolo Lange'
Cordusio SIM - Chief Executive Officer

CEO FUNCTIONS

GROUP COMPLIANCE
Martin Boehm
Head of Group CIB Compliance

Giovanni Buson
Head of Group Compl Advisory
& Country Italy Management

GROUP HUMAN CAPITAL
Angelo Carletta
Head of HR COO Area

Cihangir Kavuncu
Head of HR Transformation and
Operations Office

Luigi Luciani
Head of HR Italy & CEO Functions

Ivan Tardivo
Head of HR CIB

Andrea Vintani
Head of Planning & Reward and Human
Capital Development

GROUP IDENTITY & COMMUNICATION
Laura Spotorno
Head of Group Internal Communication

GROUP LEGAL
Leila Canetta Roeder
Head of Group CIB Legal

GROUP LENDING OFFICE
Mario Agostini
Head of CLO ltaly

Maurizio Maria Francescatti
Head of Group Lending Processes

Andreas Mayer
Head of Group Credit Transactions

GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT
Davide Bazzarello
Head of Group Credit & Integrated Risks

Giandomenico Miceli
Head of Group Operational
& Reputational Risk

Corrado Pavanati
Head of Group Risk Models & Credit Risk
Governance

Wolfgang Schilk
Head of CRO CEE

COOAREA
Alessandro Brusadelli
Head of Group Finance

Stefano Ceccacci
Head of Group Tax Affairs

Mihaela Alina Lupu
Head of Group Planning, Capital Management
& Strategic ALM

Simone Marcucci
Head of Global Business Planning & Control

Roberto Monachino
Head of Group Data Office

Fabio Cesaretti
UniCredit Services - CIO CIB and Germany

Paolo Chiaverini
UniCredit Services - Head of Global Operations

Salvatore Greco
Head of Group Real Estate

Marcello Vittorio Ronco
UniCredit Services - CIO Commercial Banking
& ltaly

Daniele Tonella
UniCredit Services - Chief Executive Officer

Stefan Vogt
Head of Group ICT & Security Office

* Data as at February 1, 2019
** SVP Group Title
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Transform
operating
moadael.

We are leverading on digitalisation to transform our operating model. We
are ahead of schedule, with an improved cost reduction. The optimisation

of the cost base will remain important to ensure our Group’s efficiency and
effectiveness.




Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts

Consolidated accounts

Consolidated balance sheet (€'000)
AMOUNTS AS AT

ASSETS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
10. Cash and cash balances 30,991,361 64,493,411
20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 86,137,755

a) financial assets held for trading 65,231,474

b) financial assets designated at fair value 106

c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 20,906,175
Financial assets held for trading (ex IAS39 Item 20) 74,685,890
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (ex IAS39 Item 30) 22,073,343
30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 88,280,157
Available-for-sale financial assets (ex IAS39 ltem 40) 104,101,031
40. Financial assets at amortised cost: 579,310,842

a) loans and advances to banks 73,642,827

b) loans and advances to customers 505,668,015
Held-to-maturity investments (ex IAS39 Item 50) 6,277,022
Loans and receivables with banks (ex IAS39 ltem 60) 70,982,743
Loans and receivables with customers (ex IAS39 Item 70) 447,726,913
50. Hedging derivatives 4,681,517 3,431,070
60. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) 2,438,598 2,244,685
70. Equity investments 5,501,533 6,212,142
80. Insurance reserves charged to reinsurers - -
90. Property, plant and equipment 8,408,356 8,449,288
100. Intangible assets 3,507,246 3,385,310

of which: goodwill 1,483,721 1,483,721
110. Tax assets: 13,077,671 12,658,279

a) current 1,031,863 2,039,696

b) deferred 12,045,808 10,618,583
120. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 1,799,936 1,110,960
130. Other assets 7,333,752 8,957,637
Total assets 831,468,724 836,789,724
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Consolidated accounts

continued: Consolidated balance sheet (€'000)
AMOUNTS AS AT

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
10. Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 686,036,242

a) deposits from banks 125,895,243

b) deposits from customers 478,987,709

¢) debt securities in issue 81,153,290
Deposits from banks (ex IAS39 Item 10) 123,244,080
Deposits from customers (ex IAS39 ltem 20) 462,895,261
Debt securities in issue (ex IAS39 ltem 30) 98,602,632
20. Financial liabilities held for trading 43,111,236
Financial liabilities held for trading (ex IAS39 Item 40) 55,783,725
30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value 9,317,731
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (ex IAS39 Item 50) 3,010,529
40. Hedging derivatives 6,032,029 3,567,845
50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+/-) 3,229,796 3,041,990
60. Tax liabilities: 824,740 1,092,905

a) current 401,717 651,263

b) deferred 423,023 441,642
70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 539,987 184,829
80. Other liabilities 13,950,607 15,573,476
90. Provision for employee severance pay 697,592 917,284
100. Provisions for risks and charges: 10,960,983 8,650,468

a) committments and guarantees given 1,140,057

b) post-retirement benefit obligations 4,767,399 4,522,188

¢) other provisions for risks and charges 5,053,527 4,128,280
110. Technical reserves - -
120. Valuation reserves (7,489,131) (4,327,092)
130. Redeemable shares - -
140. Equity instruments 4,610,073 4,610,073
150. Reserves 20,502,728 19,296,907
160. Share premium 13,392,918 13,399,799
170. Share capital 20,940,398 20,880,550
180. Treasury shares (-) (8,826) (2,695)
190. Minority shareholders' equity (+/-) 927,182 894,083
200. Profit (Loss) of the year (+/-) 3,892,439 5,473,075
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 831,468,724 836,789,724
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Consolidated accounts

Consolidated income statement (€'000)
AS AT
ITEMS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
10. Interest income and similar revenues 15,219,793 14,759,711
of which: interest income calculated with the effective interest method 12,989,294
20. Interest expenses and similar charges (4,366,666) (4,461,650)
30. Net interest margin 10,853,127 10,298,061
40. Fees and commissions income 8,165,441 7,663,454
50. Fees and commissions expenses (1,295,370) (1,271,029)
60. Net fees and commissions 6,870,071 6,392,425
70. Dividend income and similar revenues 412,939 314,807
80. Net gains (losses) on trading 416,633
Gains (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading (ex IAS39 Iltem 80) 1,075,435
90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting 17,163 57,344
100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and repurchase of: 308,048
a) financial assets at amortised cost 128,650
b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 176,005
c) financial liabilities 3,393
Gains (Losses) on disposal and repurchase of (ex IAS39 Item 100): 98,963
a) loans (433,732)
b) available-for-sale financial assets 533,353
¢) held-to-maturity investments 10
d) financial liabilities (668)
110. Net gains (losses) on other financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 289,014
a) financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value 411,248
b) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value (122,234)
Gains (Losses) on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (ex IAS39 ltem 110) (91,007)
120. Operating income 19,166,995 18,146,028
130. Net losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: (2,680,959)
a) financial assets at amortised cost (2,661,563)
b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (19,396)
Net losses/recoveries on impairment (ex IAS39 Item 130): (2,412,669)
a) loans (2,090,607)
b) available-for-sale financial assets (334,642)
¢) held-to-maturity investments 6,387
d) other financial assets 6,193
140. Gains/Losses from contractual changes with no cancellations (3,002)
150. Net profit from financial activities 16,483,034 15,733,359
160. Net premiums - -
170. Other net insurance income/expenses - -
180. Net profit from financial and insurance activities 16,483,034 15,733,359
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Consolidated accounts

continued: Consolidated income statement (€'000)
AS AT

ITEMS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017

190. Administrative expenses: (11,488,781) (12,069,279)

a) staff costs (6,436,912) (6,930,132)

b) other administrative expenses (5,051,869) (5,139,147)
200. Net provisions for risks and charges: (1,523,003) (508,576)

a) commitments and financial guarantees given (19,037)

b) other net provisions (1,503,966) (508,576)
210. Net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant and equipment (606,074) (759,679)
220. Net value adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets (425,217) (407,384)
230. Other operating expenses/income 1,018,489 1,035,651
240. Operating costs (13,024,586) (12,709,267)
250. Gains (Losses) of equity investments (97,452) 576,326
260. Net gains (losses) on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair value 956 (613)
270. Goodwill impairment - -
280. Gains (Losses) on disposals on investments 231,421 99,835
290. Profit (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 3,593,373 3,699,640
300. Tax (expenses) income of the year from continuing operations 501,694 (595,662)
310. Profit (Loss) after tax from continuing operations 4,095,067 3,103,978
320. Profit (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations 13,515 2,681,598
330. Profit (Loss) of the year 4,108,582 5,785,576
340. Minority profit (loss) of the year (216,143) (312,501)
350. Parent Company's profit (loss) of the year 3,892,439 5,473,075
Earnings per share (€) 1.712 2.794
Diluted earnings per share (€) 1.704 2.779
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Consolidated accounts

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (€'000)
AS AT
ITEMS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
10. Profit (Loss) of the year 4,108,582 5,785,576
Other comprehensive income after tax not reclassified to profit or loss

20. Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 15,810

30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (own creditworthiness changes) 120,104

40. Hedge accounting of equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income -

50. Property, plant and equipment -

60. Intangible assets - -
70. Defined-benefit plans (297,712) 238,653
80. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale - (45)
90. Portion of valuation reserves from investments valued at equity method (2,181) (17,895)

Other comprehensive income after tax reclassified to profit or loss

100. Foreign investments hedging - -
110. Foreign exchange differences (386,090) 306,928
120. Cash flow hedging (130,101) (126,985)
130. Hedging instruments (non-designated items) -

140. Financial assets (different from equity instruments) at fair value through other comprehensive

income (1,289,667)

Available-for-sale financial assets (ex IAS39 Item 100) (84,396)
150. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale - 40,960
160. Part of valuation reserves from investments valued at equity method (829,057) (456,037)
170. Total other comprehensive income after tax (2,798,894) (98,817)
180. Other comprehensive income (ltem 10+170) 1,309,688 5,686,759
190. Minority consolidated other comprehensive income (214,741) (522,041)
200. Parent Company's consolidated other comprehensive income 1,094,947 5,164,718
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Statement of changes in the consolidated shareholders' equity as at 31 December 2018

PREVIOUS YEAR PROFIT (LOSS) ALLOCATION
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Share capital:
- ordinary shares 21,200,353 - 21,200,353
- other shares 2,368 - 2,368
Share premium 13,488,060 - 13,488,060
Reserves:
- from profits 11,519,736 (3,011,723) 8,508,013 4,923,995
- other 7,950,530 - 7,950,530 -
Valuation reserves (4,329,035) (325,404) (4,654,439)
Advanced dividends - - -
Equity instruments 4,610,073 - 4,610,073
Treasury shares (2,961) - (2,961) - -
Profit (Loss) of the year 5,785,576 - 5,785,576 (4,923,995) (861,581)
Total shareholders’ equity 60,224,700 (3,337,127) 56,887,573 - (861,581)
Group shareholders' equity 59,330,617 (3,327,358) 56,003,259 - (714,559)
Minority shareholders' equity 894,083 (9,769) 884,314 - (147,022)

The column “Change in opening balances” includes the reclassification and remeasurement effects resulting from the first time adoption of
accounting principle IFRS9. It should be noted that these effects include a negative impact for €198 million related to a company consolidated using
the equity method totally compensated by previous impairment reversals. Furthermore, it is worth specifying that due to deposits certificates
reclassification, performed in order to grant the homogeneous classification within the Group, the accumulated changes in fair value related to the
own credit risk for €21 million have been accounted with negative impact in revaluation reserves with a corresponding positive effect under other
reserves. Refer to “Transition to ‘IFRS9 Financial Instruments’ of UniCredit group”, General - Other matters, for further details.

The amounts disclosed in column “Stock Options” represent the effects of the delivery of shares (Stock Options, Performance Shares, Discount and
Matching Shares connected with the ESOP Plans and other Group Executive Incentive Plans).

The cumulated change of revaluation reserve includes the negative effect for €299 million of actuarial gain (losses) from the measurement of the
actuarial liabilities (defined benefit plans), the negative effects of the cash flow hedges reserve for €130 million and the negative effect of financial
asset and liabilities at fair value for €1,186 million.

This cumulated change includes furthermore the negative effect of exchange differences reserve for €386 million, mainly related to negative effect of
Ruble for €352 million and the negative change in the valuation reserve of the companies accounted for using the equity method for €838 million,
mainly due to the depreciation of the items in Turkish Lira for €712 million.

The negative change of the other reserves includes the payment of coupon on AT1 equity instruments for €242 million.

The main change in share capital refers to the increase of €60 million following the resolution of the Board of Directors of 7 February 2018 of
UniCredit S.p.A. executed through a withdrawal from the specifically constituted reserve, for the issue of the shares connected to the medium term
incentive plan for Group personnel.

For further details about the Shareholders’ equity changes see Part B - Consolidated balance sheet - Liabilities - Section 13 of the Consolidated
financial statement, Notes to the consolidated accounts.
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53,700 (59,849) - - 13,425,860 13,221,839 204,021
(613,235) - - 70,465 - - 7,407,760 7,280,889 126,871
(40,886) - - | (2,798,894) (7,494,219) (7,489,131) (5,088)
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(15,161) - - (18,122 (8,826) (9,296)
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(615,562) 2,368 | (2,368) - 70,465 2,049 1,004,947 55,840,599
(22,802) - (2,049) 214,741 927,182

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

95



Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts

Consolidated accounts

Statement of changes in the consolidated shareholders' equity as at 31 December 2017

PREVIOUS YEAR PROFIT (LOSS) ALLOCATION
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Share capital:
- ordinary shares 21,371,076 - 21,371,076
- other shares 8,517 - 8,517 -
Share premium 15,833,467 - 15,833,467 (11,460,133)
Reserves:
- from profits 13,648,993 - 13,648,993 (67,363)
- other 5,531,632 - 5,531,632 -
Valuation reserves (4,255,598) - (4,255,598)
Advanced dividends - - -
Equity instruments 2,383,463 - 2,383,463
Treasury shares (6,935) - (6,935) - -
Profit (Loss) of the year (11,326,313) - (11,326,313) 11,527,496 (201,183)
Total shareholders’ equity 43,188,302 - 43,188,302 - (201,183)
Group shareholders' equity 39,335,550 - 39,335,550 - (2,000)
Minority shareholders' equity 3,852,752 - 3,852,752 - (199,183)

The amounts disclosed in column “Stock Options” represent the effects of the delivery of shares (Stock Options, Performance Shares, Discount and
Matching Shares connected with the ESOP Plans and other Group Executive Incentive Plans).

The cumulated change of revaluation reserve includes the positive effect for €239 million of actuarial gain (losses) from the measurement of the
actuarial liabilities (defined benefit plans), the negative effect of €84 million of the reserve on AFS financial assets, the negative effects of the cash
flow hedges reserve for €127 million and the positive effects of the reserve on non-current assets classified as held for sale for €68 million mainly
due to the sale of the Polish subsidiary and to the disposal to Amundi of the subsidiaries belonging to Pioneer group.

This change includes furthermore the positive effect of exchange differences reserve for €307 million, mainly related to the reduction for €494 million
of the negative exchange differences reserve of Zloty, €310 million referred to Group portion, related to the Polish subsidiary due to the loss of
control occurred on 7 June 2017 partially net by the negative effect of Ruble for €219 million. In addition this positive effect is partly net of the
negative change in the valuation reserve of the companies accounted for using the equity method for €475 million, mainly due to the depreciation of
the items in Turkish Lira for €427 million.

The column “Changes in reserves” for items “Reserves”, “Issued capital” e “Share premiums” represent the coverage of the loss included in
“Reserves - other” through the use of Share Premium reserve for €2,509 million. The reduction of “Issued Capital”, “Share premiums” and “Reserves
from profit” related to minorities refers to the sale of the Bank Pekao S.A. for €3,462 million.

The changes in shareholdings relate to the effects of the disposal of Bank Pekao S.A. share (1.04%) due to the early redemption of “Secured
mandatorily exchangeable equity-linked certificate” occurred in the first quarter of 2017 before loss of control on 7 June 2017 following the sale of
32.8% to Powszechny Zaktad Ubezpieczen S.A and Polish Development Fund S.A.
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(213,836) 39,805 - - - 3,307 - 21,200,353 20,878,182 322,171
- (6,149) - - - - 2,368 2,368 -
(3,891,425) 12,983,565 - - - | 22,586 - 13,488,060 13,399,799 88,261
(2,105,128) (17,588) - - - | 60,821 - 11,519,736 11,473,248 46,488
2,340,559 - - 78,339 - - 7,950,530 7,823,659 126,871
25,380 - - - (98,817) (4,329,035) (4,327,092 (1,943
- - - | 2,226,610 - 4,610,073 4,610,073 -
3,974 - - (2,961) (2,695) (266)
- - - - - - 5,785,576 5,785,576 5,473,075 312,501
(3,840,476) 12,999,633 - | 2,226,610 78,339 | 86,714 5,686,759 60,224,700 59,330,617 894,083
(501,227) 12,999,633 - | 2,226,610 78,339 | 28,992 5,164,718 59,330,617
(3,339,249) - - - | 57,722 522,041 894,083
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Consolidated cash flow statement (indirect method) (€000)
AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Operations: 8,565,661 10,370,919
- profit (loss) of the period (+/-) 3,892,439 5,473,075
- gains/losses on financial assets held for trading and on other financial assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (-/+) (2,202,705)
- capital gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities held for trading and on assets/liabilities
designated at fair value through profit and loss (+/-) (ex IAS39) 212,862
- gains (losses) on hedge accounting (-/+) (17,163) (57,344)
- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) 4,485,919
- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) (ex IAS39) 4,345,256
- net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 1,030,335 1,167,676
- net provisions for risks and charges and other expenses/income (+/-) 1,044,621
- provisions and other incomes/expenses (+/-) (ex IAS39) 390,210
- uncollected net premiums (-) - -
- other uncollected insurance income/expenses (-/+) - -
- unpaid duties, taxes and tax credits (+/-) (728,803) 274,083
- impairment/write-backs after tax on discontinued operations (+/-) (19,484) (1,739,601)
- other adjustments (+/-) 1,080,502 304,702
2. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial assets: (39,033,291) 19,635,267
- financial assets held for trading 10,559,453
- financial assets held for trading (ex IAS39) 12,571,386
- financial assets designated at fair value (96)
- other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 6,153,236
- financial assets at fair value (ex IAS39) 6,559,653
- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 10,436,086
- available-for-sale financial assets (ex IAS39) 5,611,395
- financial assets at amortised cost (68,600,901)
- loans and receivables with banks (ex IAS39) 3,217,078
- loans and receivables with customers (ex IAS39) (6,606,690)
- other assets 2,418,931 (1,717,555)
3. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial liabilities: (491,896) 2,493,222
- financial liabilities at amortised cost 6,386,534
- deposits from banks (ex IAS39) 20,608,680
- deposits from customers (ex IAS39) 9,747,803
- debt certificates including bonds (ex IAS39) (16,163,807)
- financial liabilities held for trading (7,373,824)
- financial liabilities held for trading (ex IAS39) (12,544,782)
- financial liabilities designated at fair value 1,634,897
- financial liabilities designated at fair value (ex IAS39) 513,797
- other liabilities (1,139,503) 331,531
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by operating activities (30,959,526) 32,499,408
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continued: Consolidated cash flow statement (indirect method) (€'000)
AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
B. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
1. Liquidity generated by: 841,857 7,694,211
- sales of equity investments 14,147 44,937
- collected dividends on equity investments 182,892 131,409
- sales of property, plant and equipment 376,723 291,830
- sales of intangible assets 6,225 12,790
- sales of subsidiaries and business units 261,870 7,176,545
- sales of financial assets held to maturity (ex IAS39) 36,700
2. Liquidity absorbed by: (2,061,504) (3,898,008)
- purchases of equity investments (484,934) (57,322)
- purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,007,528) (781,419)
- purchases of intangible assets (569,042) (627,462)
- purchases of subsidiaries and business units - -
- purchases of financial assets held to maturity (ex IAS39) (2,431,805)
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by investment activities (1,219,647) 3,796,203
C. FUNDING ACTIVITIES
- issue/purchase of treasury shares - 12,590,744
- issue/purchase of equity instruments - 2,226,610
- dividend distribution and other (1,300,584) (477,993)
- sale/purchase of minority control - -
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by funding activities (1,300,584) 14,339,361
NET LIQUIDITY GENERATED/ABSORBED IN THE YEAR (33,479,757) 50,634,972
Key:
(+) generated;
(-) absorbed.
Reconciliation (€'000)
AS AT
ITEMS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Cash and cash balances at the beginning of the year 64,493,411 13,857,831
Net liquidity generated/absorbed in the year (33,479,757) 50,634,972
Cash and cash balances: foreign exchange effect (22,293) 608
Cash and cash balances at the end of the year 30,991,361 64,493,411

For the purposes of determining the liquidity generated/absorbed by financial assets and liabilities, the balance sheet figures as at 31 December
2018, including the effects of the application of IFRS9, are compared with those as at 1 January 2018. With regard to reconciliation between the
data as at 31 December 2017 and those resulting as at 1 January 2018 from the First Time Adoption of the new standards, refer to the section
"Transition to ‘IFRS9: Financial Instruments’ of UniCredit group” in Part A - Accounting policies, A.1 - General, Section 5 - Other matters of this

document.

For further details related to the change of the Funding activities regarding the issue/purchase of equity instruments, refer to Part B - Consolidated

balance sheet - Liabilities - Section 13 - Group shareholders’ equity.

The item "Cash and cash equivalents” refers to the definition according to Banca d'ltalia (Circular 262, 22 December 2005 and subsequent

admendemts).

The information related to the significant restrictions are provided in Part A - Accounting Policies - A.1 - General - Section 3 - Consolidation scope

and methods.
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Part A - Accounting policies

A.1 - General

Section 1 - Statement of compliance with [FRS

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), including the interpretation documents issued by the SIC and the IFRIC, and endorsed by the European Commission up to 31 December
2018, pursuant to EU Regulation No.1606/2002 which was incorporated into Italian legislation through Legislative Decree No.38 of 28 February
2005 (see Section 5 - Other matters).

The Consolidated financial statements are an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements as required by Art.154-ter, par.1 of the Single Finance
Act (TUF, Legislative Decree No.58 of 24 February 1998).

In its circular 262 of 22 December 2005 and subsequent amendments Banca d'ltalia laid down the formats for the financial statements and
explanatory notes used to prepare these financial statements. Banca d'ltalia issued on 22 December 2017 the 5" update of its circular 262 adjusting
the formats for the consolidated accounts and notes to the consolidated accounts to the requirements of IFRS9: Financial Instruments.

Note that as a result of the first time adoption of the new accounting standard IFRS9 and the choice not to restate the previous period, the templates
of the accounts and the tables in the notes to the accounts prescribed by the mentioned circular have been integrated with additional items in order
to allow comparisons with the previous period that has been presented according to IAS39 standard and to Circular 262 (4! update of 15 December
2015).

Opening balances shown in tables of the notes to the consolidated accounts are the ones coming from the first time adoption of the new accounting
standard IFRS9.

In addition, with reference to some tables in Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies, the abovementioned circumstances have required
the choice not to provide the comparison with the previous period with reference to certain tables whose content is not comparable with previous
period tables.

Section 2 - General preparation criteria

As mentioned above, these Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS endorsed by the European

Commission.

The following documents have been used to interpret and support the application of IFRS, even though not all of them have been endorsed by the

European Commission:

 The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting;

o Implementation Guidance, Basis for Conclusions, IFRICs and any other documents prepared by the IASB or International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) supplementing the IFRSs;

o Interpretative documents on the application of IAS/IFRS in Italy prepared by the Organismo Italiano di Contabilita (OIC) and Associazione
Bancaria Italiana (ABI);

o ESMA (European Securities and Markets Authority) and CONSOB documents on the application of specific IFRS provisions.

The Consolidated financial statements include the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the Cash flow statement (compiled using the “indirect method”) and the Notes to the consolidated
accounts, together with the Consolidated report on operations and Annexes.

In addition, pursuant to Art.123-bis par.3 of TUF, as reported in chapter “Other information” of the Consolidated report on operations, the Report on
Corporate Governance and Ownership Structures is available in the "Governance" section of UniCredit website:
https://www.unicreditgroup.eulit/governance/governance-system-and-policies.html - Italian version and
https://lwww.unicreditgroup.eu/en/governance/governance-system-and-policies.html - English version.

Figures in the financial statements and Notes to the accounts are given in thousands of euros, unless otherwise specified.

In their joint Document No.4 of 3 March 2010, Banca d'ltalia, Consob and Isvap made a few observations on the current situation of the markets and
businesses and requested to disclose in the financial statements information which are essential for a better understanding of business trends and
outlook.

In this regard, the Directors, based on the 2016-2019 Strategic Plan as well as on the results of the capital increase fully subscribed with effect from
2 March 2017, identified no symptoms in the capital and financial structure and in the economic performance that could indicate uncertainty about
the ability to continue as a going-concern and therefore believe with reasonable certainty that the Group will continue to operate profitably in the
foreseeable future; as a result, in accordance with the provisions of IAS1, the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2018 have been
prepared on a going-concern basis.
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The measurement criteria adopted are therefore consistent with the assumption that the business is a going-concern and with the principles of
accrual based accounting, the relevance and materiality of accounting information, and the prevalence of economic substance over legal form.
These criteria have not changed compared with the previous year.

Risks and uncertainty relating to the use of estimates

Pursuant to IFRSs, Management must make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting principles and the
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses reported in the Accounts, as well as the disclosure concerning potential assets and liabilities.
Estimates and the related assumptions are based on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable under the circumstances and
have been used to estimate the carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily available from other sources.

In particular estimated figures have been used for the recognition of some of the largest value-based items in the Consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2018, as required by the accounting policies and regulations described above. These estimates are largely based on calculations of
future recoverability of the values recognised in the accounts according to the rules laid down in current legislation and have been made on the
assumption of a going-concern, i.e. without contemplating the possibility of the forced sale of the estimated items.

The processes adopted confirm the carrying values at 31 December 2018. Valuation is particularly difficult because of the uncertainty in the
macroeconomic and market environment.

The parameters and information used to check the above-mentioned values were therefore significantly affected by such factors, which could
change rapidly in ways that are currently unforeseeable, such that further effects on future carrying values cannot be ruled out.

Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from these reviews are recognised in the period in which the review was
carried out, provided the change only concerns that period. If the revision concerns both current and future periods it is recognised accordingly in
both current and future periods.

Uncertainty affecting estimates is generally inherent in the measurement of:

o fair value of financial instruments not listed in active markets;

o |oans and receivables, equity investments and, in general, any other financial assets/liabilities;

 severance pay (Italy) and other employee benefits;

o provisions for risks and charges and contingent assets (for more information on legal risks see Part E - Par.2.5 Operational risk);

o goodwill and other intangible assets;

o deferred tax assets;

o investment properties;

whose assessment may significantly change over time according to the trend in (i) domestic and international socio-economic conditions and
subsequent impact on the Group’s profitability and customers’ creditworthiness, (ii) financial markets, which affect changes in interest rates, prices
and actuarial assumptions and (ii) real estate market affecting the value of property owned by the Bank or received as collateral. Regarding the
evaluation of credit exposures, it should be noted that, with the entrance into force of IFRS9, their evaluation depends on forward-looking information
and, in particular, on the evolution of macro-economic scenarios used in the calculation of loan loss provisions.

Note that the economic and political uncertainty in Turkey and Russia were taken into account during the assessment of the net assets owned by
the Group in these countries. See Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies - Section 5 - Other Risks - Top and emerging risks.

Similarly, risks and uncertainties associated with a macroeconomic scenario involving tensions in international trade, an increase in rates and
spreads, with specific reference to certain geographical areas and the expected contractions of quantitative easing measures so far implemented by
Central Banks, were considered in the valuation of assets. In this regard, refer to the Outlook of the Consolidated report on operations.

With specific reference to future cash flow projections used in the valuation of goodwill, other intangible assets and deferred tax assets, it should be
noted that the parameters and information used are significantly influenced by the macro-economic market situation, which may change in
unpredictably. For further information see Part B - Consolidated Balance Sheet - Assets - Section 10 - Intangible assets.

With specific reference to valuation techniques, unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement and sensitivities to changes in those inputs,
refer to Section A.4 - Information on fair value.

102 2018 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCredit



Consolidated financial statements | Notes to the consolidated accounts

Part A - Accounting policies

Section 3 - Consolidation scope and methods

The consolidation criteria and principles used to prepare the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2018 are described below.

Consolidated Accounts

For the preparation of the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2018 the following sources have been used:

o UniCredit S.p.A. general meeting draft accounts as at 31 December 2018;

o the accounts as at 31 December 2018, approved by the competent bodies and functions, of the other fully consolidated subsidiaries duly
reclassified and adjusted to take account of consolidation needs and, where necessary, to align them to the Group accounting principles;

o the sub-consolidated Accounts of Nuova Compagnia di Partecipazioni Group, including Nuova Compagnia di Partecipazioni S.p.A. (formerly
Compagnia ltalpetroli S.p.A.), and Capital Dev Group, including Capital Dev S.p.A., and their direct and indirect subsidiaries, as at 31 December
2018.

Amounts in foreign currencies are converted at closing exchange rates in the balance sheet, whereas the average exchange rate for the year is
used for the income statement.

The accounts and explanatory notes of the main fully consolidated subsidiaries prepared under [IAS/IFRS are subject to limited review by leading
audit companies.

Subsidiaries
Entities, including structured entities, over which the Group has direct or indirect control, are considered subsidiaries.

Control over an entity entails:

o the existence of power over the relevant activities;

o the exposure to the variability of returns;

o the ability to use the power exercised in order to influence the returns to which it is exposed.

In order to verify the existence of control, the Group considers the following factors:

o the purpose and establishment of the investee, in order to identify which are the entity's objectives, the activities that determine its returns and how
these activities are governed;

o the power, in order to understand whether the Group has contractual rights that attribute the ability to govern the relevant activities; to this end only
substantial rights that provide practical ability to govern are considered;

o the exposure held in relation to the investee, in order to assess whether the Group has relations with the investee, the returns of which are subject
to changes depending on the investee's performance;

o the existence of potential “principal - agent” relationships.

If the relevant activities are governed through voting rights, the existence of control is verified considering the voting rights held, including the
potential ones, and the existence of any shareholders' or other agreements which attribute the right to control the majority of the voting rights, to
appoint the majority of the governing body or in any case the power to determine the entity's financial and operating policies.

Subsidiaries may also include any “structured entity” in which the voting rights are not significant for establishing control, including special purpose
entities and investment funds.

In the case of structured entities, the existence of control is ascertained considering both the contractual rights that enable governance of the
relevant activities of the entity (or those that contribute most to the results) and the Group's exposure to the variability of returns deriving from these
activities.

The carrying amount of an equity interest in a fully consolidated entity held by the Parent company or another Group company is eliminated, against
the recognition of the assets and liabilities of the investee, as an offsetting entry to the corresponding portion of net equity of the subsidiary
attributable to the Group.

Intragroup balances, the off-balance sheet transactions, the income and expenses, and the gain/losses between consolidated companies are
eliminated in full, according to the method of consolidation adopted.

A subsidiary’s income and expenses are included in the consolidation from the date the Parent acquires the control. On disposal of a subsidiary, its
income and expenses are consolidated up to the date of the disposal, i.e. until the Parent ceases to control the subsidiary. The difference between
the consideration received of the subsidiary and the carrying amount of its net assets at the same date is recognised in the Income Statement under
item “280 Gains (Losses) on disposal of investments” for fully consolidated companies.
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The portion attributable to non-controlling interests is presented in the Balance sheet under item “190 Minorities”, separately from the liabilities and
net equity attributable to the Group. In the Income statement, the portion attributable to minorities is also presented separately under item “340
Minorities”.

With respect to companies included in the consolidation scope for the first time, the fair value of the cost paid to obtain control of this equity interest,
including ancillary expenses, is measured at the acquisition date.

The difference between the consideration received of an interest held in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of the net assets is recognised in the
Net Equity, if the sale does not entail loss of control.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is a contractual agreement under the terms of which two or more counterparties arrange to jointly control an entity.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when the decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

According to the standard IFRS11 - Joint Arrangements, such agreements must be classified as Joint Operations or Joint Ventures according to the
contractual rights and obligations held by the Group.

A Joint Operation is a joint arrangement in which the parties have rights on the assets and obligations with respect to the liabilities of the
arrangement.
A Joint Venture is a joint arrangement in which the parties have rights on the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of the joint arrangements and has determined that its jointly controlled equity investments are of the Joint
Venture type. These equity investments are recognised using the equity method.

Carrying amount of the Joint Ventures is tested in accordance with IAS36 as a single asset, by comparing it with the corresponding recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of value in use (VIU) and fair value (FV) less cost to sell).

Associates
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and which are not subsidiaries or joint ventures.
Significant influence is presumed when the investor:
o holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the share capital of another entity, or
e is able, also through shareholders' agreements, to exercise significant influence through:
- representation on the governing body of the company;
- participation in the policy-making process, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions;
- the existence of significant transactions;
- interchange of managerial personnel;
- provision of key technical information.

It is to be pointed out that only companies which are governed through voting rights can be classified as subject to significant influence.
Investments in associates are recognised using the equity method. Carrying amount of Associates is tested in accordance with IAS36 as a single
asset, by comparing it with the corresponding recoverable amount (i.e. higher of VIU and FV less cost to sell).

Equity Method

Equity investments in companies measured using the equity method include the goodwill (less any impairment loss) paid to purchase them.

The investor’s share of the profit and loss of the investee after the date of acquisition is recognised in the Income statement under item “250 Profit
(Loss) of investments”. Any dividends distributed reduce the carrying amount of the equity investment.

If the investor’'s share of an investee’s losses is equal to or greater than its carrying amount, no further losses are recognised, unless the investor
has incurred specific obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Gains and losses on transactions with associates or joint arrangements are eliminated according to the percentage interest in the said company.

Any changes in the revaluation reserves of associates or joint arrangements, which are recorded as a contra item to changes in value of the
phenomena relevant to this purpose, are reported separately in the Statement of other comprehensive income.

The following table shows the companies included in the scope of consolidation.
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1. Investments in Subsidiaries

OWNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP

TYPE OF VOTING
MAIN ADMINISTRATIVE ~ RELATIONSHIP HOLDING ~ RIGHTS
COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE U] HELD BY % %)
A. LINE BY LINE METHOD
1 UNICREDIT SPA MILAN MILAN PARENT COMPANYG
Issued capital EUR 20,940,398,466.81
2 A&T-PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 GRUNDSTUCKSAKTIENGESELLSCHAFT AM 100.00
POTSDAMER PLATZ BERLIN KG POTSDAMER PLATZ (HAUS VATERLAND)
Issued capital EUR 613,550
3 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND 1.89
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
OBERBAUM CITY KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN- UND 100.00 98.11
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
4 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 A&T-PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. 100.00 98.11
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. POTSDAMER PLATZ BERLIN KG
PARKKOLONNADEN KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND 1.89
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
5 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND 1.89
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
STUTTGART KRONPRINZSTRASSE KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100.00 98.11
KG
6 AGROB IMMOBILIEN AG ISMANING ISMANING 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 52.72 75.02
KG
Issued capital EUR 11,689,200
7 Al BETEILIGUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
8 ALLEGRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
9 ALLIB LEASING S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
10 ALLIB NEKRETNINE D.0.0. ZA POSLOVANJE ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 LOCAT CROATIA DOO 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital HRK 20,000
1 ALMS LEASING GMBH. VIENNA SALZBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,000
12 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. GRAND GEORGE 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
CAYMAN TOWN
Issued capital EUR 798
13 ALTUS ALPHA PLC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
14 ALV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
15 AMBASSADOR PARC DEDINJE D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UCTAM D.0.0. BEOGRAD 100.00
Issued capital RSD 98,672,974
16 ANTARES IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
17 ANTHEMIS EVO LLP LONDON LONDON 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
Issued capital EUR 30,904,702
18 AO LOCAT LEASING RUSSIA MOSCOwW MOSCOW 1 00O UNICREDIT LEASING 100.00

Issued capital RUR 106,998,000
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TYPE OF VOTING
MAIN ADMINISTRATIVE ~ RELATIONSHIP HOLDING  RIGHTS
COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE ) HELD BY % %@
19 AO UNICREDIT BANK MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital RUR 41,787,805,174
20 ARABELLA FINANCE DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
21 ARENA NPL ONE S.R.L. (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
2014)
22 ARGENTAURUS IMMOBILIEN-VERMIETUNGS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
UND VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
23 ARNO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
24 ATLANTERRA IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 90.00
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000
25 AUSTRIA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 0.40
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.40
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
26 BA ALPINE HOLDINGS, INC. WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 74,435,918
27 BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 5,630,000
28 BA CA LEASING (DEUTSCHLAND) GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA 94.90
Issued capital EUR 153,388 THROUGH A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDETHE 5.10 @
GROUP
29 BA CA SECUND LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
30 BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H. M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 363,364
31 BA GEBAEUDEVERMIETUNGSGMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA GVG-HOLDING GMBH 89.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG 10.00
GES.M.B.H.
PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 1.00
GMBH
32 BA GVG-HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 18,168
33 BA IMMO GEWINNSCHEIN FONDS1 VIENNA VIENNA 4 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG @)
34 BA-CA ANDANTE LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,500
35 BA-CA FINANCE (CAYMAN) Il LIMITED GEORGE GEORGE 1 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. 100.00
TOWN TOWN
Issued capital EUR 15,000
36 BA-CA FINANCE (CAYMAN) LIMITED GEORGE GEORGE 1 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. 100.00
TOWN TOWN
Issued capital EUR 15,000
37 BA-CA LEASING DREI GARAGEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
38 BA-CA LEASING MAR IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
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MAIN ADMINISTRATIVE ~ RELATIONSHIP HOLDING ~ RIGHTS
COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE Ul HELD BY % %
39 BA-CAMARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG VIENNA VIENNA UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 127,177
40 BA-CA PRESTO LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
41 BA-CA WIEN MITTE HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
42 BA/CA-LEASING BETEILIGUNGEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 454,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
43 BACA CENA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
44 BACA HYDRA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
45 BACA KOMMUNALLEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,500
46 BACA LEASING ALFAS.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 110,000
47 BACA LEASING CARMEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
48 BACA LEASING UND VIENNA VIENNA CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 98.80
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,287 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
49 BACAL ALPHA DOO ZA POSLOVANJE ZAGREB ZAGREB LOCAT CROATIADOO 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital HRK 20,000
50 BAL CARINA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
51 BAL HESTIA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
52 BALHORUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
53 BAL HYPNOS IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
54 BAL LETO IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
55 BAL OSIRIS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
56 BAL SOBEK IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 99.80
M.B.H.
57 BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING VIENNA VIENNA GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
IMMOBILIENANLAGEN GMBH GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20

COKG
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58 BANK AUSTRIA FINANZSERVICE GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 490,542
59 BANK AUSTRIA HUNGARIA BETA LEASING BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
KORLATOLT FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
60 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING ARGO IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
LEASING GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 WOEM GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
61 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING HERA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
LEASING GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
62 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING IKARUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
63 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING MEDEA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
LEASING GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
64 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST CLIENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
INVESTMENT GMBH MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 145,500
65 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
KAPITALANLAGE GMBH MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
66 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 94.95
MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,900,500
67 BANK AUSTRIA WOHNBAUBANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 18,765,944
68 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH EMDEN EMDEN 4 BARD HOLDING GMBH @
69 BARD HOLDING GMBH EMDEN EMDEN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
70 BAULANDENTWICKLUNG GDST 1682/8 GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 1.00
CO OEG
Issued capital EUR 0 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.00
7 BAVARIA SERVICOS DE REPRESENTACAO SAO PAULO SAO PAULO 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
COMERCIAL LTDA.
Issued capital BRL 351,531 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC
72 BERTRAM PROJEKT UNODECIMA HANNOVER HANNOVER 1 ROLIN GRUNDSTUCKSPLANUNGS- UND - 87.00
TECHNIKZENTRUM GMBH & CO. KG VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 10,000 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. KG 6.00
WEALTHCAP MANAGEMENT SERVICES GMBH 1.00
73 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
74 BF NINE HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 ALLEGRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
75 BIL LEASING-FONDS GMBH & CO VELUM KG GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 BIL LEASING-FONDS VERWALTUNGS-GMBH 33.33
Issued capital EUR 2,556 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00 33.33
76 BIL LEASING-FONDS VERWALTUNGS-GMBH GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,000
7 BORGO DI PEROLLA SRL MASSA MASSA 1 FONDIARIA LASA SPA 100.00
MARITTIMA MARITTIMA
Issued capital EUR 2,043,952
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78 BREWO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337
79 BUITENGAATS HOLDING B.V. EEMSHAVEN EEMSHAVEN 4 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH (€]
80 C.E.CO.S. COMPLETAMENTO EDILIZIO CORSO CATANIA CATANIA 1 ISTITUTO IMMOBILIARE DI CATANIA SPA 100.00
SICILIA SPA
Issued capital EUR 103,300
81 CA-LEASING OVUS S.R.0. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
82 CA-LEASING SENIOREN PARK GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
83 CA-ZETA REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
LIABILITY COMPANY GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
84 CABET-HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 290,909
85 CABO BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 CABET-HOLDING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
86 CALG 307 MOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 18,286
87 CALG 443 GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 1.00
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
88 CALG 445 GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.60
Issued capital EUR 18,168 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.40
COKG
89 CALG 451 GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
90 CALG ALPHA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
91 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
92 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.90
GRUNDSTUECKVERMIETUNG UND -
VERWALTUNG KG
Issued capital EUR 2,326,378
93 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
94 CALG GAMMA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
95 CALG GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 74.80
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
96 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
Issued capital EUR 254,355 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20

COKG
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97 CALG MINAL GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,286 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
98 CAPITAL DEV SPA ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 272,000
99 CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
BIPCA CORDUSIO RMBS)
100 CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
CAPITAL MORTGAGE 2007 - 1)
101 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 50.10
Issued capital EUR 6,000,000
102 CARDS & SYSTEMS EDV-DIENSTLEISTUNGS VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 55.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 75,000
103 CASTELLANI LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
COKG
Issued capital EUR 1,800,000 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 90.00
M.B.H.
104 CAVE NUOVE SPA ROME ROME 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 140,000
105 CHARADE LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
106 CHEFREN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,500
107 CIVITAS IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
108 COMMUNA - LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 REAL-LEASE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 99.80
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
109 COMPAGNIA FONDIARIA ROMANA - SOCIETA' A ROME ROME 1 NUOVA COMPAGNIA DI PARTECIPAZIONI SPA 100.00
RESPONDABILITA' LIMITATA
Issued capital EUR 103,400
110 CONSUMER THREE SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
CONSUMER THREE)
m CONTRA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 JAUSERN-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. 25.00
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
112 CORDUSIO RMBS - UCFIN SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: CORDUSIO RMBS UCFIN -
SERIE 2006)
113 CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: CORDUSIO RMBS
SECURITISATION - SERIE 2006)
114 CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)

(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: CORDUSIO RMBS
SECURITISATION - SERIE 2007)
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115 CORDUSIO SIM SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 96.10 ©
Issued capital EUR 56,282,051
116 CORDUSIO SOCIETA' FIDUCIARIA PER AZIONI MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 520,000
17 CORIT - CONCESSIONARIA RISCOSSIONE ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
TRIBUTI S.P.A. IN LIQUIDAZIONE
Issued capital EUR 1,243,732
118 CRIVELLI SRL MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000
119 DC BANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
120 DC ELEKTRONISCHE ZAHLUNGSSYSTEME GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 KSG KARTEN-VERRECHNUNGS- UND 100.00
SERVICEGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
121 DEBO LEASING SRL BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING IFN S.A. 0.01
Issued capital RON 724,400 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION IFN S.A. 99.99
122 DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO.
GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT ALPHA
MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital EUR 255,650
123 DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO.
GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT BETA
MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital EUR 255,650
124 DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO.
GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT GAMMA
MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital EUR 255,650
125 DINERS CLUB CS, SR.O. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 DC BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 995,000
126 DINERS CLUB POLSKA SP.Z.0.0. WARSAW WARSAW 1 DC BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital PLN 7,500,000
127 DIRANA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
LIEGENSCHAFTSVERWERTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT GMBH
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 17,500
128 DLV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
129 DUODEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
130 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 28 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
131 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 31 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG (6]
132 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 32 S.A. LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
133 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 32 SA. - LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
COMPARTEMENT 2
134 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 33 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
135 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 34 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
136 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 36 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
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137 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 37 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
138 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 38 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
139 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 39 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
140 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 41 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
141 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 43 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
142 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 44 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
143 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 46 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
144 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 48 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
145 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 54 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
146 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 55 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
147 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 56 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
148 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 57 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
149 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 63 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
150 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 718 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
151 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 911 LTD ST. HELIER ST. HELIER 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
152 EUROLEASE AMUN IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
153 EUROLEASE ANUBIS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
154 EUROLEASE ISIS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
155 EUROLEASE MARDUK IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
156 EUROLEASE RA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
157 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
158 EUROPA BEFEKTETESI ALAPKEZELOE ZRT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
(EUROPA INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT GMBH
LTD.)
Issued capital HUF 100,000,000
159 EUROPA INGATLANBEFEKTETESI ALAP (EUROPE BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 4 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. @)
REAL-ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND)
160 EUROPEAN-OFFICE-FONDS MUNICH MUNICH 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
161 EXPANDA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
162 F-E MORTGAGES SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: F-E VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
MORTGAGES 2005)
163 F-E MORTGAGES SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: F-E VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @
MORTGAGES SERIES 1 - 2003)
164 FACTORBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00

Issued capital EUR 3,000,000
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165 FINECO ASSET MANAGEMENT DESIGNATED DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 FINECOBANK SPA 100.00
ACTIVITY COMPANY
Issued capital EUR 3,000,000
166 FINECO VERWALTUNG AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
167 FINECOBANK SPA MILAN REGGIO 1 UNICREDIT SPA 35.35
EMILIA
Issued capital EUR 200,773,450
168 FINN ARSENAL LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.60
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 0.20
169 FMC LEASING INGATLANHASZNOSITO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
KORLATOLT FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
170 FMZ SAVARIA SZOLGALTATO KORLATOLT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT LEASING KFT 75.00
FELELOESSEG TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
171 FMZ SIGMA PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
172 FOLIA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
173 FONDIARIA LASA SPA ROME ROME 1 NUOVA COMPAGNIA DI PARTECIPAZIONI SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 3,102,000
174 FOOD & MORE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 100,000
175 FUGATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
176 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 27,434 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
177 GEBAEUDELEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
178 GELDILUX-TS-2015 S.A. LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
179 GEMEINDELEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 37.30
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GESELLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,333 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 37.50
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
180 GEMMA VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & PULLACH PULLACH 4 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH (6]

CO. VERMIETUNGS KG

Issued capital EUR 68,272,038
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181 GENERAL LOGISTIC SOLUTIONS LLC MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 UCTAM RU LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 100.00
Issued capital RUB 2,342,309,444
182 GRUNDSTUCKSAKTIENGESELLSCHAFT AM MUNICH MUNICH 1 TERRENO GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNG GMBH 98.24
POTSDAMER PLATZ (HAUS VATERLAND) & CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 4,086,245
183 GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT SIMON MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100.00
BESCHRANKT HAFTENDE KG
KOMMANDITGESELLSCHAF
Issued capital EUR 51,500
184 GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNG LINZ-MITTE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
185 H.F.S. IMMOBILIENFONDS GMBH EBERSBERG EBERSBERG 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,565
186 H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS DEUTSCHLAND 1 GMBH & MUNICH MUNICH 1 BIL IMMOBILIEN FONDS GMBH
CO. KG (IMMOBILIENLEASING)
Issued capital EUR 97,154,824 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 99.43
187 H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS DEUTSCHLAND 7 GMBH & MUNICH MUNICH 4 HVB PROJEKT GMBH @)
CO.KG
Issued capital EUR 56,605,126 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT
GMBH
188 H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH EBERSBERG EBERSBERG 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,000
189 HAMZO PROJECT DEVELOPMENT | GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH 90.00
190 HAWA GRUNDSTUCKS GMBH & CO. OHG MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 99.50
HOTELVERWALTUNG KG
Issued capital EUR 276,200 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 0.50
191 HAWA GRUNDSTUCKS GMBH & CO. OHG MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 99.50
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG KG
Issued capital EUR 54,300 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 0.50
192 HELICONUS SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
HELICONUS)
193 HERKU LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
194 HJS 12 BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
195 HONEU LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
196 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICE AND VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
DEVELOPMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,168
197 HVB CAPITAL LLC WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00

Issued capital USD 10,000
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198 HVB CAPITALLLC Il WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 13
199 HVB CAPITAL LLC Ill WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 10,000
200 HVB CAPITAL PARTNERS AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,500,000
201 HVB FUNDING TRUST WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG (6]
202 HVB FUNDING TRUST Il WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 2,298
203 HVB FUNDING TRUST Il WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
204 EXB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000,000
205 HVB HONG KONG LIMITED HONG KONG HONG KONG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 129
206 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 520,000
207 HVB LEASING CZECH REPUBLIC S.R.0. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 49,632,000
208 HVB PROJEKT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
Issued capital EUR 24,543,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
209 HVB SECUR GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
210 HVB TECTA GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
Issued capital EUR 1,534,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
21 HVB VERWA 4 GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,000
212 HVB VERWA 4.4 GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB VERWA 4 GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
213 HVB-LEASING JUPITER INGATLANHASZNOSITO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
KORLATOLT FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
214 HVB-LEASING ROCCA INGATLANHASZNOSITO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
KORLATOLT FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
215 HVZ GMBH & CO. OBJEKT KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 148,090,766
216 HYPO-BANK VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM GMBH & MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100.00
CO. KG OBJEKT ARABELLASTRASSE KG
Issued capital EUR 25,600
217 IDEA FIMIT SGR FONDO SIGMA IMMOBILIARE ROME ROME 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
Issued capital EUR 180,100,960
218 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336
219 IMMOBILIEN RATING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 61.00
MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 50,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 19.00
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 19.00
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220 IMMOBILIENLEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS 74.80
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
221 INTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
222 INTRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 PROJEKT-LEASE 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
223 ISB UNIVERSALE BAU GMBH BERLIN BERLIN 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 6,288,890
224 ISTITUTO IMMOBILIARE DI CATANIA SPA CATANIA CATANIA 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 93.92
Issued capital EUR 7,700,000 UNICREDIT SPA 112
225 ISTITUTO PER L'EDILIZIA POPOLARE DI SAN CATANIA CATANIA 1 ISTITUTO IMMOBILIARE DI CATANIA SPA 99.90
BERILLO SRL IN LIQUIDAZIONE
Issued capital EUR 154,800
226 JAUSERN-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336
227 KAISERWASSER BAU- UND ERRICHTUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 RAMSES-IMMOBILIENHOLDING GMBH 100.00
UND CO OG
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80 0.00
228 KLEA ZS-LIEGENSCHAFTSVERMIETUNG G.M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.20
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
229 KSG KARTEN-VERRECHNUNGS- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG 100.00
SERVICEGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 44,000
230 KUNSTHAUS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 KUTRA GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 5.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 95.00
231 KUTRA GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
232 LAGERMAX LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
233 LAGEV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
234 LARGE CORPORATE ONE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: LARGE CORPORATE
ONE)
235 LARGO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
VAPE COMMUNA LEASINGGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
M.B.H
236 LEASFINANZ ALPHA ASSETVERMIETUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 LEASFINANZ GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
237 LEASFINANZ BANK GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BACA LEASING UND 100.00

Issued capital EUR 36,500

BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
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238 LEASFINANZ GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BACA LEASING UND 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 218,019
239 LEGATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
240 LELEV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
41 LIFE MANAGEMENT ERSTE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
242 LINO HOTEL-LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
243 LIPARK LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
244 LIVA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
245 LOCAT CROATIA DOO ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 39,000,000
246 LOCAT SV SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: SERIE CONEGLIANO CONEGLIANO 4 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA @)
2016)
247 M. A.V.7., BANK AUSTRIA LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 1.96
BAUTRAEGER GMBH & CO.0G. COKG
Issued capital EUR 3,707 UNICREDIT LUNA LEASING GMBH 98.04
248 MBC IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
249 MCL RE LJUBLJANA, POSLOVNI NAJEM NEPREMI LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
NIN, D.O.0. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 7,500
250 MENUETT GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
251 MERKURHOF GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
MIT BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 5,112,919
252 MM OMEGA PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
253 MOC VERWALTUNGS GMBH & CO. IMMOBILIEN MUNICH MUNICH 4 HVB PROJEKT GMBH (€]
KG
Issued capital EUR 5,112,940
254 MOEGRA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
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255 MOMENTUM ALLWEATHER STRATEGIES - LONG HAMILTON HAMILTON 4 UNICREDIT SPA @
TERM STRATEG
256 MOMENTUM LONG TERM VALUE FUND HAMILTON HAMILTON 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
257 NAGE LOKALVERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
258 NF OBJEKT FFM GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
259 NF OBJEKTE BERLIN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
260 NOE HYPO LEASING ASTRICTA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 95.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERMIETUNGS GESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337
261 NUOVA COMPAGNIA DI PARTECIPAZIONI SPA ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 200,000
262 OCEAN BREEZE ASSET GMBH & CO. KG BREMEN BREMEN 1 OCEAN BREEZE ENERGY GMBH & CO. KG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,000
263 OCEAN BREEZE ENERGY GMBH & CO. KG BREMEN BREMEN 1 HJS 12 BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,000
264 OCEAN BREEZE FINANCE SA. - LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
COMPARTMENT 1
265 OCEAN BREEZE GMBH BREMEN BREMEN 1 OCEAN BREEZE ENERGY GMBH & CO. KG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
266 OCT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
267 OLG HANDELS- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
268 OMNIA GRUNDSTUCKS-GMBH & CO. OBJEKT MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
HAIDENAUPLATZ KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
269 OMNIA GRUNDSTUECKS-GMBH & CO. OBJEKT MUNICH MUNICH 1 OMNIA GRUNDSTUCKS-GMBH 0.99
PERLACH KG
Issued capital EUR 5,125,701 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH 94.78 93.87
WEALTHCAP LEASING GMBH 5.22 5.14
270 000 UNICREDIT LEASING MOSCOW MOSCow 1 AO UNICREDIT BANK 100.00
Issued capital RUR 149,160,248
271 ORBIT PERFORMANCE STRATEGIES - ORBIT US HAMILTON HAMILTON 4 UNICREDIT SPA @
CLASSE IU
272 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,149,150
273 OTHMARSCHEN PARK HAMBURG GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 10.00
CENTERPARK KG
Issued capital EUR 51,129 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT B.V. 30.00
T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. 60.00
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274 OTHMARSCHEN PARK HAMBURG GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 10.00
GEWERBEPARK KG
Issued capital EUR 51,129 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT B.V. 30.00
T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. 60.00
275 PAI (BERMUDA) LIMITED HAMILTON HAMILTON 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital USD 12,000
276 PAI (NEW YORK) LIMITED DOVER NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital USD 1
217 PAI MANAGEMENT LTD DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,032,000
278 PALAIS ROTHSCHILD VERMIETUNGS GMBH & CO VIENNA VIENNA 1 SCHOELLERBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
0G
Issued capital EUR 2,180,185
279 PARCO DELLE ACACIE DUE S.P.A. ROME ROME 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 90,000
280 PARSEC 6 SPA ROME ROME 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 90,000
281 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
282 PELOPS LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN LEASING 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT MBH.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
283 PENSIONSKASSE DER HYPO VEREINSBANK MUNICH MUNICH 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @)
VWAG
284 PERIKLES 20092 VERMOGENSVERWALTUNG BREMEN BREMEN 1 HJS 12 BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
285 PIANA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
286 PIONEER ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS (ISRAEL) RAMAT GAN RAMAT GAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
LIMITED IN VOLUNTARY LIQUIDATION
Issued capital ILS 50,000
287 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,067,138
288 PISANA S.P.A. ROME ROME 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
289 POLLUX IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.20
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
290 POMINVEST DD SPLIT SPLIT 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 88.66 88.95
Issued capital HRK 17,434,000
291 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. KG
OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 500,013,550
292 POSATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
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293 PRELUDE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
294 PRO WOHNBAU GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG 0.31
GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 23,621,113 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 99.69
295 PROJEKT-LEASE VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS 74.80
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
296 QUADEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
297 QUART Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
298 QUINT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
MB.H COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
299 RANA-LIEGENSCHAFTSVERWERTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 99.90
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 72,700
300 RE-ST.MARX HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
301 REAL INVEST EUROPE DER BANK AUSTRIA REAL VIENNA VIENNA 4 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG @)
INVEST IMMOBILIEN- KAPI
302 REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BACA INVESTOR BETEILIGUNGS GMBH 1.00
Issued capital EUR 36,400 TREUCONSULT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.00
M.B.H.
303 REAL INVEST PROPERTY GMBH & CO SPB JOTA VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 32.07
KG MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 0 TREUCONSULT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 44.55
M.B.H
304 REAL-LEASE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
305 REAL-RENT LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 73,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
306 REGEV VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
REALITAETENVERWERTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT COKG
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 726,728 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
307 RIGEL IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.20
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
308 ROLIN GRUNDSTUCKSPLANUNGS- UND - MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 30,677
309 ROSENKAVALIER 2008 GMBH FRANKFURT FRANKFURT 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
310 ROSENKAVALIER 2015 UG FRANKFURT FRANKFURT 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG @
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3N RSB ANLAGENVERMIETUNG GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H. M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337
312 S. MARIA DELLA GUARDIASR.L. CATANIA CATANIA 1 ISTITUTO IMMOBILIARE DI CATANIA SPA 51.00
Issued capital EUR 210,000
313 SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100.00
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. OHG KG
SAARLAND
Issued capital EUR 1,533,900
314 SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 97.78
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. OHG VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 2,300,850 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 222
315 SAMAR SPA ROME ROME 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
316 SANITA'- S.R.L. IN LIQUIDAZIONE ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 99.60
Issued capital EUR 5,164,333
317 SCHOELLERBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.01
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 20,000,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.99
318 SCHOELLERBANK INVEST AG SALZBURG SALZBURG 1 SCHOELLERBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,543,549
319 SECA-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 74.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
320 SEDEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
321 SELFOSS BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
322 SEXT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
M.BH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
323 SHOPPING PALACE BRATISLAVA, V.0.S. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 REAL INVEST PROPERTY GMBH & CO SPB 100.00
JOTAKG
Issued capital EUR 0
324 SIA UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER RIGA RIGA 1 SIA UNICREDIT LEASING 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,080
325 SIA UNICREDIT LEASING RIGA RIGA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,569,120
326 SIGMA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.40
Issued capital EUR 18,286 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 0.40
327 SIMON VERWALTUNGS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 99.98
IL.
Issued capital EUR 2,556,459
328 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.20
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
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329 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 5.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 30,000 SOLOS IMMOBILIEN- UND 95.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. SIRIUS
BETEILIGUNGS KG
330 SOCIETA' DI GESTIONI ESATTORIALI IN SICILIA PALERMO PALERMO 1 UNICREDIT SPA 80.00
SO.G.E.SI.S.PA.INLIQ.
Issued capital EUR 36,151,500
331 SOCIETA' ITALIANA GESTIONE ED INCASSO ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
CREDITI S.P.A. IN LIQUIDAZIONE
Issued capital EUR 341,916
332 SOFIGERE SOCIETE PAR ACTIONS SIMPLIFIEE PARIS PARIS 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
(IN LIQUIDAZIONE)
Issued capital EUR 40,000
333 SOLOS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. SIRIUS
BETEILIGUNGS KG
Issued capital EUR 35,800
334 SONATA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS 1.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 98.8
335 SPECTRUM GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 WOEM GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
336 SPREE GALERIE MUNICH MUNICH 1 ARGENTAURUS IMMOBILIEN-VERMIETUNGS- 100.00
HOTELBETRIEBSGESELLSCHAFT MBH UND VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
337 STEWE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 PROJEKT-LEASE 24.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 75.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
338 STRUCTURED INVEST SOCIETE ANONYME LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 125,500
339 SUCCESS 2015 B.V. AMSTERDAM AMSTERDAM 4 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH @)
340 SVILUPPO IMMOBILIARE PESCACCIO - SOCIETA'! ROME ROME 1 CAVE NUOVE SPA 100.00
A RESPONSABILITA' LIMITATA
Issued capital EUR 10,000
341 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT B.V. AMSTERDAM AMSTERDAM 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 4,938,271
342 T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. AMSTERDAM AMSTERDAM 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 87.50
Issued capital EUR 10,769,773
343 TERRENO GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNG GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB TECTA GMBH 75.00
& CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 920,400
344 TERZ Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
345 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 99.67

Issued capital EUR 6,240,000

VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
OBJEKT KG
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346 TRANSTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
347 TREDEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
348 TREUCONSULT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
M.B.H. MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 365,000
349 TRICASA GRUNDBESITZ GESELLSCHAFT MBH & MUNICH MUNICH HYPO-REAL HAUS- UND GRUNDBESITZ
CO. 1. VERMIETUNGS KG GESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 6,979,476 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
350 TRICASA GRUNDBESITZGESELLSCHAFT DES MUNICH MUNICH ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
BURGERLICHEN RECHTS NR. 1
Issued capital EUR 13,687,272
351 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 90.00
COKG M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 10,000 BA-CA ANDANTE LEASING GMBH 10.00
352 UCTAM BALTICS SIA RIGA RIGA UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 4,265,585
353 UCTAM BH D.0.0. MOSTAR MOSTAR UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital BAM 2,000
354 UCTAM BULGARIA EOOD SOFIA SOFIA UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital BGN 20,000
355 UCTAM CZECH REPUBLIC SRO PRAGUE PRAGUE UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital CZK 45,500,000
356 UCTAM D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital RSD 631,564,325
357 UCTAM HUNGARY KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST EUROPA BEFEKTETESI ALAPKEZELOE ZRT 1.00
(EUROPA INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT
LTD.)
Issued capital HUF 10,300,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 99.00
GMBH
358 UCTAM RETAIL HUNGARY KFT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST EUROPA BEFEKTETESI ALAPKEZELOE ZRT 1.00
(EUROPA INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT
LTD.)
Issued capital HUF 10,000,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 99.00
GMBH
359 UCTAMRO SRLL. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital RON 30,560,080
360 UCTAM RU LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY MOSCOW MOSCOW UCTAM BALTICS SIA
Issued capital RUB 4,000,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
361 UCTAM SVK S.R.0. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA UCTAM BALTICS SIA 15.00 0.01
Issued capital EUR 5,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 85.00 99.99
GMBH
362 UCTAM UPRAVLJANJE D.0.0. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 7,500
363 UFFICIUM IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA KUTRA GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 5.00
M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 95.00
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364 UNICOM IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
365 UNICREDIT AURORA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 219,000
366 UNICREDIT BANK A.D. BANJA LUKA BANJA LUKA BANJA LUKA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 98.46
Issued capital BAM 97,055,000
367 UNICREDIT BANK AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,407,151,016
368 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,681,033,521
369 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC AND PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
SLOVAKIA, AS.
Issued capital CZK 8,754,617,898
370 UNICREDIT BANK D.D. MOSTAR MOSTAR 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 99.35 99.31
Issued capital BAM 119,195,000
371 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital HUF 24,118,220,000
372 UNICREDIT BANK IRELAND PLC DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,343,118,650
373 UNICREDIT BANK S A. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT SPA 98.63
Issued capital RON 1,177,748,253
374 UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA JSC BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital RSD 23,607,620,000
375 UNICREDIT BANKA SLOVENIJA D.D. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 20,383,765
376 UNICREDIT BETEILIGUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
377 UNICREDIT BIZTOSITASKOEZVETITO KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 5,000,000
378 UNICREDIT BPC MORTAGE SRL (COVERED VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @
BONDS)
379 UNICREDIT BPC MORTGAGE S.R.L. VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
Issued capital EUR 12,000
380 UNICREDIT BROKER S.R.0. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 8,266
381 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 99.45
Issued capital BGN 285,776,674
382 UNICREDIT CAPITAL MARKETS LLC NEW YORK NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC 100.00
Issued capital USD 100,100
383 UNICREDIT CENTER AM KAISERWASSER GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
384 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 2,800,000
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385 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING IFN S.A. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT BANK S.A. 50.10
Issued capital RON 103,269,200 UNICREDIT SPA 49.90
386 UNICREDIT DIRECT SERVICES GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 767,000
387 UNICREDIT FACTORING CZECH REPUBLIC AND PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC AND 100.00
SLOVAKIA, A.S. SLOVAKIA, AS.
Issued capital CZK 222,600,000
388 UNICREDIT FACTORING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 1,000,000
389 UNICREDIT FACTORING SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 414,348,000
390 UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 100,000
391 UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT S.R.0. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 5,000,000
392 UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT S.R.0. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 6,639
393 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN LEASING 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 57,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
394 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING EXPORT GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336
395 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING PARTICIPATION VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA 100.00
MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
396 UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 5,000
397 UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER SRL BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH 0.03
Issued capital RON 150,000 UNICREDIT INSURANCE MANAGEMENT CEE 99.97
GMBH
398 UNICREDIT INSURANCE MANAGEMENT CEE VIENNA VIENNA 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 156,905
399 UNICREDIT INTERNATIONAL BANK LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
(LUXEMBOURG) SA
Issued capital EUR 13,406,600
400 UNICREDIT JELZALOGBANK ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000,000
401 UNICREDIT KFZ LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 648,000
402 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG 10.00
GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 17,296,134 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.02
GMBH
UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 89.98
403 UNICREDIT LEASING ALPHA ASSETVERMIETUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 100.00

GMBH

Issued capital EUR 35,000

DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
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404 UNICREDIT LEASING AVIATION GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,600,000
405 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION IFN S.A. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT BANK S.A. 99.96
Issued capital RON 90,989,013 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING IFN S.A. 0.04
406 UNICREDIT LEASING CROATIA D.0.0. ZA ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
LEASING
Issued capital HRK 28,741,800
407 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC AND 100.00
SLOVAKIA, AS.
Issued capital CZK 981,452,000
408 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 2,605,000
409 UNICREDIT LEASING FINANCE GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 17,580,000
410 UNICREDIT LEASING FLEET MANAGEMENT SR.L. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH 90.02
Issued capital RON 680,000 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION IFN S.A. 9.98
411 UNICREDIT LEASING FUHRPARKMANAGEMENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 364,000
412 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,000,000
413 UNICREDIT LEASING HUNGARY ZRT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 50,000,000
414 UNICREDIT LEASING IMMOTRUCK ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 52,500,000
415 UNICREDIT LEASING INSURANCE SERVICES BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIAAS. 100.00
SR.O
Issued capital EUR 5,000
416 UNICREDIT LEASING KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,100,000
417 UNICREDIT LEASING LUNA KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 80.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
418 UNICREDIT LEASING MARS KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 80.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
419 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,560,000
420 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,106,877,000
421 UNICREDIT LEASING SRBIJA D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA JSC 100.00
Issued capital RSD 1,078,133,000
422 UNICREDIT LEASING TECHNIKUM GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 LEASFINANZ GMBH 99.80
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
423 UNICREDIT LEASING URANUS KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 80.00

Issued capital HUF 3,000,000

GMBH
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424 UNICREDIT LEASING VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
GMBH & CO KG
Issued capital EUR 36,500
425 UNICREDIT LEASING, LEASING, D.0.0. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT BANKA SLOVENIJA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,039,658
426 UNICREDIT LUNA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
Issued capital EUR 36,500 EglggEDlT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
427 UNICREDIT MOBILIEN UND KFZ LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
EglggEDlT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
428 UNICREDIT OBG SR.L. VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000
429 UNICREDIT OBG SRL (COVERED BONDS) VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA @)
430 UNICREDIT OPERATIV LIZING KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
431 UNICREDIT PARTNER D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA JSC 100.00
Issued capital RSD 2,001,875
432 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 74.80
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
ESIEEEDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
433 UNICREDIT POJISTOVACI MAKLERSKA SPOL.S PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Eﬁjéd capital CZK 510,000
434 UNICREDIT POLARIS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
Issued capital EUR 36,500 ESIEEEDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
435 UNICREDIT RENT D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 gngRSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
Issued capital RSD 3,285,948,900
436 UNICREDIT SERVICES GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SERVICES S.C.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,200,000
437 UNICREDIT SERVICES S.C.P.A. MILAN MILAN 1 CORDUSIO SIM SPA
Issued capital EUR 237,523,160 CORDUSIO SOCIETA' FIDUCIARIA PER AZIONI
FINECOBANK SPA
UNICREDIT BANK AG
UNICREDIT FACTORING SPA
UNICREDIT SPA 100.00 100.00
438 UNICREDIT SUBITO CASA SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 500,000
439 UNICREDIT TECHRENT LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.00
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
Issued capital EUR 36,336 SmBCI-‘REDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
440 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 750,000
441 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC WILMINGTON NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00

Issued capital USD 130
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442 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
M.B.H. DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
443 UNICREDIT-LEASING HOSPES KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
444 UNICREDIT-LEASING NEPTUNUS KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,010,000
445 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 32,715,000
446 V.M.G. VERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,565
447 VAPE COMMUNA LEASINGGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
448 VERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 89.28 89.23
OBJEKT MOC KG
Issued capital EUR 48,728,161 LANDOS IMMOBILIEN- UND 0.06
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
449  VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
KATHARINENHOF MBH
Issued capital EUR 511,292
450 VICOVARO RE SRL ROME ROME 1 CAPITAL DEV SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000
451 VISCONTI SRL MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 76.00
Issued capital EUR 11,000,000
452 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
453 WEALTHCAP ENTITY SERVICE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
454 WEALTHCAP EQUITY GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 500,000
455 WEALTHCAP EQUITY MANAGEMENT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP EQUITY GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
456 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 512,000
457 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 100.00 50.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 5,000 WEALTHCAP VORRATS-2 GMBH 50.00
458 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 94.34 50.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,600 WEALTHCAP VORRATS-2 GMBH 5.66 50.00
459 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIENFONDS DEUTSCHLAND GRUNWALD MUNICH 1 H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH 100.00
36 KOMPLEMENTAR GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,565
460 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIENFONDS DEUTSCHLAND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP ENTITY SERVICE GMBH 100.00

38 KOMPLEMENTAR GMBH

Issued capital EUR 25,000
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COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE Ul HELD BY % %
461 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,533,876
462 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 10.00
Issued capital EUR 4,000,000 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 90.00
GMBH
463 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENTS INC. WILMINGTON ATLANTA 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
Issued capital USD 312,000
464 WEALTHCAP INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 60,000
465 WEALTHCAP MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 100.00
KAPITALVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 125,000
466 WEALTHCAP LEASING GMBH GRUNWALD MUNICH 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
467 WEALTHCAP LOS GATOS 131 ALBRIGHT WAY WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENTS INC. 100.00
L.P.
Issued capital USD 1,000
468 WEALTHCAP MANAGEMENT SERVICES GMBH GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
469 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT-VORRAT 20 GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG 6.00
KG
Issued capital EUR 10,000 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. KG 6.00
WEALTHCAP MANAGEMENT SERVICES GMBH 88.00
WEALTHCAP OBJEKT-VORRAT 20
KOMPLEMENTAER GMBH
470 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT-VORRAT 21 GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG 6.00 25.00
KG
Issued capital EUR 10,000 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. KG 6.00 25.00
WEALTHCAP 88.00 25.00
KAPITALVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
WEALTHCAP SPEZIAL BURO 6 KOMPLEMENTAR 25.00
GMBH
471 WEALTHCAP PEIA KOMPLEMENTAR GMBH GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,000
472 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 94.00
GMBH
473 WEALTHCAP PORTLAND PARK SQUARE, L.P. WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENTS INC. 99.90
Issued capital USD 1,000 WEALTHCAP PORTLAND PARK SQUARE GP 0.10
INC.
474 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 60,000
475 WEALTHCAP VORRATS-2 GMBH GRUNWALD BAD SODEN 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
476 WOEM GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
477 Z LEASING ALFA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
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MAIN ADMINISTRATIVE ~ RELATIONSHIP HOLDING  RIGHTS
COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE ] HELD BY % %@
478 Z LEASING ARKTUR IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
479 Z LEASING AURIGA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
480 Z LEASING CORVUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. M.B.H
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
481 Z LEASING DORADO IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
482 Z LEASING DRACO IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
483 Z LEASING GAMA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
484 Z LEASING GEMINI IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
485 Z LEASING HEBE IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GEBAEUDELEASING 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
486 Z LEASING HERCULES IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
487 Z LEASING IPSILON IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
488 Z LEASING ITA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
489 Z LEASING JANUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
490 Z LEASING KALLISTO IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
491 Z LEASING KAPA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
492 Z LEASING LYRA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
493 Z LEASING NEREIDE IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
494 Z LEASING OMEGA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
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VOTING
MAIN ADMINISTRATIVE HOLDING ~ RIGHTS
COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE HELD BY % %
495 Z LEASING PERSEUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 90.00
M.B.H.
496 Z LEASING SCORPIUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
497 Z LEASING TAURUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 73,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
498 Z LEASING VENUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
499 Z LEASING VOLANS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH 99.80
500 ZABA PARTNER DOO ZA POSREDOVANJE U ZAGREB ZAGREB ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
OSIGURANJU | REOSIGURANJU
Issued capital HRK 1,500,000
501 ZAGREB NEKRETNINE DOO ZAGREB ZAGREB ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 5,000,000
502 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. ZAGREB ZAGREB UNICREDIT SPA 84.48
Issued capital HRK 6,404,839,100
503 ZANE BH DOO SARAJEVO SARAJEVO ZAGREB NEKRETNINE DOO 100.00
Issued capital BAM 131,529
504 ZAPADNI TRGOVACKI CENTAR D.0.0. RIJEKA RIJEKA UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital HRK 20,000
505 ZB INVEST D.0.0. ZA UPRAVLJANJE ZAGREB ZAGREB ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00

INVESTICIJSKIM FONDOVIMA

Issued capital HRK 4,000,000

Notes to the table showing the i tments in subsidiaries:
(1) Type of relationship:
1= majority of voting rights at ordinary shareholders’ meeting;
2= dominant influence at ordinary shareholders’ meeting;
3= agreements with other shareholders;
4= other types of control;
5= centralised management pursuant to paragraph 1 of Art.39 of “Legislative decree 136/2015”;
6= centralised management pursuant to paragraph 2 of Art.39 of “Legislative decree 136/2015";

(2
]
(4
5

) Voting rights available in general meeting. Voting rights are disclosed only if different from the percentage of ownership.

) Companies consolidated line by line under IFRS10 as a result of the simultaneous availability of power to govern the relevant activities and exposures to variability of related returns.
) In the Consolidated financial statements the Group's stake is 100% as the trust company does not share in the profits. The voting rights are held by the grantor, a Group company.

) The equity investment in Cordusio SIM - Advisory & Family Office S.p.A. is consolidated at 100% by virtue of UniCredit S.p.A.’s 96.10% and its option on minority interests representing 3.90% of the share capital.
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Changes in the scope of consolidation

Companies consolidated line by line, including the Parent Company and those ones classified as non-current assets and asset disposal groups,
decreased by 85 entities compared with 31 December 2017 (4 inclusions and 89 exclusions as a result of disposals, changes of the consolidation
method and mergers), from 590 as at 31 December 2017 to 505 as at 31 December 2018.

Wholly-owned subsidiaries

The following table shows the changes in equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries (consolidated line by line): annual changes

NUMBER OF COMPANIES
A. Opening balance (from previous year) 590
B. Increased by 4
B.1 Newly established companies -
B.2 Change of the consolidation method -
B.3 Entities consolidated for the first time in the year 4
C. Reduced by 89
C.1 Disposal/Liquidation 26
C.2 Change of the consolidation method 48
C.3 Absorption by other Group entities 15
D. Closing balance 505
The tables below analyse the other increases and decreases occurred during the year by company.
Increases
Newly established companies
During the period there were no changes in newly established companies and change of the consolidation method.
Entities consolidated for the first time in the year
COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 56 DAC DUBLIN RE-ST.MARX HOLDING GMBH VIENNA
HAMZO PROJECT DEVELOPMENT | GMBH VIENNA ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 63 DAC DUBLIN
Reductions
The above table refers to disposals and liquidations of inactive companies.
Disposal
COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
CENTAR KAPTOL DOO ZAGREB ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 35 DAC DUBLIN
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 40 DAC DUBLIN UCTAM AIRPORT BUILDING S.R.O PRAGUE
[-FABER SPA MILAN PIONEER GLOBAL FUNDS DISTRIBUTOR LTD HAMILTON
MOBILITY CONCEPT GMBH OBERHACHING LOCAT SV SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: SERIE 2006) ~ CONEGLIANO
BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE PRAHA, SPOL.S.R.O. PRAGUE GARAGE AM HOF GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA
UNO-EINKAUFSZENTRUM- LEONDING JOHA GEBAEUDE- ERRICHTUNGS- UND VIENNA
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. IN LIQU. VERMIETUNGS- GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. IN LIQ.
RAMSES IMMOBILIEN GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. & CO VIENNA TREUCONSULT PROPERTY EPSILON GMBH IN LIQU. VIENNA
0G
GELDILUX-TS-2013 S.A. LUXEMBOURG HVB-LEASING FORTE INGATLANHASNOSITO BUDAPEST
KORLATOLT FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
TRIESTE ADRIATIC MARITIME INITIATIVES SRL TRIESTE BARODA PIONEER ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY MUMBAI
LTD
BARODA PIONEER TRUSTEE COMPANY PVT LTD MUMBAI UNIIT SRL TRENTO
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 47 DAC DUBLIN LASSALLESTRASSE BAU-, PLANUNGS-, VIENNA
ERRICHTUNGS- UND
VERWERTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
EUROVENTURES-AUSTRIA-CA-MANAGEMENT VIENNA ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 42 DAC DUBLIN
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 58 DAC DUBLIN DBC SP.Z 0.0. W LIKWIDACJI WARSAW
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The changes in the consolidation method refer to companies excluded from the consolidation scope due to their immateriality.

Change of the consolidation method

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
FCT UCG TIKEHAU PARIS HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE BETEILIGUNGS MUNICH
GMBH
HYPO-BANK VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM GMBH MUNICH HYPO-REAL HAUS- UND GRUNDBESITZ MUNICH
GESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. IMMOBILIEN-
VERMIETUNGS KG
IVONA BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH IN VIENNA MARTIANEZ COMERCIAL, SOCIEDAD ANONIMA PUERTO DE
LIQu. LA CRUZ
MILLETERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNGS- MUNICH
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH GESELLSCHAFT MIT BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
RHOTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH RONCASA IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH MUNICH
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
SALVATORPLATZ-GRUNDSTUECKSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH TERRONDA DEVELOPMENT B.V. AMSTERDAM
MIT BESCHRAENKTER HAFTUNG
ANTUS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH HVB-LEASING RUBIN KFT. BUDAPEST
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
ARRONDA IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNGS GMBH MUNICH AUFBAU DRESDEN GMBH MUNICH
NF OBJEKT MUNCHEN GMBH MUNICH BV GRUNDSTUCKSENTWICKLUNGS-GMBH MUNICH
BAYERISCHE WOHNUNGSGESELLSCHAFT FUER MUNICH WOHNPARK BRANDENBURG-GORDEN BRANDEBURG
HANDEL UND INDUSTRIE, GESELLSCHAFT MIT GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H IN LIQUIDATION
BESCHRAENKTER HAFTUNG
H & B IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO. OBJEKTE KG MUNICH CUMTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
GOLF- UND COUNTRY CLUB SEDDINER SEE MUNICH HVB EXPORT LEASING GMBH MUNICH
IMMOBILIEN GMBH
WEALTHCAP OBJEKTE SUEDWEST GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH B.I. INTERNATIONAL LIMITED GEORGE
TOWN
HVBFF INTERNATIONALE LEASING GMBH MUNICH HVBFF OBJEKT BETEILIGUNGS GMBH MUNICH
TRINITRADE VERMOGENSVERWALTUNGS- MUNICH WEALTHCAP AIRCRAFT 27 GMBH & CO KG GRUNWALD
GESELLSCHAFT MIT BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
ERSTE ONSHORE WINDKRAFT OLDENBURG HVB PROFIL GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. PERSONALMANAGEMENT MBH
WINDPARK KRAHENBERG KG
UNICREDIT (CHINA) ADVISORY LIMITED (IN BEIING HVB LONDON INVESTMENTS (AVON) LIMITED ( IN LONDON
LIQUIDAZIONE) LIQUIDAZIONE)
MOVIE MARKET BETEILIGUNGS GMBH I.L. MUNICH LIFE MANAGEMENT ZWEITE GMBH GRUNWALD
HVBFF INTERNATIONAL GREECE GMBH MUNICH CUXHAVEN STEEL CONSTRUCTION GMBH CUXHAVEN
GIMMO IMMOBILIEN-VERMIETUNGS- UND MUNICH ERSTE ONSHORE WINDKRAFT OLDENBURG
VERWALTUNGS GMBH BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
WINDPARK GREFRATH KG
ERSTE ONSHORE WINDKRAFT OLDENBURG WEALTHCAP USA IMMOBILIEN VERWALTUNGS GMBH MUNICH
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
WINDPARK MOSE KG
WEALTHCAP STIFTUNGSTREUHAND GMBH MUNICH WEALTHCAP AIRCRAFT 27 KOMPLEMENTAR GMBH GRUNWALD
UNICREDIT BROKER D.0.0. SARAJEVO SARAJEVO HVB INVESTMENTS (UK) LIMITED GEORGE
BROKERSKO DRUSTVO U OSIGURANJU TOWN
UNICREDIT PARTNER LLC KIEV REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT POLAND SP. Z 0.0. WARSAW

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 133



Consolidated financial statements | Notes to the consolidated accounts

Part A - Accounting policies

Absorption by other Group entities

COMPANY NAME OF THE MERGERED ENTITY MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME OF THE TAKING IN ENTITY MAIN OFFICE

ARANY PENZUEGY!I LIZING ZRT. BUDAPEST | >>> | UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. BUDAPEST

SAS-REAL INGATLANUEZEMELTETOE ES BUDAPEST UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. BUDAPEST

KEZELOE KFT. (ENGLISH:SAS-REAL KFT) >>>

OMNIA GRUNDSTUCKS-GMBH & CO. OBJEKT MUNICH | ., | HVBIMMOBILIEN AG MUNICH

EGGENFELDENER STRASSE KG

UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT GMBH VIENNA | UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE VIENNA
GMBH

UgICFéEDIT PARTNER D.0.0. ZA TRGOVINU | ZAGREB | ___ | UNICREDIT LEASING CROATIAD.0.0. ZALEASING ZAGREB

USLUGE

PRVA STAMBENA STEDIONICA DD ZAGREB ZAGREB | 555 | ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. ZAGREB

UNICREDIT LUXEMBOURG S.A. LUXEMBOURG | >>> | UNICREDIT BANK AG MUNICH

KLEA ZS-IMMOBILIENVERMIETUNG G.M.B.H. VIENNA | >>> | KLEA ZS-LIEGENSCHAFTSVERMIETUNG G.M.B.H. VIENNA

NORDBAHNHOF PROJEKTE HOLDING GMBH VIENNA | >>> | RE-ST.MARX HOLDING GMBH VIENNA

UNICREDIT INGATLANLIZING ZRT BUDAPEST | >>> | UNICREDIT LEASING IMMOTRUCK ZRT. BUDAPEST

MY DREI HANDELS GMBH VIENNA | >>> | BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH VIENNA

HVB-LEASING GARO INGATLANHSZNOSITO BUDAPEST | ___ | UNICREDIT LEASING KFT BUDAPEST

KORLATOLT FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG

HVB-LEASING SMARAGD KFT. BUDAPEST | >>> | UNICREDIT LEASING KFT BUDAPEST

BV GRUNDSTUCKSENTWICKLUNGS-GMBH & CO. MUNICH o> UNICREDIT BANK AG MUNICH

VERWALTUNGS-KG

BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH & CO BETA VIENNA | ... | BABETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH VIENNA

VERMIETUNGS OG

Entities line by line which changed the company name during the year

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE

WOHNPARK BRANDENBURG-GORDEN BRANDEBURG IVONA BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH IN LIQU. VIENNA

GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H IN LIQUIDATION (ex (ex IVONA BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH)

WOHNPARK BRANDENBURG-GORDEN GMBH)

PAI (NEW YORK) LIMITED (ex PIONEER DOVER FINECO ASSET MANAGEMENT DESIGNATED DUBLIN

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS (NEW YORK) LTD) ACTIVITY COMPANY (ex FINECO AM LIMITED)

UNICREDIT SERVICES S.C.P.A. (ex UNICREDIT MILAN UNICREDIT SERVICE GMBH (ex UNICREDIT VIENNA

BUSINESS INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS SOCIETA BUSINESS INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS AUSTRIA GMBH)

CONSORTILE PER AZIONI)

PAI MANAGEMENT LTD (ex PIONEER ALTERNATIVE DUBLIN PAI (BERMUDA) LIMITED (ex PIONEER ALTERNATIVE HAMILTON

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD) INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED)

AO LOCAT LEASING RUSSIA (ex ZAO LOCAT MOSCOW DBC SP.Z 0.0. W LIKWIDACJI (ex DBC SP.Z 0.0.) WARSAW

LEASING RUSSIA)

ZB INVEST D.0.0. ZA UPRAVLJANJE ZAGREB FINECO VERWALTUNG AG (ex FINECO VERWALTUNG MUNICH

INVESTICIJSKIM FONDOVIMA (ex ZB INVEST DOO) AG (IN LIQUIDATION)

DEBO LEASING SRL (ex DEBO LEASING IFN S.A.) BUCAREST
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2. Significant assumptions and assessment in determining the consolidation scope

The Group determines the existence of control and, consequently, the consolidation scope, checking, with reference to the entities in which it holds
exposures:

o the existence of power over the relevant activities;

o the exposure to the variability of returns;

o the ability to use the power exercised in order to influence the returns to which it is exposed.

The factors that have been considered for the purposes of this assessment depend on the entity's governance methods, purposes and equity
structure. On this point, the Group differentiates between entities governed through voting rights, i.e. operating entities, and entities not governed
through voting rights, which comprise special purpose entities (SPEs) and investment funds.

In the case of operating entities, the following factors provide evidence of control:
¢ more than half of the company's voting rights are held directly or indirectly through subsidiaries (also when they act as trustee companies) unless,
exceptionally, it can be clearly demonstrated that this ownership does not originate control;
o half, or a lower proportion, of the votes exercisable in the shareholders' meeting are held and it is possible to govern the relevant activities
unilaterally through:
- the control of more than half of the voting rights based on an agreement with other investors;
- the power to determine the entity's financial and operating policies based on a contract or a statutory clause;
- the power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the Board of Directors or the equivalent governing body, and that board or body is
responsible for managing the company;
- the power to exercise the majority of voting rights in meetings of the Board of Directors or the equivalent governing body, and that board or body
is responsible for managing the company.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights, including those incorporated in options, way-out clauses, or instruments convertible into shares,
are taken into consideration when assessing the existence of control, in case they are substantial.

In particular, potential voting rights are considered substantial if all the following conditions are met:

o they can be exercised either immediately or at least in good time for the company's shareholders' meeting;

o there are no legal or economic barriers to exercise them;

e exercising them is economically convenient.

As at 31 December 2018 the Group holds the majority of the voting rights in all the operating entities subject to consolidation, with the exception of
five companies for which the Group, although not holding the majority of voting rights, (i) has signed shareholders' agreements which enable it to
appoint the majority of members of the governing body, or contractual agreements which determine the possibility of managing the company’s
business unilaterally, and (ii) is exposed to the variability of the said company’s returns.

It should also be noted that there are no cases in which control derives from holding potential voting rights.

Special purpose entities are considered controlled if the Group is, at one and the same time:

« exposed to a significant extent to the variability of returns, as a result of exposures in securities, of disbursing loans or of providing guarantees.

o In this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to variability of returns is significant if the Group has at least 30% of the
most subordinated exposure, and

o able to govern the relevant activities, also in a de facto manner. Examples of the power to govern on this point are performing the role of sponsor
or servicer appointed to recover underlying receivables, or managing the company's business.

In particular, consolidated special purpose entities include:

¢ Conduits in which the Group plays the role of sponsor and is exposed to the variability of returns, as a result of subscribing Asset Backed
Commercial Paper issued by them and/or of providing guarantees in the form of letters of credit or liquidity lines;

o vehicles used to carry out securitisation transactions in which the Group is the originator as a result of subscribing the subordinated tranches;

o vehicles financed by the Group and established for the sole purpose of performing financial or operating leasing in favour of customers which are
financed by the Group;

o vehicles in which, as a result of deteriorating market conditions, the Group has found itself holding the majority of the financial exposure and, at
the same time, managing the underlying assets or the related collections.

It should be noted that, in the case of special purpose entities set up as part of securitisation transactions pursuant to Italian Law 130/99, the
segregated assets are analysed separately with respect to the analysis of the SPE. For the latter, control is assessed on the basis of possession of
the voting rights attributed to the company's shares.
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Investment funds managed by Group companies are considered controlled if the Group is significantly exposed to the variability of returns and if the
third-party investors have no rights to remove the management company.

In this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to the variability of returns is significant if the Group has at least 30% as a
result of subscription of the units and commissions received for the management of the fund's assets.

Funds managed by Group companies that are in seed/warehousing phases are not considered controlled.

In this phase, in fact, the aim of the fund is to invest, in accordance with fund’s regulation, in financial and non financial assets with the aim of
allotting the quotas to third party investors. Consequently it has been evaluated that the management company is not able to exercise power due to
its limited decision power.

Investment funds managed by third-party companies are considered controlled if the Group is significantly exposed to the variability of returns and at
the same time, has the unilateral right to remove the management company.

In this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to the variability of returns is significant if the Group has subscribed at
least 30% of the fund’s units.

With reference to 31 December 2018, it should be noted that 219 controlled entities (of which 20 belonging to the Banking Group) were not
consolidated pursuant to IFRS10, of which 206 for materiality threshold and/or liquidation procedures.

Among the 13 remaining non consolidated entities it should be noted:

o 2 investment funds whose the majority of quotas are subscribed by the Group and for which consolidation would not determine neither a
significant increase in Group consolidated assets;

6 operating entities deriving from restructuring procedures or work- out, whose risks are measured as part of the overall credit exposures;

« 4 entities expected to be sold or liquidated within a year and with a limited amount of total assets;

» 1 SPE which has repaid its liabilities and distributed the dividends.

Based on available information, it should be considered that their consolidation would not have impacted significantly the Group shareholders’
equity.

3. Equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests

3.1 Non-controlling interests, availability of votes of NCls and dividends distributed to NCls

MINORITIES MINORITIES DIVIDENDS TO

EQUITY RATIOS VOTING RIGHTS MINORITIES

COMPANY NAME (%) (%) (€'000)

FINECOBANK SPA 64.65 64.65 112,102

ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 15.53 15.53 17,575

3.2 Equity investments with significant non-controlling interests: accounting information (€000)

TANGIBLE
CASH AND AND

TOTAL CASH  FINANCIAL INTANGIBLE ~ FINANCIAL NET NET INTEREST

COMPANY NAME ASSETS  EQUIVALENTS ASSETS ASSETS  LIABILITIES EQUITY MARGIN

FINECOBANK SPA 24,713,572 6 24,241,608 114,637 23,289,036 962,547 278,702

ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 15,285,673 2,649,921 12,409,975 180,752 12,847,726 2,230,204 359,457

continued: 3.2 Equity investments with significant non-controlling interests: accounting information
PROFIT PROFIT
(LOSS) (LOSS)  PROFIT (LOSS) OTHER

BEFORE TAX AFTER TAX AFTER TAX COMPREHENSIVE OTHER

FROM FROM FROM PROFIT INCOME AFTER  COMPREHENSIVE

OPERATING  OPERATING  CONTINUING  CONTINUING  DISCONTINUED (LOSS) TAX INCOME

COMPANY NAME INCOME COSTS  OPERATIONS  OPERATIONS OPERATIONS (1) (2) (3)=(1)*(@2

FINECOBANK SPA 604,812 (262,723) 338,399 227,920 - 227,922 (3,432) 224,490
ZAGREBACKA

BANKAD.D. 627,286 (265,565) 248,150 220,463 - 220,463 (2,508) 217,955

The exposures above refer to the amounts of individual accounts of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018.
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4. Significant restrictions
Shareholder agreements, regulatory requirements and contractual agreements can limit the ability of the Group to access the assets or settle the
liabilities of its subsidiaries or restrict the latter from distribution of capital and/or dividends.

With reference to shareholder agreements, it should be noted that to the consolidated entities UniCredit BPC Mortgages S.r.I. and UniCredit OBG
S.r.l. companies established according to Law 130/99 for the execution of securitisation transactions or the issuance of covered bonds (Obbligazioni
Bancarie Garantite), shareholders’ agreements allow the distribution of dividends only when the credit claims of guaranteed lenders and bearer of
covered bonds are satisfied.

In the course of the demerger of the CEE Banking Business from UniCredit Bank Austria AG to UniCredit S.p.A. effected in 2016, UniCredit S.p.A.
undertook vis-a-vis its co-shareholders in UniCredit Bank Austria AG and UniCredit Bank Austria AG that until 30 June 2024: (i) it will restrict itself,
as shareholder of UniCredit Bank Austria AG, from resolving on any dividend distributions of the latter in case UniCredit Bank Austria AG’s
consolidated and solo CET1 ratios, as a consequence thereof, fall below (a) 14% or (b) the higher minimum CET1 ratio required at the time by the
applicable regulatory framework, plus any required buffers, and (ii) support any management decision and board resolution of UCBA aimed at
safeguarding such CET1 ratios.

With reference to regulatory requirements, it should be noted that UniCredit group is a banking group subject to the rules provided by Directive
2013/36/EU on the “access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit institutions and investment firms” (CRD IV) and
by Regulation (EU) No.575/2013 on “prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms” (CRR) and which controls financial
institutions subject to the same regulation.

The ability of the controlled banks to distribute capital or dividends may be restricted to the fulfilment of these requirements in terms of both capital
ratios and “Maximum Distributable Amount” as well as further recommendation by competent authorities provided time by time (e.g.
Recommendation of the European Central Bank on dividend distribution policy - ECB/2019/01).

For the disclosure on UniCredit group Capital Requirements and on the outcome of mentioned SREP, process held in 2017 and applicable for 2018,
refer to the chapter “Capital and value management” of the Consolidated report on operations.

With reference to subsidiaries, it should be noted that in some jurisdictions and for some foreign entities of the Group, commitments to maintain local
supervisory capital higher than regulatory thresholds may exist also as a result of SREP performed at local level.

With reference to contractual agreements, UniCredit group has also issued financial liabilities whose callability, redemption, repurchase or
repayment prior to the date of their contractual maturity is subordinated to the consent by the authorisation of competent authority. The value of
these instruments as at 31 December 2018 is equal to €14,531,930 thousand.

5. Other information

For information on jointly-controlled companies and companies subject to significant influence that have not been consolidated in accordance with
IFRS10 as at 31 December 2018, in addition to the controlled ones disclosed in previous paragraph 2. Significant assumptions and assessment in
determining the consolidation scope, reference is made to Part B - Assets - Section 7 - Equity investments - Item 70 - paragraph 7.6 Valuation and
significant assumptions to establish the existence of joint control or significant influence of this Notes to the consolidated accounts.

Section 4 - Subsequent events

No material events have occurred after the balance sheet date that would make it necessary to change any of the information given in the
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2018.
For a description of the significant events after year-end see the specific paragraph of the Consolidated report on operations.

Section 5 - Other matters

In 2018 the following standards, amendments or interpretations came into force:

o [FRS9 - Financial Instruments (EU Regulation 2016/2067);

¢ |[FRS15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (EU Regulation 2016/1905);

¢ Amendments to IFRS4: Applying IFRS9 Financial Instruments with IFRS4 Insurance Contracts (EU Regulation 2017/1988);
o Clarifications to IFRS15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (EU Regulation 2017/1987);

o |[FRIC Interpretation 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (Reg. UE 2018/519);

o Amendments to IAS40: Transfers of Investment Property (Reg. UE 2018/400);

o Amendments to IFRS2: Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Reg. UE 2018/289);

¢ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (Reg. UE 2018/182).

For further details on the impacts coming from IFRS9 and IFRS15 adoption, refer to the specific paragraphs of the current section.
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As at 31 December 2018 the European Commission endorsed the following accounting principles that will be applicable for reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

o [FRS16 - Leasing (EU Regulation 2017/1986);

o |[FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Reg. UE 2018/1595);

o Amendments to IFRS9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (EU Regulation 2018/498).

IFRS16, effective starting from 1 January 2019 and subject to the completion of the endorsement process by the European Union on 31 October
2017, modifies the current set of international accounting principles and interpretations on leases and, in particular, IAS17.

IFRS16 introduces a new definition for leases and confirms the current distinction between two types of leases (operating and finance) with
reference to the accounting treatment to be applied by the lessor.

With reference to the accounting treatment to be applied by the lessee, the new accounting standard sets, for all the leasing typologies, the
recognition as an asset, representing the right of use of the underlying asset and, at the same time, a liability for the future payments requested by
the lease contract.

At the initial recognition such asset is measured on the basis of the lease contract cash flows. After the initial recognition the right-of-use will be
measured on the basis of the rules set for the assets by IAS16, IAS38 or by IAS40 and therefore applying the cost model, less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, the revaluation model or the fair value model as applicable.

In this context, the Group is performing the activities aimed to ensure compliance with this accounting principle, in particular with reference to the
calculation and accounting for Right of Use and Lease Liability that represent the main discontinuity compared to the current accounting model
required by IAS17.

The activities aimed to the development of rules, principles and IT systems to be used for the proper evaluation of new assets and liabilities and the
subsequent calculation of the related economic effects have been finalised.

In this context the Group has decided, as allowed by the standard, not to apply IFRS16 provisions to:

o leases of intangible assets;

o short term leases, lower than 12 months; and

o low value assets leases. For this purpose an asset is considered as “low value” when its fair value when new is equal to or lower than €5
thousand. This category mainly comprises office equipment (PC, monitors, tablets, etc.) and fixed and mobile phones.

In order to calculate the lease liability and the related right-of-use asset, the Group proceeds with discounting the future lease payments at a proper
discount rate.

In this respect, future lease payments to discount are determined based on contractual provisions and net of VAT, when applicable, as the obligation
to pay such a tax starts when the invoice is issued by the lessor and not at the starting date of the lease contract. In addition if the lease payments
foreseen by the contracts include additional services beside the mere rental of the asset, the right of use and the associated lease liability are
calculated considering also these components.

To perform the mentioned calculation lease payments have to be discounted at the interest rate implicit in the contract or, if it is not available, at the
incremental borrowing rate. The latter is determined on the basis of the cost of funding for liabilities of similar duration and similar security of those
implicit in the lease contract.

In determining the lease term it is necessary to consider the non-cancellable period, established in the contract, in which the lessee is entitled to use
the underlying asset taking also into account potential renewal options if the lessee is reasonably certain to renew.

In particular, with regard to those contracts that allows the lessee to tacitly renew the lease contract after a first set of years, the lease term is
determined taking into account factors such as the length of the first period, the existence of dismissal plans for the asset leased and any other
circumstance indicating the reasonably certainty of the renewal.

The Group has decided not to restate comparatives and has chosen, for First Time Adoption purposes, to put the value of right of use equal to the
lease liability.

In particular, the adoption of IFRS16 will determine an increase of the Group total assets and liabilities that can be preliminary estimated in the range
of 0.3% while the effect on Group CET1 ratio can be preliminarily estimated in the range of -0.1%, gross of tax effect.

As at 31 December 2018 the IASB issued the following standards, amendments, interpretations or revisions, whose application is subject to
completion of the endorsement process by the competent bodies of the European Commission, which is still ongoing:

o [FRS17: Insurance Contracts (May 2017);

» Amendments to IAS28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (October 2017);

o Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (December 2017);

o Amendments to IAS19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (February 2018);
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¢ Amendments to the IFRS Conceptual Framework (March 2018);
o Amendments to IFRS3: Business combination (October 2018);
o Amendments to IAS1 and IAS8: Definition of Material (October 2018).

Transition to “IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers” of UniCredit group

IFRS15, effective starting from 1 January 2018, endorsed by the European Union with Regulation EU 2016/1905 of 22 September 2016 (published
on 29 October 2016), modifies the previous set of international accounting principles and interpretations on revenue recognition and, in particular,
IAS18.

IFRS15 provides for:

o two approaches for the revenue recognition (“point in time” or “over time”) depending on the nature of the performance obligation;

* a new model for the analysis of the transactions (“Five steps model”) focused on the transfer of control; and

o the request for a more detailed disclosure to be included in the explanatory notes to the financial statements.

The adoption of the new accounting standard could determine (i) the reclassification between lines of income statement, used for presenting
revenues, (ii) a change in the timing recognition of such revenue, when the contract with the customer contains several performance obligation, that
must be accounted for separately under the accounting standard, (iii) a different measure of the revenue in order to reflect their variability.

Based on the analysis performed, no major impacts have been detected by the adoption of IFRS15 on current economic and financial volumes.

Transition to “IFRS9: Financial Instruments” of UniCredit group

1. Summary of impacts
As at 1 January 2018, UniCredit group has adopted the accounting standard “IFRS9: Financial instruments”.

The adoption of the standard is the result of a long-time project aimed at creating reporting and risk monitoring methods, harmonised between
Group’s legal entities, that ensure compliance with the standard and at updating governance and monitoring processes in light of the new rules.
This project was organised at Group level through specific work-streams:

o work-stream “Classification and Measurement” aimed at reviewing financial instruments classification in line with new IFRS9 criteria;

o work-stream “Impairment” aimed at developing and implementing models and methods for calculating impairment.

These work-streams go together with a specific activity aimed at adapting models and methods to the specific characteristics of Corporate &
Investment Banking (CIB).

The entire project was developed actively involving Bank’s structures, Board of Directors and Top Management.

The following should be noted with regard to the new accounting standard:

e has introduced significant changes in the rules for classifying and measuring financial instruments compared to IAS39.
With reference to loans and debt securities, the classification and consequent measurement of these instruments is based on the "business model”
and on the characteristics of the financial instrument cash flows (SPP!I criterion - Solely Payments of Principal and Interests).
With reference to equity instruments, they will be classified as financial instruments at fair value, with differences recognised through profit or loss
or in other comprehensive income. In the latter case, unlike the requirements of IAS39 for available-for-sale financial assets, IFRS9 no longer
requires to recognise impairment losses and provides that, in the event of sale of the instrument, the profits and losses on disposal must be
reclassified to other shareholders' equity reserve and not to profit or loss.
Lastly, with reference to financial liabilities designated at fair value, it modified the accounting of "own credit risk", i.e. the changes in the value of
liabilities at fair value that are due to fluctuations in their creditworthiness. According to the new standard, these changes must be recognised in an
equity reserve, rather than in the income statement as per IAS39, thus eliminating a source of volatility in economic results;

o has introduced a new accounting model of impairment for credit exposures based on (i) an "expected losses" approach replacing the current one
based on the recognition of "incurred losses" and (i) the concept of "lifetime" expected loss;

e has introduced guidelines that clarify when financial instruments shall be written off by specifying that the write-off constitutes an event of
accounting derecognition;

« has also modified the rules applicable to "hedge accounting” with regard to designating a hedging relationship and verifying its effectiveness with
the aim of ensuring greater alignment between the accounting recognition of hedges and the underlying management rationale.
The Group has exercised the option to continue applying the existing IAS39 hedge accounting requirements for all its hedging relationships until
the IASB completes the project on accounting for macro-hedging.
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The Group has decided to exploit the option provided by the accounting standard not to restate comparative figures of previous years, consequently,
for UniCredit group, the first time adoption of the new standard is 1 January 2018.

UniCredit group's Balance sheet as at 1 January 2018 is presented below, prepared in accordance with the mandatory format envisaged by the 5t
update of Banca d'ltalia Circular 262 issued on 22 December 2017.

Consolidated balance sheet (€'000)
AMOUNTS AS AT

ASSETS 01.01.2018
10. Cash and cash balances 64,493,411
20. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: 101,810,077
a) Financial assets held for trading 74,665,851

b) Financial assets designated at fair value 4

c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 27,144,222
30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 100,636,410
40. Financial assets at amortised cost: 519,900,654
a) Loans and receivables with banks 71,134,306

b) Loans and receivables with customers 448,766,348
50. Hedging derivatives 3,431,070
60. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) 2,600,594
70. Equity investments 6,211,911
80. Insurance reserves charged to reinsurers -
90. Property, plant and equipment 8,623,778
100. Intangible assets 3,385,310
of which: goodwill 1,483,721
110. Tax assets: 12,848,869
a) Current 2,042,410

b) Deferred 10,806,459
120. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 1,110,780
130. Other assets 8,800,375
Total assets 833,853,239
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continued: Consolidated balance sheet (€'000)
AMOUNTS AS AT

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 01.01.2018
10. Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 684,189,854
a) Deposits from banks 123,234,090

b) Deposits from customers 462,895,261

c) Debt securities in issue 98,060,503
20. Financial liabilities held for trading 51,099,691
30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value 8,301,781
40. Hedging derivatives 3,567,846
50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+/-) 3,046,609
60. Tax liabilities: 1,108,062
a) Current 644,439

b) Deferred 463,623
70. Liabilities referrable to disposal groups classified as held for sale 184,831
80. Other liabilities 14,808,680
90. Provision for employee severance pay 917,284
100. Provisions for risks and charges: 9,740,979
a) Committments and guarantees given 1,090,289

b) Post-retirement benefit obligations 4,522,188

c) Other provisions for risks and charges 4,128,502
110. Technical reserves -
120. Valuation reserves (4,650,811)
130. Redeemable shares -
140. Equity instruments 4,610,073
150. Reserves 16,293,284
160. Share premium 13,399,799
170. Share capital 20,880,550
180. Treasury shares (-) (2,695)
190. Minority shareholders' equity (+/-) 884,314
200. Profit (Loss) for the period (+/-) 5,473,108
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 833,853,239

The adoption of IFRS9 has determined:

e an overall negative effect on consolidated net equity for an amount of -€3,535,207 thousand, net of taxes calculated on 1 January 2018°
(~€3,708,885 thousand gross of taxes);

e an overall negative effect on CET1 Ratio fully loaded equal to -99 bps'! (-104 bps'2gross of taxes);

o the increase of loan loss provisions to an amount equal to €31,002,599 thousand.

In particular, this effect (-€3,535,207 thousand net of taxes and -€3,708,885 thousand gross of taxes) stems from:

o for an amount, net of the taxes, of -€303,977 thousand (-€339,948 thousand gross of taxes) from changes in the revaluation reserves reported in
item “120. Valuation reserve” which is attributable to instruments classified in item “30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income” and in item “30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value”, for the component relating to the valuation of own creditworthiness;

o for an amount, net of the tax effect, of -€3,231,230 thousand, net of the taxes (-€3,368,937 thousand gross of taxes) from changes in item “150.
Reserves” attributable to the effects of reclassification and measurement of financial instruments other than those reported in item “30. Financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” and to the calculation of impairment on on-balance-sheet and off-balance sheet
exposures.

It should be noted that these impacts include negative effects, for an amount of €198,083 thousand, attributable to a joint venture that is valued
according to the equity method for which adoption of IFRS9 resulted in a corresponding negative change in shareholders’ equity.

This investee was tested for impairment in previous years, pursuant to IAS36.

Since the impairment test carried out on 1 January 2018 confirmed its book value as at 31 December 2017, the negative impact from adoption of
IFRS9 was offset by an increase for the same amount of its book value.

9 In the current section “Transition to “IFRS9: Financial Instruments” of UniCredit group” the tax impacts shown are based on tax regulation existing as at 1 January 2018.

10 UniCredit group has decided not to apply the IFRS9 transitional approach as reported in article 473a of the CRR. Therefore, the calculation of own funds, capital absorption, capital ratios and leverage fully reflects the
impact arising from the application of the IFRS9 principle.

11 Considering tax impact and FTA related effects on loans and Deferred Tax Assets Risk weighted assets.

12 Considering FTA related effects on loans Risk weighted assets.
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Note that these final impacts are different from those preliminarily disclosed in the Consolidated Reports and Accounts as at 31 December 201713

mainly as a result of:

o the observation of market transactions occurred on a specific asset class of NPL loans that are included in Group NPL Strategy that has required
the revision of prices, estimated through internal models, considered in the sale scenario for the measurement of non-performing exposures'.
This price adjustments has determined a negative FTA effect of €270,675 thousand, gross of taxes;

o the inclusion in the “NPL strategy” of an additional portfolio of non-performing exposures for an amount equal to their residual value after write-off
recognition in light of:

- the Group strategy for the management of the non-performing loan portfolio that gives precedence to the deleveraging of such portfolio, as
illustrated in the Multi-year Plan (MYP) communicated to the market in December 2017;
- the introduction by IFRS9 of specific guidance on write-off.

Note that the Group has developed specific guidelines on write-off aimed at granting the compliance with IFRS9 and the document “Guidance to
banks on non-performing loans” issued by ECB.
Write-offs have determined a negative FTA effect of €802,763 thousand, gross of taxes'®.

2. Classification and measurement
As a result of the entry into force of the new accounting standard, the Group has reclassified financial assets and liabilities as at 1 January 2018 into
the new envisaged categories.

In this regard, it should be noted that this classification is based on business model and characteristics of the contractual cash flows.

The analysis of the business model was conducted by mapping the business areas that make up the Group and by allocating a specific business
model, for IFRS9 purposes, to each of them.

In this regard, the business areas that make up the Group's banking portfolio have been assigned "held-to-collect" or "held-to-collect and sell"
business models according to holding intentions and expected turnover of the financial instruments.

The business areas that make up the Group's trading portfolio have been assigned an "other" business model in order to reflect trading intentions.

For the purposes of classifying financial instruments in the new categories envisaged by IFRS9, the business model analysis must be
complemented by an analysis of contractual flows ("SPPI Test").

In this regard, the Group has developed systems and processes to analyse the portfolio of debt securities and loans in place and assess whether
the characteristics of contractual cash flows allow for measurement at amortised cost (“held-to-collect” portfolio) or at fair value with effect on other
comprehensive income (*held-to-collect and sell” portfolio).

The analysis in question was carried out both by contract and by defining specific clusters based on the characteristics of the transactions and using
a specific internally developed tool ("SPPI Tool") to analyse the contract features with respect to IFRS9 requirements, or by using external data
providers.

3. Impairment

The entry into force of the new accounting standard has required the developments of model aimed at calculating the amount of loan loss provisions
on the basis of the expected credit loss.

The models developed are based on two main pillars:

o the allocation of credit exposures in the Stages 1, 2 and 3 as required by the standard (Stage allocation);

o the calculation of the associated expected credit loss.

With reference to Stage allocation the Group has developed a combination of relative and absolute elements aimed at granting the proper allocation
of credit exposures in the different credit Stages. For additional information refer to Part E - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated
perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk.

With reference to the calculation of expected credit loss, Group models leverage on the Probability of Default (‘PD"), Loss Given Default, (‘LGD")
and Exposure at Default (“EAD”) used for regulatory purposes, with specific adjustments in order to ensure compliance with accounting rules.
These adjustments are aimed, among other things, at introducing “point-in-time” adjustments to replace “through-the-cycle” adjustments required for
regulatory purposes and including “forward looking” information.

13 UniCredit group’s Consolidated Reports and Accounts as at 31 December 2017, page 141: “[...] Overall adjustments to the carrying value of financial instruments due to IFRS9 transition will be accounted for through
Equity as at 1 January 2018 and they will have an impact on fully loaded CET1 ratio, gross of tax effect, that can be preliminarily estimated in the range of -75bps which is equivalent to about -€2.8 billion.”

14 Refer to the related paragraph of Part A - Section 16 - Other Information.

15 Refer to the related paragraph of Part A - Section 16 - Other Information.
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With reference to the latter the Group has selected three macroeconomic scenarios to determine the forward looking component, a baseline

scenario, a positive scenario and a negative scenario.

The baseline scenario is the main scenario and indeed is expected to be the one with the highest likelihood of occurrence. The positive and the

negative scenario represent alternative occurrences, either better or worse when compared to the baseline scenario in terms of evolution of the

economies of the countries where the Group operates.

o The Base Scenario (‘Baseline”) reflects the macroeconomic evolution expected from the Group and as such is coherent with the assumptions
used by the Group in the planning processes. The Baseline Scenario foresees an economic growth stable and positive, both for the Eurozone and
for the CEE countries, in a context where the interest rates in the Euro area are expected to be slightly growing even though they continue to be at
historical low levels. Specifically, the annual growth of the real GDP for the Eurozone is foreseen at +1.8% for 2018 and +1.5% for 2019 (with ltaly
at +1.2% and +1.0% and Germany at +1.9% and +1.8%, respectively), while the foreseen growth for the CEE countries is +2.4% in 2018 and
+2.2% in 2019. The Scenario implies that the 3 months Euribor stays negative for 2018 and comes back near zero in 2019.

e The Positive Scenario is based on the hypothesis that the positive economic growth of 2017 both at global level and at European level might
consolidate even in 2018, sustained by the trend in the global commerce and by accommodating economic policies. This would imply, for the
biggest European countries, a maximum phase of the economic cycle prolonged by an year, that would reflect in a bigger growth of the annual real
GDP (with respect to the baseline scenario) of about 0.2%-0.5% both in 2018 and in 2019. Specifically, the annual growth of the real GDP for the
Eurozone would grow to +2.3% for 2018 and +1.9% for 2019 (with Italy at +1.5% and +1.2% respectively) in a context of short term rates (3
months Euribor) still negatives or close to zero. The occurrence of such scenario, at the moment of its definition, is expected to be plausible and
appropriate to quantify a better trend of the economy than the one assumed in the Baseline scenario.

o The Adverse Scenario reflects one of the scenarios used in the evaluation processes of the capital adequacy (ICAAP). In coherence with the
ICAAP framework, the scenario has been chosen to represent one of the macroeconomic and financial risks that the Group foresees as most
relevant in the context of the countries where the Group operates and for the Group’s business activities. The scenario of Widespread Contagion is
based on the hypothesis of intensification of political risks of the European Union, caused by an increased influence of populist parties in Italy,
Germany and France alongside with, among others, the extension of tension between Spanish Government and Catalonia Region. This context
would lead to an increase of the risk premiums for different “asset class” and to a slowdown of the economic growth both of the Eurozone (lower of
about 1.5 per year with respect to the baseline scenario, in terms of real GDP) and of CEE countries (lower of about 2. points percentage,
respectively). Specifically, the annual growth of the GDP for the Eurozone would be +0.4% for 2018 and -0.1% for 2019 (with Italy to -0.2% and
-1.1% respectively) in a context of rates in the short run (3 months Euribor) that would stay negative even in 2019, based on the hypothesis that
the ECB would prolong in such a market context the liquidity support to markets. The likelihood of happening of such scenario, at the time of its
definition, is foreseen probable and appropriate to quantify the adverse trend of the economy. In coherence with the scenario and with the
magnitude of changes compared to the baseline scenario, it is assumed that the negative scenario is less likely than the positive scenario.

In addition the assessment of impaired exposures (Stage 3) considered sale scenarios whereas the Group's Non-Performing Asset Strategy
foresees the sale on the market as a recovery method.

For additional information on the methods used for the calculation of expected loss refer to Part E - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated
perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk.
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4. Reclassifications performed as at 1 January 2018
The following tables summarise the reclassifications performed on Balance sheet (Assets and Liabilities) based on IFRS9 initial application and 5t
update of Banca d'ltalia Circular 262.

Consolidated balance sheet (€°000)
AMOUNTS AS AT
RECLASSIFICATION
DT | SuEeTVALUEON | MEASUREMENT | caances | UOMA0ME
ASSETS 01.01.2018
10. Cash and cash balances 64,493,411 - - - 64,493,411
20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 101,767,535 42,542 - 101,810,077
a) Financial assets held for trading 74,665,851 - - 74,665,851
b) Financial assets designated at fair value 4 - - 4
c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 27,101,680 42,542 - 27,144,222
Financial assets held for trading (ex IAS39 Iltem 20) 74,685,890 (74,685,890) - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (ex IAS39
Item 30) 22,073,343 (22,073,343) - -
30. Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 100,561,170 75,240 - 100,636,410
Available-for-sale financial assets (ex IAS39 ltem 40) 104,101,031 (104,101,031) - - -
40. Financial assets at amortised cost: 523,518,237 (3,617,583) - 519,900,654
Held-to-maturity investments (ex IAS39 Item 50) 6,277,022 (6,277,022) - -
Loans and receivables with banks (ex IAS39 Item 60) 70,982,743 (70,982,743) - -
Loans and receivables with customers (ex IAS39 ltem 70) 447,726,913 (447,726,913) - -
50. Hedging derivatives 3,431,070 - - - 3,431,070
60. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) 2,244,685 - 355,909 - 2,600,594
70. Equity investments 6,212,142 - (231) - 6,211,911
80. Insurance reserves charged to reinsurers - - - - -
90. Property, plant and equipment 8,449,288 174,490 - - 8,623,778
100. Intangible assets 3,385,310 - - 3,385,310
of which: goodwill 1,483,721 - - - 1,483,721
110. Tax assets: 12,658,279 - 190,590 - 12,848,869
a) Current 2,039,696 - 2,714 - 2,042,410
b) Deferred 10,618,583 - 187,876 - 10,806,459
120. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
held for sale 1,110,960 - (180) - 1,110,780
130. Other assets 8,957,637 (174,490) - 17,228 8,800,375
Total assets 836,789,724 833,853,239

The amounts reported under “Other changes” are due to the application of IFRS9 by UniCredit S.p.A. foreign branches and roundings.
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continued: Consolidated balance sheet (€000)
AMOUNTS AS AT
RECLASSIFICATION
AN | GUETVALUEON | MEASUREMENT | cHAoes | UMOLT8
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 01.01.2018
10. Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 684,189,854 - 684,189,854
a) Deposits from banks 123,234,090 - 123,234,090
b) Deposits from customers 462,895,261 - 462,895,261
c) Debt securities in issue 98,060,503 - 98,060,503
Deposits from banks (ex IAS39 Item 10) 123,244,080 (123,244,080) - -
Deposits from customers (ex IAS39 ltem 20) 462,895,261 (462,895,261) - -
Deht securities in issue (ex IAS39 Item 30) 98,602,632 (98,602,632) - -
20. Financial liabilities held for trading 51,099,691 - 51,099,691
Financial liabilities held for trading (ex IAS39 ltem 40) 51,089,701 (51,089,701) -
30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value 8,246,682 55,099 - 8,301,781
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (ex
1AS39 Item 50) 7,704,553 (7,704,553 - -
40. Hedging derivatives 3,567,845 - - 1 3,567,846
50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+/-) 3,041,990 4,619 3,046,609
60. Tax liabilities: 1,092,905 15,157 - 1,108,062
a) Current 651,263 (6,824) - 644,439
b) Deferred 441,642 - 21,981 - 463,623
70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 184,829 - 2 184,831
80. Other liabilities 15,573,476 - (782,024) 17,228 14,808,680
90. Provision for employee severance pay 917,284 - - 917,284
100. Provisions for risks and charges 8,650,468 1,090,511 - 9,740,979
110. Technical reserves - - - -
120. Valuation reserves (4,327,092) (323,719) - (4,650,811)
130. Redeemable shares - - - -
140. Equity instruments 4,610,073 - 4,610,073
150. Reserves 19,296,907 (3,003,623) - 16,293,284
160. Share premium 13,399,799 - 13,399,799
170. Share capital 20,880,550 - 20,880,550
180. Treasury shares (-) (2,695) - - (2,695)
190. Minority shareholders' equity (+/-) 894,083 (9,769) - 884,314
200. Profit (Loss) for the period (+/-) 5,473,075 - 33 5,473,108
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 836,789,724 833,853,239

Note:

(*) Note that the amounts presented in column “12.31.2017" for the categories “Financial liabilities held for trading (ex IAS39 Item 40)" and “Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (ex IAS39 Item 50)" differ from
those published in UniCredit group’s Consolidated Reports and Accounts as at 31 December 2017 as a result of a reclassification of deposit certificates for an amount of €4.694.024 thousand in order to grant the

homogeneous classification of this type of liabilities within the Group.

The amounts reported under “Other changes” are due to the application of IFRS9 by UniCredit S.p.A. foreign branches and roundings.

4.1 Reclassification of financial instruments performed as at 1 January 2018
With reference to the reclassifications of financial instruments in application of the new accounting standard, the following tables show separately for

financial assets and liabilities:

a) the portfolio under IAS39 and the related closing balance as at 31 December 2017;

b) the reclassification of this balance in the various IFRS9 portfolios;

c) the effects from application of the measurement criteria envisaged by IFRS9;
)

d) the opening IFRS9 balance as at 1 January 2018.
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Reclassification of financial assets

A: Reclassification of former IAS39 book value

B: Change in measurement
C: New book value as per IFRS9

(€'000)
1AS39 CATEGORY NEW IFRS9 CATEGORY
BOOK
VALUE AT FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING AL B G ASSE'I\'/SAEE:IGNATED G
12.31.2017
IAS39 A B c A B c
Financial assets held for trading 74,685,890 74,665,851 74,665,851 - - -
Financial assets at Fair Value through profit
or loss 22,073,343 4 4
Available for sale financial assets 104,101,031 - - - -
Held to Maturity Investments 6,277,022 - -
Loans to Banks 70,982,743 - - - - - -
Loans to Customers 447,726,913 - - - - - -
IFRS9 Total 74,665,851 4
(€'000)
1AS39 CATEGORY NEW IFRS9 CATEGORY
o) FINANCIAL ASSETS MANDATORY AT FAIR FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
VALUE AT VALUE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
12.31.2017
i) A B c A B c
Financial assets held for trading 74,685,890 4,202 4,202 15,837 15,837
Financial assets at Fair Value through profit
or loss 22,073,343 22,073,339 - 22,073,339 - - -
Available for sale financial assets 104,101,031 1,719,442 46,365 1,765,807 99,984,921 23,967 | 100,008,888
Held to Maturity Investments 6,277,022 747,692 12,323 760,015 431,425 17,240 448,665
Loans to Banks 70,982,743 395,299 17,892 413,191 128,987 34,033 163,020
Loans to Customers 447,726,913 2,161,706 (34,038) 2,127,668 - - -
IFRS9 Total 27,144,222 100,636,410
(€'000)
IAS39 CATEGORY NEW IFRS9 CATEGORY
BOOK
VALUE AT FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST TOTAL
12.31.2017
i) A B c A B c
Financial assets held for trading 74,685,890 74,685,890 74,685,890
Financial assets at Fair Value through profit
or loss 22,073,343 - - - 22,073,343 - 22,073,343
Available for sale financial assets 104,101,031 2,396,668 (331,536) 2,065,132 | 104,101,031 (261,204) | 103,839,827
Held to Maturity Investments 6,277,022 5,097,905 (3,043) 5,094,862 6,277,022 26,520 6,303,542
Loans to Banks 70,982,743 70,458,457 (4,118) 70,454,339 70,982,743 47,807 71,030,550
Loans to Customers 447,726,913 | 445,565,207 (3,278,886) | 442,286,321 | 447,726,913 (3,312,924) | 444,413,989
IFRS9 Total 519,900,654
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The reclassification of financial assets shows:

o with reference to financial assets previously classified under item “20. Financial assets held for trading” and “30. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” their almost complete classification in the analogous categories foreseen by IFRS9. It must be noted that the execution of
the SPPI Test has required embedded derivatives (€15,837 thousand) previously bifurcated and classified in financial assets held for trading
according to IAS39 rules, to be re-conducted in the host instrument classification category;

o with reference financial assets previously classified under item “40. Available-for-sale-financial assets”:

- the almost complete reclassification of debt securities (€101,101,315 thousand) in item “30. Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income” (€98,099,003 thousand). The remaining part was reclassified under item “20. c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair
value” or in item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost” due to the characteristics of cash flows, which do not allow for classification as Financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income despite a "held to collect and sell" business model or to better reflect the "held to
collect" business model associated with these financial instruments;

With reference to the reclassifications to financial assets at amortised cost, it should be noted that this transfer had a negative effect of -€331,571

thousand due to the simultaneous reversal of previously recognised revaluation reserves and the recognition of impairment on these

instruments;

the classification of equity instruments previously accounted among “Available for sale financial assets” (€2,254,426 thousand) in item “30.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” (€1,901,753 thousand) given the nature of the relationship and/or the

characteristics of the instrument. The remaining part was classified under item “20. c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”. In this

case the revaluation reserve have been reclassified in item “150. Reserves”.

Note that, as a result of IFRS9 that does no longer allow to measure equity instrument at cost when their fair value is deemed not to be reliable,

revaluation effects for €75,590 thousand were recognised. These effects have been recognised either in time “120. Valuation Reserve” or in item

“150. Reserves” depending on the classification category;

- the classification of units in investment funds (€726,245 thousand) in item “20. ¢) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” also due to
regulatory clarifications according to which these instruments cannot be considered as equity instruments with consequent recognition of the
related revaluation reserves recognised under IAS39 in item “150. Reserves”;

- the reclassification of loans (€19,045 thousand) in item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost” in order to better reflect the "held to collect"
business model associated with these financial instruments;

o with reference to financial assets previously classified under item “50. Financial assets held to maturity”, consisting exclusively of debt securities
(€6,277,022 thousand), they were mainly classified under item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost” (€5,097,905 thousand).

This reclassification had a negative effect of -€3,043 thousand due to application of the new impairment rules.The remaining part of the portfolio

was reclassified in item “20. c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” (€747,692 thousand) following failure of the SPPI test or in item “30.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” (€431,425 thousand) to reflect the changed business model. The necessary

re-measurement of these positions at fair value had positive balance sheet effects of €29,563 thousand;

o with reference to financial assets previously classified under item “60. Loans and receivables with banks” (€70,982,743 thousand) consisting of
both loans and debt securities, they were almost entirely classified (€70,458,457 thousand) under item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost”.
This reclassification had a negative effect of €4,118 thousand due to application of the new impairment rules.The remaining part has been
reclassified in item “20. ) Other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value” due to the characteristics of the cash flows or, as regards
debt securities, in item “30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive” income to reflect the changed business model associated
with these positions.

These reclassifications had a positive impact on shareholders' equity of €51,925 thousand arising from fair value measurement;

o with reference to financial assets previously classified under item “70. Loans and receivables with customers” (€447,726,913 thousand) consisting
of both loans and debt securities, they were almost entirely classified (€445,565,207 thousand) under item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost”.
This reclassification had a negative effect of €3,278,886 thousand due to application of the new impairment rules.

The remaining part has been reclassified in item “20. c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” (€2,161,706 thousand) due to the

characteristics of the cash flows. These reclassifications had a positive impact on shareholders' equity of €34,038 thousand arising from fair value

measurement.

As regards financial assets reclassified in item “30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”, it should be noted that the
table does not include the effects from application of impairment rules on these instruments.

These effects, however, do not have an impact on shareholders' equity since, according to the rules of the standard, the impairment leads to
recognition upon first application of a negative reserve in item “150. Reserves” which is offset by an increase of equal amount in item “120. Valuation
reserves’”.
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The following table focuses on the reclassification from “Available-for-sale-financial assets”, according to IAS39, to “Financial assets at amortised
cost”, according to IFRS9, in order to represent, both for debt securities and loans, the carrying value as at 31 December 2018, Fair Value that
would have been accounted for at the same date in case of no reclassification in FTA and the consequent changes in Fair Value that would have

been recognised in the period.

(€'000)
CARRYING FAIR VALUE GAINS
PORTFOLIO UNDER | PORYFOLIOUNDER | AMOUNTASAT | FAIRVALUEASAT OR LOSSES
INSTRUMENTS TYPE 1AS39 IFRSS 12.31.2018 12.31.2018 RECLASSIFICATION
Financial Assets reclassified from Available for
sale (AFS) to Financial Assets at amortised
cost
1. Debt securities AFS AC 1,640,110 1,843,660 (73,993)
2. Loans AFS AC 14,824 14,568 (256)
Total 1,654,934 1,858,228 (74,249)
Reclassification of financial liabilities'®
A: Reclassification of former IAS39 book value
B: Change in measurement
C: New IFRS9 book value
(€'000)
IAS39 CATEGORY NEW IFRS9 CATEGORY
BOOK FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST -
VALUE AT DEPOSITS FROM BANKS DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
12.31.2017
1AS39 A B c A B c
Deposits from banks 123,244,080 | 123,234,090 123,234,090 - - -
Deposits from customers 462,895,261 - - - | 462,895,261 - | 462,895,261
Debt securities in issue 98,602,632 - - - - - -
Financial liabilities held for trading 51,089,701 - - - -
Financial liabilities at fair value through P&L 7,704,553 - - - -
IFRS9 total 123,234,090 462,895,261
(€'000)
IAS39 CATEGORY NEW IFRS9 CATEGORY
V:L%%% F'NANC'A'BE"E';‘}BS"E'(T:{E;QESAM?';STLS:D COST- | FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING
12.31.2017
AS39 A B c A B c
Deposits from banks 123,244,080 - - - 9,990 - 9,990
Deposits from customers 462,895,261 - - - - - -
Debt securities in issue 98,602,632 98,060,503 - 98,060,503 - - -
Financial liabilities held for trading 51,089,701 - - - 51,089,701 51,089,701
Financial liabilities at fair value through P&L 7,704,553 - - - - -
IFRS9 total 98,060,503 51,099,691

16 Note that the amounts presented in column “Book value as at 31 December 2017 IAS39” for the categories “Financial liabilities held for trading” and “Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” differ from those
published in UniCredit group’s Consolidated Reports and Accounts as at 31 December 2017 as a result of a reclassification of deposit certificates for an amount of €4.694.024 thousand in order to grant the homogeneous
classification of this type of liabilities within the Group.

As at 1 January 2018 the related accumulated changes in FV from the issuance date, related to changes in own credit risk, have been accounted for under item “120. Valuation reserves” with a corresponding effect under
item “150. Reserves” for an amount equal to -€21,427 thousand.
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(€'000)
IAS39 CATEGORY NEW IFRS9 CATEGORY
BOOK
12.31.2017

1AS39 A B Cc A B Cc
Deposits from banks 123,244,080 - - 123,244,080 - | 123,244,080
Deposits from customers 462,895,261 - - - | 462,895,261 - | 462,895,261
Debt securities in issue 98,602,632 542,129 55,099 597,228 98,602,632 55,099 98,657,731
Financial liabilities held for trading 51,089,701 - - - 51,089,701 - 51,089,701
Financial liabilities at fair value through P&L 7,704,553 7,704,553 7,704,553 7,704,553 - 7,704,553
IFRS9 total 8,301,781

The reclassification of financial liabilities highlights a substantial continuity of the classifications compared to those applied according to IAS39,
taking also into account the change of the name of the various categories following the implementation of the 5% update of Circular 262.

As regards financial liabilities recorded in item “30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value”, the cumulative fair value changes deriving from
changes in own creditworthiness as at the issue date have been reported in item “120. Valuation reserves” in application of the rules established by

IFRS9.

As regards the financial liabilities previously recorded in item “50. Financial liabilities at fair value”, the application of this rule does not affect the
shareholders’ equity but leads to a transfer between item “150. Reserves” and item “120. Valuation reserves”.

4.2 Loan loss provisions
With reference to impairment, the following table shows, as at 1 January 2018, the gross exposure and value adjustments broken down by
accounting portfolio and by classification stage.

(€'000)

GROSS AMOUNT

LOAN LOSS PROVISIONS

NET EXPOSURE

S1

S2

S3 S1

S2

S3

S1

S2

S3

Item 30. Financial
assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income

98,145,268

593,530

- | (18,698)

(9,340)

98,126,570

584,190

- Debt securities

98,145,268

593,530

- | (18698)

(9,340)

98,126,570

584,190

- Loans and advances
with banks

- Loans and advances
with customers

Item 40. Financial
assets measured at
amortised cost

454,187,232

49,966,237

45,631,457

(1,029,621)

(1,793,842)

(27,060,809)

453,157,611

48,172,395

18,570,648

- Debt securities

16,821,949

329,959

79735 | (14671)

(49,590)

(20,635)

16,807,278

280,369

59,100

- Loans and advances
with banks

67,262,774

1,458,492

53676 |  (21,864)

(5,532)

(48,336)

67,240,910

1,452,960

5,340

- Loans and advances
with customers

370,102,509

48,177,786

45,498,046

(993,086)

(1,738,720)

(26,991,838)

369,109,423

46,439,066

18,506,208

The amount of loan loss provision on commitments and guarantees given amount to €1,090,289 thousand as reported in the Balance sheet -
Liabilities in item “100. Provisions for risks and charges: a) commitments and guarantees given”.
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With reference to impairment on cash exposures the following tables show:

a) the portfolio under IAS39 and the related closing balance as at 31 December 2017;
b) the reclassification of this balance in the various IFRS9 portfolios;

c) the effects from application of the measurement criteria envisaged by IFRS9;
d) the opening IFRS9 balance as at 1 January 2018.

(€'000)
PERFORMING NON PERFORMING TOTAL
CUMULATED WRITEDOWNS CUMULATED WRITEDOWNS CUMULATED WRITEDOWNS
IAS39 CATEGORY (EX 1AS39) (EX IAS39) (EX IAS39)
20. Financial assets held for
trading
30. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
40. Financial assets available
for sale - 24,750 24,750
50. Held to maturity
investments 1,120 1,120
60. Loans and receivables with
banks 25,293 50,283 75,576
70. Loans and receivables with
customers 2,014,712 27,240,342 29,255,054
Total 2,040,005 27,316,495 29,356,500
(€'000)
PERFORMING
FINANCIAL ASSETS MANDATORY AT FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FV THROUGH FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AMORTISED COST
(72} = (2] (2] = (2] (2] = (2]
£ g £ £ o £ £ o £
o] o o] ] o ] ] o ]
= > = = > = = > =
£ g g = g g = g =
8. | z | 8. | B. | = | B; | B2 | = | B
33 8 32 | 33 8 52 | 33 8 52
2 < = D W 2D < = = T 2D < = = T
S = = 5 =< = S = = S =
IAS39 CATEGORY o o o o o o o o o
20. Financial assets held for
trading - - - - -
30. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - - - - - -
40. Financial assets available
for sale - - 28,038 28,038 3,222 3,222
50. Held to maturity
investments - - 2,575 2,575
60. Loans and receivables with
banks - 25,293 (27,056) (1,763)
70. Loans and receivables with
customers 3,777 (3,777) - - - | 2,010,935 808,494 | 2,819,429
Total 3,777 (3,777) - 28,038 28,038 | 2,036,228 787,235 | 2,823,463
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(€'000)
NON PERFORMING
FINANCIAL ASSETS MANDATORY AT FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FV THROUGH FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AMORTISED COST
(2] = (72} (2] = (2] [72) = (2]
s @ s = @ s s @ =
o - o o - o o = o
a 4 (=} a 4 a a 2 a
w > w w > w w = w
E 2 E E 2 E E 2 E
s = £ £ = £ £ = =
a = a a = a a = a
w = wo__ W = w__ W = W
52 5 S8 | 33 5 53 = 3 52
EE 3 gL | 2= E 2L | 2= 2 2L
IAS39 CATEGORY 38 5 38 38 5 38 38 5 38
20. Financial assets held for
trading - - - - - - - - -
30. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - - - - - - - - -
40. Financial assets available
for sale 20042 | (20,042) - 42 (42) - 4,666 - 4,666
50. Held to maturity
investments - - - - - - 1,120 - 1,120
60. Loans and receivables with
banks 2,904 (2,904) - - - - 47,379 (320) 47,059
70. Loans and receivables with
customers 129,638 (129,638) - - - - | 27,110,704 | (102,740) | 27,007,964
Total 152,584 | (152,584) - 42 (42) - | 27,163,869 | (103,060) | 27,060,809
With reference to impairment off-balance exposures the following table show:
a) the closing balance as at 31 December 2017
b) the effects from application of the measurement criteria envisaged by IFRS9;
c) the opening IFRS9 balance as at 1 January 2018.
(€'000)
PERFORMING NON PERFORMING TOTAL
2 = 2 2 = 2 2 2
= = = = m = = =
o = o o = o o o
a 4 a =} 2 =} a =}
w = w w > w w w
= ) E E @ E E E
4 < 4 4 < [ 4 4
= wi = = wi = = =
a = a a = a a a
Ea £ E o E & = = E o S
33 & 32 33 & 32 35 32
= ] 2 = z 2 2= 2
IAS39 CATEGORY 38 5 38 38 5 38 38 38
Off-balance sheet exposures 124,703 172,351 297,054 625,540 167,695 793,235 750,243 1,090,289

Note that the item “change in measurement” includes, in addition to the effects deriving from the adoption of new IFRS9 loan loss provision
calculation rules, the impacts linked to the reversal of penalty interest from loan loss provisions as requested by the 5t update of Banca d'ltalia
Circular 262, the impact of write-off of some credit exposures included in the NPL strategy and the impact coming from the reclassification of some
exposures to portfolio evaluated at fair value through profit or loss.
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4.3 Further reclassifications carried out as at 1 January 2018 in compliance with IFRS9 and the 5t update of Circular 262

The widespread impact of the introduction of the IFRS9 principle is further demonstrated by the fact that the impacts arising from its adoption have

determined effects not only on the single financial asset and liabilities but also on other items relating to the latter.

In this regard the following should be noted:

o the item “Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items” (assets and liabilities) that as at 31 December 2017 respectively amounted to
€2,244,685 thousand and €3,041,990 thousand turn to €2,600,594 thousand and €3,046,609 thousand. Those differences relate to the
reclassification of assets and liabilities subject to “macro-hedging” relationship in item “20. c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” with
their consequent exclusion from hedging relationship;

o the item “Equity investments”, that as at 31 December 2017 amounted to €6,212,142 thousand now amount to €6,211,911 thousand due to the
first application of IFRS9 by subsidiaries measured using the Equity method;

o the item “Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale” and associated liabilities that as at 31 December 2017 respectively
amounted to €1,110,960 thousand and €184,829 thousand now amount to €1,110,780 thousand and €184,831 thousand due to the application of
IFRS9 by Legal Entities Held for Sale whose assets and liabilities have been reported in the abovementioned items according to IFRS5;

o tax assets and liabilities that as at 31 December 2017 amounted respectively to €12,658,279 thousand and €1,092,905 thousand now amount to
€12,848,869 thousand and 1,108,062 thousand as a result of tax effects on the accounting changes resulting from IFRS9 application;

o the “Other assets”, which amounted to €8.957.637 thousand as at 31 December 2017, amount to €8.800.375 thousand due to both the application
of 5t update of Circular 262 which clarified that tangible assets accounted for in accordance with the provisions of IAS2 must be recorded in item
“90. Tangible assets” rather than in item “Other Assets” and the application of IFRS9 by UniCredit S.p.A. foreign branches.

o the “Other liabilities”, which amounted to €15.573.476 thousand as at 31 December 2017,becomes equal to €14.808.680 thousand due to both the
application of the 5 update of Circular 262 which clarified that provisions for off-balance sheet exposures must be shown in item “100. Provisions
for risks and charges” rather than in item “Other liabilities” and the application of IFRS9 by UniCredit S.p.A. foreign branches.

Approval of 2019 Budgetary law and consequent effects on deferred taxes related to IFRS9 adoption

Starting from 1 January 2018, the new accounting standard IFRS9 which deals with the recognition and measurement of Financial instruments has
been applied for the preparation of Financial statements. The adoption of the new accounting standard has determined, among other effects, an
increase in Loan Loss Provisions (LLPs) whose economic effects have been recognised as a reduction of 1 January 2018 net equity (First Time
Adoption - FTA'). At the same date, UniCredit S.p.A. has not recognised IRAP and IRES tax assets related to the mentioned LLPs because the tax
rule applicable at the time required the full deductibility in 2018 and, absent a sufficient taxable income, the sustainability test showed the inability to
recover the IRES deferred tax assets associated with tax losses carried forward.

The new 2019 Budgetary Law approved in December 2018 envisaged the deductibility of LLPs recognised in FTA on a 10 years period (1/10 in
2018 and 9/10 in future periods up to 2027), for both IRES and IRAP purposes. This circumstance has determined the transformation of these DTAs
from tax assets related to tax losses carried forward to tax assets related to temporary differences (IRES and IRAP) and, consequently, their
recognition in financial statements for an amount determined through the sustainability test carried out coherently with the new tax rules.

Recognition of these DTAs has required an in-depth analysis by the management so to assess the proper accounting treatment, given the absence

of specific indications by IAS12 on their recognition against equity or against P&L.

On this matter, which pertains to a strict representation issue not involving recognition nor measurement topics, the management:

o has performed technical analysis, also considering the content of the Document issued by Banca d'ltalia, Consob and ISVAP (now IVASS) on
21 February 2008 concerning the application of IAS/IFRS (in particular the Document was issued so to clarify the accounting treatment of negative
changes in DTA related to the first time adoption of IAS/IFRS and resulting from the change in IRES and IRAP tax rates set by 2008 Budgetary
Law);

o has concluded that the content of the mentioned Document is applicable also to the present case absent further indications by IFRS IC
(Interpretation Commitments) or changes by IASB (International Accounting Standard Board).

17 Refer to Part A - Accounting policies - Section 5 - Other matters - “Transition to IFRS9: Financial Instruments of UniCredit group” for an explanation of the effects arising from the first time adoption of IFRSS.
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In conclusion, DTAs related to the first time adoption of IFRS9, have been recognised against P&L for an amount of €871 million. As a result, also
considering the impact of IRAP current taxes for €16 million, the net profit for 2018 is equal to €3,892 million (€1,727million in the fourth quarter of
2018). In case these DTAs were recognised against equity, the net profit for 2018 would have been equal to €3,006 million (€840 million in the fourth
quarter of 2018); 20% of rectified net profit (€3,006 million) is subject to proposal of dividend distribution to UniCredit Shareholders’ Meeting.

Lastly note that the choice to recognise these DTAs against equity, instead against P&L as happened, would have not determined different effects
on the overall equity capital of the Bank.

The Company and the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit as at 31 December 2018 are audited by Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. pursuant to
Legislative Decree No.39 of 27 January 2010 and to the resolution passed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 11 May 2012.

UniCredit group prepared and published within the time limits set by law and pursuant to the requirements of Consob, the Consolidated first half
financial report as at 30 June 2018, subject to limited scope audit, as well as the Consolidated interim reports as at 31 March and 30 September
2018, both as press releases.

The Company and the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2018 has been approved by the Board of Directors’ Meeting of 6
February 2019, which authorised its disclosure to the public, also pursuant to IAS10.

The whole document is filed in the competent offices and entities as required by law.

A.2 - Main items of the accounts

1 - Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

a) Financial assets held for trading

A financial asset is s classified as held for trading if it is:

e acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the short term;

o part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking;

e it is a derivative contract not designated under hedge accounting, including derivatives with positive fair value embedded in financial liabilities
other than those valued at fair value with recognition of income effects through profit or loss.

Like other financial instruments, on initial recognition, at settlement date, a held-for-trading financial asset is measured at its fair value, usually equal
to the amount paid, excluding transaction costs and income, which are recognised in profit and loss even when directly attributable to the financial
assets. Held for Trading are recognised at trade date.

After initial recognition these financial assets are measured at their fair value through profit or loss.

A gain or loss arising from sale or redemption or a change in the fair value of a HfT financial asset is recognised in profit or loss in item “80. Net
gains (losses) on trading”, including gains or losses related to derivative contracts that are linked to assets and/or liabilities designated at fair value
and other financial assets mandatorily at fair value. If the fair value of a financial instrument falls below zero, which may happen with derivative
contracts, it is recognised in item “20. Financial liabilities held for trading”.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract that has all three of the following characteristics:

o its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable (usually called the “underlying”) provided that in case of non-financial variable, this
is not specific of one of the parties to the contract;

o it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be
expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors;

o itis settled at a future date.
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An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract, with the effect that
some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

An embedded derivative is separated from financial liabilities other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss and from non-financial
instruments, and is recognised as a derivative, if:

o the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely relating to those of the host contract;

e a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and

o the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured entirely at fair value through profit or loss.

When an embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is accounted for according to its accounting classification.

b) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
A non-derivative financial asset can be designated at fair value if the abovementioned designation avoids accounting mismatches that arise from
measuring assets and associated liabilities according to different measurement criteria.

These assets are accounted for alike “Financial assets held for trading” however gains and losses, whether realised or unrealised, are recognised in
item “110. Gains (Losses) on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - a) financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value”; such
item also includes changes in fair value on “financial liabilities designated at fair value” linked to own credit risk, if such a designation creates or
increases an accounting mismatch in P&L according to IFRS9.

c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value

A financial asset is classified as financial asset mandatorily at fair value if it does not meet the conditions, in terms of business model or cash flow

characteristics, for being measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Specifically, the following assets have been classified in this portfolio:

o debt instruments, securities and loans for which the business model is neither held to collect nor held to collect and sell but which are not part of
the Trading book;

o debt instruments, securities and loans with cash flows that are not solely payment of principal and interest;

e units in investment funds;

 equity instruments not held for trading for which the Group does not apply the option granted by the standard of valuing these instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

These assets are accounted for alike “Financial assets held for trading”, however gains and losses, whether realised or unrealised, are recognised in
item “110. Gains (Losses) on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - b) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”.

2 - Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is classified at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
e its business model is held to collect and sell;
o its cash flows are solely the payment of principal and interest.

This category also includes equity instruments not held for trading for which the Group applies the option granted by the standard of valuing the
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

On initial recognition, at settlement date, a financial assets is measured at fair value, which is usually equal to the consideration paid, plus
transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the instrument.

After initial recognition, the interests accrued on interest-bearing instruments are recorded in the income statement according to the amortised cost
criterion in item “10. Interest income and similar revenues” if positive, or in item “20. Interest expenses and similar charges” if negative.

The gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of other comprehensive income and reported under item
“120. Valuation reserves” in shareholders' equity.

These instruments are tested for impairment as illustrated in the specific section 16 - Other Information - Impairment.

Impairment losses are recorded in the income statement in item “130. Net losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: b) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income” with contra-entry in the statement of other comprehensive income and also reported under item
“120. Valuation reserves” in shareholders' equity.
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In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recorded in the income statement in item “100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and
repurchase of: b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”.

Amounts deriving from financial assets carrying amount adjustment, gross of cumulated write-downs, in order to reflect modifications on contractual
cash flows that do not give rise to accounting derecognition, are recognised in P&L in item “140. Gains/Losses from contractual changes with no
cancellations”; such line does not include the impact of contractual modifications on the amount of expected loss recognised in item “130. Net
losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”.

Such item can also include on-balance credit exposures which are already non-performing on initial recognition. These exposures are qualified as
“Purchased Originated Credit Impaired - POCI".

The amortised cost and the interest income generated by these assets are calculated by considering, in the estimate of future cash flows, the
expected credit losses over the entire residual duration of the asset.

This expected credit loss is subject to periodic review thus determining the recognition of impairment or write-backs.

For further information on "Purchased Originated Credit Impaired” assets see Part E - Section 1 - Credit risk (Company financial statements). Same
information is also provided in Part E - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated - 2.1 Credit risk.

With regard to equity instruments, the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of other comprehensive
income and reported under item “120. Valuation reserves” in shareholders' equity.

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recorded in item “150. Reserves”.

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS9, no impairment losses on equity instruments are recognised in the income statement. Only dividends are
recognised in P&L within item “70. Dividend income and similar revenues”.

3 - Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset, loan or debt securities, is classified as financial asset measured at amortised cost if:
o its business model is held to collect;

o its cash flows are solely the payment of principal and interest.

These items also include the net value of finance leases of assets under construction or awaiting lease, provided the leases have the characteristics
of contracts entailing the transfer of risk.

On initial recognition, at settlement date, financial assets at amortised cost are measured at fair value, which is usually equal to the consideration
paid, plus transaction costs and income directly attributable to the instrument.

After initial recognition at fair value, these assets are measured at amortised cost which requires the recognition of interest on an accrual basis by
using the effective interest rate method over the term of the loan. Such interest is recognised in item “10. Interest income and similar revenues” if
positive or in item “20. Interest expenses and similar charges” if negative.

The amount of financial assets at amortised cost is adjusted in order to take into account impairment losses arising from valuation process as
illustrated in the specific section 16 - Other information - Impairment.

Impairment losses are recorded in the income statement, in item “130. Net losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: a) financial assets at
amortised cost”.

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recorded in the income statement in item “100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and
repurchase of: a) financial assets at amortised cost”.

Amounts deriving from financial assets carrying amount adjustment, gross of cumulated write-downs, in order to reflect modifications on contractual
cash flows that do not give rise to accounting derecognition, are recognised in P&L in item “140. Gains/Losses from contractual changes with no
cancellations”; such line does not include the impact of contractual modifications on the amount of expected loss recognised in item “130. Net
losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: a) financial assets at amortised cost”.

Such item can also include on-balance credit exposures which are already non-performing on initial recognition. These exposures are qualified as
“Purchased Originated Credit Impaired - POCI".

The amortised cost and the interest income generated by these assets are calculated by considering, in the estimate of future cash flows, the
expected credit losses over the entire residual duration of the asset.

This expected credit loss is subject to periodic review thus determining the recognition of impairment or write-backs.

For further information on "Purchased Originated Credit Impaired” assets see Part E - Section 1 - Credit risk (Company financial statements). Same
information is also provided in Part E - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated perimeter - 2.1 Credit risk.
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4 - Hedge accounting

Hedging instruments are created to hedge market (interest-rate, currency and price) and/or credit risk to which the hedged positions are exposed.

They may be described as follows:

o fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an identifiable portion of such an asset or
liability;

o cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction which could affect profit or loss in future periods;

 hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity, whose operations are based or conducted in a currency other than euro.

It should be noted that the Group has exercised the option to continue applying the existing IAS39 hedge accounting requirements for all its hedging
relationships until the IASB completes the project on accounting for macro-hedging.

Hedging derivatives are initially recognised on trade date and are valued at their fair value.

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if there is formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship including the risk
management objective, the strategy for undertaking the hedge, and how the hedging instrument’s prospective and retrospective effectiveness will be
assessed. It is necessary to assess the hedge’s effectiveness, at inception and in subsequent periods, in offsetting the exposure to changes in the
hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

Generally a hedge is regarded as highly effective if, at the inception of the hedge and in subsequent periods, it is determined prospectively to remain
highly effective, and retrospectively verified that the hedge ratio (i.e. the changes in fair value of hedged items and hedging instruments) is within a
range of 80-125%. The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis and thus must prospectively remain highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which the hedge has been designated.

The assessment of effectiveness is made at each balance-sheet date or other reporting date.

If the assessment does not confirm the effectiveness of the hedge, from that time on hedge accounting is discontinued in respect of the hedge and
the hedging derivative is reclassified as a held-for-trading instrument.

In addition, the hedging relationship ceases when (i) the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, (i) the hedged item is sold,
expires or is repaid, (iii) it is no longer highly probable that the forecast transaction will occur.

Hedging instruments are so designated when identifiable with an ultimate counterparty outside the Group.

Hedging derivatives are measured at fair value. Specifically:

o fair value hedging, an effective fair value hedge is accounted for as follows: the gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair
value is recognised through profit or loss in item “90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting”; the gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognised through profit or loss in the same item. Hedging ineffectiveness
is represented by the difference between the change in the fair value of hedging instruments and the change in the fair value of hedged item. If the
hedging relationship is terminated for reasons other than the sale of the hedged item, the difference between the carrying amount of the hedged
item on termination of the hedging and the carrying amount it would have had if the hedge had never existed, is recognised through profit or loss in
interest receivable or payable over the residual life of the original hedge, in the case of interest-bearing instruments; if the financial instrument does
not bear interest, the difference is recognised in profit or loss under item “90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting” at once. If the hedged item
is sold or repaid, the portion of fair value which is still unamortised is at once recognised through profit or loss in item “100. Gains (Losses) on
disposal and repurchase”;

o cash flow hedging, hedging instruments are valued at fair value. Change in the fair value of a hedging instrument that is considered effective is
recognised in equity item “120. Valuation reserves”. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognised through profit or loss in item “90. Net
gains (losses) on hedge accounting”. If a cash flow hedge is determined to be no longer effective or the hedging relationship is terminated, the
cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised in revaluation reserves from the period when the hedge was effective
remains separately recognised in revaluation reserves until the forecast hedged transaction occurs or is determined to be no longer possible; in
the latter case gains or losses are transferred through profit or loss to item “90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting “.

The fair value changes are recorded in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and disclosed in item “120. Valuation reserves ";

» hedging a net investment in a foreign entity, hedges of a net investment in a foreign entity whose activities are based or conducted in a country
or currency other than those of the reporting entity are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. The gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion of the hedge that has been recognised directly in equity is recognised through profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign entity. The fair value changes are recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income and disclosed in item “120. Valuation reserves "; the
ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognised through profit or loss in item “90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting”;
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« macro-hedges of financial assets (liabilities) - IAS39 allows a fair-value item hedged against interest rate fluctuations to be not only a single
asset or liability but also a monetary position contained in a number of financial assets or liabilities (or parts of them); accordingly, a group of
derivatives can be used to offset fair-value fluctuations in hedged items due to changes in market rates. Macro-hedging may not be used for net
positions resulting from the offsetting of assets and liabilities. As for fair value micro-hedging, macrohedging is considered highly effective if, at the
inception of the hedge and in subsequent periods, changes in the fair value attributable to the hedged position are offset by changes in fair value
of the hedging instrument and if the hedge ratio is retrospectively assessed falling within the range of 80-125%. Net changes, gains or losses, in
the fair value of the macro-hedged assets and liabilities attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in asset item “60. Changes in fair value of
portfolio hedged items (+/-)" or liability item “50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+/-)", respectively and offset the profit and loss
item “90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting “.

The ineffectiveness of the hedging arises to the extent that the change in the fair value of the hedging item differs from the change in the fair value
of the hedged monetary position. The extent of hedge ineffectiveness is in any case recognised in profit and loss item “90. Net gains (losses) on
hedge accounting”.

If the hedging relationship is terminated, for reasons other than the sale of the hedged items, cumulative gain or loss in items “60. Changes in fair
value of portfolio hedged items (+/-)” or liability item “50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+/-)" is recognised through profit or loss in
items “10. Interest income and similar revenues” or “20. Interest expenses and similar charges”, along the residual life of the hedged financial
assets or liabilities.

If the latter are sold or repaid, unamortised fair value is at once recognised through profit and loss in item “100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and
repurchase”.

9 - Equity investments

The principles governing the recognition and measurement of equity investments under IFRS10 Consolidated financial statements, IAS27 Company
financial statements, IAS28 Investments in associates and joint ventures and IFRS11 Joint Arrangements are provided in detail in Part A.1 -
Section 3 - Consolidation Procedures and Scope, where disclosure on the evaluation processes and key assumptions used to assess the existence
of control, joint control or significant influence in accordance with IFRS12 (paragraphs 7-9) is provided.

The remaining interests other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and interests recognised in items “120. Non-current assets and
disposal groups classified as held for sale” and “70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale” are classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income or other financial assets mandatorily at fair value and accordingly accounted.

6 - Property, plant and equipment (Tangible assets)

The item includes:

e land;

o buildings;

o furniture and fixtures;

e plant and machinery;

o other machinery and equipment;

and is divided between:

e assets used in the business;

e assets held as investments;

e inventories in the scope of IAS2 standard.
o This item also includes tangible assets arising from collection of collaterals.

Assets used in the business and Assets held as investments

Assets used in the business are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes and are expected to be
used for more than one period. This category also (conventionally) includes assets to be let or under construction and to be leased under a finance
lease, only for those finance leases which provide for retention of risk by the lessor until the acceptance of the asset by the lessee and the start of
rentals under the finance lease.

The item “Property, plant and equipment” includes assets used by the Group as lessee under a finance lease, or let/hired out by the Group as lessor
under an operating lease.

Property, plant and equipment also include leasehold improvements relating to assets which can be separately identified. They are classified
according to the specific sub-items relating to the asset type (e.g. plants).

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 157



Consolidated financial statements | Notes to the consolidated accounts

Part A - Accounting policies

Leasehold improvements are usually borne in order to make leased premises fit for the expected use.

Improvements and additional expenses relating to property, plant and equipment identifiable but not separable are recognised in item “130. Other
assets”.

Assets held for investment purposes are properties covered by IAS40, i.e. properties held (owned or under a finance lease) in order to derive rentals
and/or a capital gain.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost including all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into use (transaction costs,
professional fees, direct transport costs incurred in bringing the asset to the desired location, installation costs and dismantling costs).

Subsequent costs are added to the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that there will be future economic
benefits in excess of those initially foreseen and the cost can be reliably measured. Other expenses borne at a later time (e.g. normal maintenance
costs) are recognised in the year they are incurred in profit and loss items:

* “190. Administrative expenses: b) other administrative expenses”, if they refer to assets used in the business; or:

 “230. Other operating expenses/income’, if they refer to property held for investment.

After being recognised as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
cumulative impairment losses.

Exceptions are made for property investments underlying liabilities whose yield is linked to their fair value. For these latter assets the fair value
model as per IAS40 paragraph 32A is used.

An item with a finite useful life is subject to straight-line depreciation.

Residual useful life is usually assessed as follows:

o buildings up to 50 years;
o furniture and fixtures up to 25 years;
o electronic equipment up to 15 years;
o other up to 10 years;
o |easehold improvements up to 25 years.

An item with an indefinite useful life is not depreciated.

Land and buildings are recognised separately, even if acquired together. Land is not depreciated since it usually has an indefinite useful life.
Buildings have instead a finite useful life and are therefore subject to depreciation.

The estimate of the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each accounting period-end on the basis inter alia of the conditions of use of the
asset, of maintenance conditions and expected obsolescence, and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the depreciation amount for the
current and subsequent financial years is adjusted accordingly.

If there is clear evidence that an asset has been impaired the carrying amount of the asset is compared with its recoverable value, equal to the
greater of its fair value less selling cost and its value in use, i.e., the present value of future cash flow expected to originate from the asset. Any value
adjustment is recognised in profit and loss item “210. Net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant and equipment”.

If the value of a previously impaired asset is restored, its increased carrying amount cannot exceed the net carrying amount it would have had if
there had been no losses recognised on the prior-year impairment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised (i) on disposal or (i) when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or sale in
the future and any difference between sale proceeds or recoverable value and carrying value is recognised in profit and loss item “280. Gains
(losses) on disposals on investments” or “210. Net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant and equipment”, respectively.

Inventories in the scope of IAS2 standard

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business. They are accounted for at the lower of their carrying amounts and net
realizable value.

Any value adjustment arising from the application of the aforementioned criterion is recognised under item “210. Net value adjustments/write-backs
on property, plant and equipment”.
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7 - Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance which is expected to be used for more than one period,
controlled by the Group and from which future economic benefits are probable.

Intangible assets are principally goodwill, software, brands and patents.
This item also includes intangible assets used by the Group as lessee under finance leases or as lessor under operating leases (rental/hire).

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recognised at purchase cost, i.e. including cost incurred to bring the asset into use, less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

In case of internally generated software the expenses incurred to develop the project are recognised under intangible assets only if the following
elements are demonstrated: the technical feasibility of the project, the intention to complete the intangible asset, its future usefulness, the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

An intangible asset with a finite life is subject to straight-line amortisation over its estimated useful life.

Residual useful life is usually assessed as follows:
o software up to 10 years;
o other intangible assets up to 20 years.

Intangible assets with an indefinite life are not amortised.

If there is clear evidence that an asset has been impaired, the carrying amount of the asset is compared with its recoverable value, equal to the
greater of its fair value, less selling costs and its value in use, i.e. the present value of future cash flows expected to originate from the asset.
Any impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss item “220. Net value adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets”.

For an intangible asset with indefinite life, even if there are no indications of impairment, the carrying amount is compared annually with its
recoverable value. If the carrying amount is greater than the recoverable value, the difference is recognised in profit and loss item “220. Net value
adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets”.

If the value of a previously impaired intangible asset, other than goodwill is restored, its increased carrying amount can not exceed the net carrying
amount it would have had if there were no losses recognised on the prior-years impairment.

An intangible asset is derecognised (i) on disposal or (i) when no further future economic benefits are expected, from its use or sale, in the future
and any difference between sale proceeds or recoverable value and carrying value is recognised in the profit and loss item “280. Gains (Losses) on
disposals on investments” or “220. Net value adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets”, respectively.

Goodwill
In accordance with IFRS3, goodwill is the excess of the cost of a business combination over the interest acquired in the net fair value of the assets
and liabilities acquired at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising from the acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as an intangible asset, whereas goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included in the carrying amount of the investments in associates.

At a subsequent financial reporting date, goodwill is recognised net of any cumulative impairment losses and is not amortised.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, as for other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life. To this end it is allocated to the Group’s
business areas identified as the Cash Generating Units (CGUs). Goodwill is monitored by the CGUs at the lowest level in the Group in line with its

business model.

Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised in profit and loss item “270. Goodwill impairment”. In respect of goodwill, no write-backs are allowed.

UniCredit - 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 159



Consolidated financial statements | Notes to the consolidated accounts

Part A - Accounting policies

See Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part B - Section 10 - Intangible Assets - 10.3 Other information for further information on intangibles,
goodwill, the CGUs and impairment testing for these.

8 - Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

These categories include individual assets held for disposal (tangible, intangible and financial assets) or groups of assets held for sale, with the
related liabilities, as required by IFRS5.

Individual assets (or groups of assets held for sale) are recognised in item “120. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale”
and item “70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale”, respectively, at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell.

The revaluation reserves relating to non-current assets classified as held for sale, which are recorded as a contra item to changes in value relevant
for this purpose, are reported separately in the Statement of other comprehensive income (see Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part D -
Consolidated other comprehensive income).

The net balance of profits (dividends, interest income, etc.) and losses (interest expense, etc.) attributable to discontinued operations are recognised
in the income statement under item “320. Profit (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations”. Profits and losses attributable to individual assets or
disposal groups, that do not constitute discontinued operations, held for disposal are recognised in the income statement under the appropriate item.

9 - Current and deferred tax

Tax assets and tax liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated balance sheet respectively in item “110. Tax assets” and item “60. Tax liabilities”.

In compliance with the “balance sheet method”, current and deferred tax items are:
o current tax assets, i.e. amount of tax paid in excess of income tax due in accordance with local tax regulations;
o current tax liabilities, i.e. amount of corporate tax due in accordance with local tax regulations;
o deferred tax assets, i.e. amounts of income tax recoverable in future fiscal years and attributable to:
- deductible temporary differences;
- the carryforward of unused tax losses; and
- the carryforward of unused tax credits;
o deferred tax liabilities, i.e. the amounts of income tax due in future fiscal years in respect of taxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are calculated in accordance with local tax regulations and are recognised in profit or loss on an
accrual basis.

In general, deferred tax assets and liabilities arise when there is a difference between the accounting treatment and the tax treatment of the carrying
amount of an asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised applying tax rates that at the balance sheet date are expected to apply in the period when the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered or the liability will be settled on the basis of tax regulations in force, and are periodically reviewed in
order to reflect any changes in regulations.

In addition, under the tax consolidation system adopted by the Bank deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be generated by the entity. In accordance with the provisions of IAS12, the probability that sufficient future taxable profit
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised will be available is reviewed periodically. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets should be
reduced to the extent that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit and loss item “300. Tax expense (income) for the period from continuing operations”, except for
tax referred to items that in the same or in another fiscal year are credited or charged directly to equity, such as those relating to gains or losses on
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and those relating to changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments,
whose changes in value are recognised, net of tax, directly in the Statement of other comprehensive income - Revaluation reserves.

Current tax assets and liabilities are presented on the Balance sheet net of the related current tax liabilities if the following requirements are met:
o existence of a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts recognised; and
o the intention to extinguish for the remaining net, or realise the asset and at the same time extinguish the liability.
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Deferred tax assets are presented on the Balance sheet net of the related deferred tax liabilities if the following requirements are met:

o existence of an enforceable right to offset current tax assets with current tax liabilities; and

o the deferred tax assets and liabilities must relate to income taxes applied to the same tax authority on the same taxable entity or on different
taxable entities that intend to settle the current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis (normally in presence of a tax consolidation contract).

10 - Provisions for risks and charges

Commitments and guarantees given

Provisions for risks and charges for commitments and guarantees given are recognised against all revocable and irrevocable commitments and
guarantees whether they are in scope of IFRS9 or IAS37.

The item hosts the estimates of expected loss calculated on these instruments resulting from valuation process as described in Section 16 - Other
Information - Impairment.

The provision of the period is accounted under item “200. Net provisions for risks and charges: a) commitments and financial guarantees given”.
Note that all contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument are considered financial guarantees.

Retirement payments and similar obligations
Retirement provisions, i.e. provisions for employee benefits payable after the completion of employment, are defined as contribution plans or
defined-benefit plans according to the nature of the plan.

In detail:

« Defined-benefit plans provide a series of benefits depending on factors such as age, years of service and compensation policies. Under this type
of plan actuarial and investment risks are borne by the company;

« Defined-contribution plans are plans un